A it 58 5 R AT A R 0 7] R A W 6 58 5 T IR & I B A 0 iy I BEA B BT 38 HC
FEVE B 58 BEME IR AN S AT AT R FY] > 311 B 8 6 75 A Bl I 7S 2 o 4 S B A ] 75 1 P 26 T
A B A B 5% 55 A A8 T 71 20 2 AT o] 18 R R I8 AT A B AT -

CRMI
FE4YE

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited

o B A R B A R A D

(B 2 T i WA 57 2 5 PR 2 )
(Je 4 AC 5% : 8158)

- =2 EX
=

BE-_ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEFEEZ
REZEFEENG

FEHAEREHEARAR([RAAR ] EFg([EEE )%%Ji[:/z}ffﬁzl—‘/z}ﬁj&,ﬁ\[’!ﬁ%/z}
A (G AEl )82 - F - —F T+ A= —HIEFEZ KR 2FELSE - ANE
i!gzlx/\j# EFEEERE(TEHR]) 22 ﬂfﬁﬁ%{%ﬁ?ﬁ/\“%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ/\jGEM

g E B (TGEMEM AR A ) d A B 2 FEEV DA% I &R AR E - A
AjZﬂi%é%’f?Aﬁz%zi (AAERNFAHMA —F = =+—H2z &R 1A
NEBEEFZ T AT HIEFEZRFEZ R FERMERER - FRpE
il RS AR 6 7 708 7 TR A 25 4 T AN 0 W)Y R R - IR I A i GEMIRY A8 3 www.hk gem.com &
A m B A i www.crmi.hk o



CHINA
REGENERATIVE
MEDICINE

INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
TEBLEBEERERLE

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
ROERERHRY 2 ERAR ANNUAL REPORT %R

Stock Code %17 155 : 8158



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to all the shareholders.

During 2021, the Group adopted a number of measures to further
improve its business operations, including:

1. optimizing the management structure and introducing
talents with great influence in the industry into our
management team, to significantly increase the Company’s
competitiveness;

2.  optimizing asset portfolio and disposing business segments
that were not in line with the Company’s future development
strategy, to enhance the Company’s operational efficiency
and significantly improve the Company’s profitability;

3. strategically cooperating with mainland companies with
rich industry resources, enabling both sides to complement
each other in terms of resources and strengths, improving
the service level of the Company in the Mainland China, to
achieve sustainable growth of the Company’s results.

FUTURE PROSPECT

After the integration and optimization of the business structure
in the previous year, the Company has gradually matured its
business exploration in the healthcare service industry and formed
a competitive industry service system in the market. In the new
year, the Company will focus on its core strengths, integrate our
advantages and resources in the industry, build a regenerative
medicine health management ecosystem, comprehensively
improve its service capabilities and quality, and establish a good
reputation in the industry.

At the same time, the Company is also willing to attract more
quality partners in the industry to share the dividends of
development and further promote the replication and development
of the industry on a large scale.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERE
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I, acting on behalf of the Board, avail this opportunity to express
my sincere appreciation for the long-term support from our
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hard work and contribution by our employees.

By the order of the Board

Wang Chuang

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S T

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group continued
to evaluate the various business segments of the Group with an
aim to streamline its business for the purpose of increasing its
overall performance and cost-effectiveness, as well as to improve
its overall performance in light of its going concern. The Group
has evaluated and compared each business segment and decided
to dispose of the “cell products and services” and “cosmetics
products and others” segments in order to focus its resources
for the development of the healthcare products and services
segment.

The Company has made its best effort to improve the Group’s
operational performance and to extend the Group’s sale network
in the PRC, especially in the healthcare products and services
segment and as a result, the performance of the healthcare
products and services segment since the second quarter of 2021
has substantially improved and generated operating profit and
improved the liquidity of the Group. The extended sale network
is expected to improve the profitability of the business of the
Group for the years coming. The Group will continue to make
effort to implement measures to improve the Group’s operational
performance and financial position. The Board will continuously
evaluate the business environment, the existing business portfolio
and income streams of the Group and improve the profitability of
the Group.

The Company will continue to implement measures aiming at
improving the profitability and cash flows of the Group, including
close monitoring of general administrative expenses and operating
costs and soliciting more potential customers. The Company may
also consider exploring business opportunities in management of
Sanatorium in PRC and to review its plan of acquisition in order to
strengthen assets base and working capital of the Group.

The Company will also consider alternative means of fund raising
which may or may not involve issuance of shares or convertible
bonds of the Company and/or the realization of assets, financial
assets or otherwise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S T

OPERATIONS REVIEW
Healthcare products and services

The Group provides healthcare products and services to its
customers in Hong Kong since December 2015 and commenced
selling of health and beauty membership in the PRC in 2021. There
are currently two medical aesthetic centres in Hong Kong and
the PRC. One of the centres, namely the Hong Kong International
Regenerative Centre, is located in Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong.
The other centre is located in Jiangsu, the PRC. The centre in the
PRC is operated by a designated service provider, Changzhou
XingKong Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.* (FMTEZEEBEEZAM?
fR A A]), a limited liability company in the PRC in which Mr. Wang
Chuang has acted as the chief executive officer between 2015 and
2019.

The objective of the healthcare products and services segment is
to promote health management which is a trend over the world
in recent years. The Group emphasises the concept of the co-
relation between beauty and health.

In the centres, a series of health management services such as
assessment of health situation, treatment for detox, balance of
inner body, nourishing organs, enhancement of immune system
will be provided. Beauty services are mainly non-surgical medical
aesthetic services, basic skincare, solutions for youthful skin, hair
revitalizing, lines firming, partial remodelling and intimate repairing.

The clients of the healthcare products and services segment are
individual retail clients of Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
solicits clients primarily through referrals from existing clients,
co-operated doctors and trained therapists in the medical
aesthetic centres and word-of-mouth. The Group has over
1,500 active clients. The clients are individuals and would pay
for the treatments, services or products upon each visit or by
prepayment.

The major suppliers of the healthcare products and services
segment are mainly distributors of medications and treatment
products and devices to the Group. The Group reached its
suppliers through referrals from agents and online platforms.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)
Healthcare products and services (Cont’d)

The co-operated doctors and therapists have been provided with
training by the Group to understand the objective and services
of the healthcare products and services segment. Tailor-made
suggestions for health assessment and treatment solution will
be offered to different clients to cater for their individual needs.
Prime location, sound reputation, high hygiene standard, cozy
environment of the medical aesthetic centres together with the
advanced treatment devices are key factors to retain and attract
new clients. Online marketing such as social media is also a way of
promoting the healthcare products and services segment recently.
The Group from time to time source better treatment devices to be
provided to the clients so as to gain more positive feedbacks.

With the above competitive advantages and establishment of
selling membership in the PRC of the healthcare business, the
Group recorded a growth of 55% in terms of revenue in this
sector for the year ended 31 December 2021. It is expected
that the Group will devote more resources on this business to
further expand the healthcare products and services segment and
increase the market sharing by way of strengthening the client and
membership base.

Healthcare has become a popular topic around the world in
recent years. The COVID-19 pandemic further arouses the pursuit
for health maintenance to the public. At the material time, the
COVID-19 pandemic was widely spread and lock down measures
were imposed by the government. Intensive online enquiry
services and talks for health promotion organized via social
media brought popularity to the healthcare products and services
segment. The Group was able to grasp the opportunity and laid
the foundation for the promotion of its healthcare products and
services segment. Upon relief of pandemic situation and relief of
the lock down measures in the second half of the year in the PRC,
increasing number of customers visited the centres for consuming
various health and beauty services, hence leading to a boost in the
performance of the healthcare products and services segment.

The Directors considered that the healthcare products and
services segment has great potential and it is the plan of the
Company to further expand this business. However, in view of the
recent slow down in the economy, the Company will keep an eye
on the latest development of market conditions from time to time
and adopt expansion measures in this segment which may include
opening more centres and/or co-operating with additional quality
service providers’ hospitals or sanatorium.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S T

FUTURE PROSPECT

The Group continues to strive for opportunity to widen its business
scope in the medicine industry and reallocate its resources when
appropriate, to strengthen and maintain as one of the leading
pioneers in the healthcare products and services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$282.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing an
increase of 55% from last year (2020: HK$182.1 million). Gross
profit increased by 62% to approximately HK$67.7 million from
last period (2020: HK$41.8 million), whereas gross profit margin
increased from 23% of last year to 24% of this year. The Group
recorded a profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 of
approximately HK$13.3 million (2020: loss HK$438.8 million).

The overall increase in revenue was primarily attributable to the
increase in revenue in the segment of healthcare products and
services. This was due to the extension of sales network in the
PRC.

During the year under review, the Group incurred a profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$13.3
million, as compared to a loss of approximately HK$404.2 million
for last year. The Group reported a turnaround in profit during the
year which was mainly attributable to the corresponding reasons
(i) reversal of provision of expected credit loss due to subsequent
settlement approximately HK$41.4 million; (ii) an increase in
revenue by approximately HK$100.8 million due to boosting of
sales of healthcare product and services. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company per share was HK$0.02 (loss for the year ended 31
December 2020: HK$0.1).

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$47.4 million,
representing an increase of 1.07% as compared to last year (2020:
HK$46.9 million), which mainly attributed to an increase in revenue
in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Net Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded net current assets
of HK$111.1 million (2020: net current liabilities of HK$57.5
million) and net assets of HK$111.7 million (2020: net liabilities
of HK$55.2 million). The net current assets and net assets was
mainly attributable to the profit of the year from continuing
operations of approximately HK$51.8 million and the loss for
the year from discontinued operation of approximately HK$38.5
million incurred during the Reporting Period. The Board will
closely monitor the development and operation of the continuing
operating businesses and improve the financial position of the
Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$9.9 million (2020: HK$4.8 million).

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$258.4 million (2020: HK$143.6 million), while its
current liabilities stood at approximately HK$147.3 million (2020:
HK$201.1 million), representing a net current assets position with
a working capital ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of 1.75
(2020: 0.71). The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2021, calculated as total bank and other borrowings to total equity
was 0.36 (2020: 0.5).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy. To manage the liquidity risk,
the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from time
to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E MO

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The
Directors consider the risk of foreign exchange exposure of the
Group is manageable. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange exposure of the Group and is prepared to
take prudent measures such as hedging when appropriate actions
are required.

MATERIALS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no material
acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no capital and other
commitments.

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the
University of Oxford for the research of stem cell therapy and
tissue engineering in previous year. The capital commitments
of aforesaid sponsorship agreements was discharged after the
disposal of subsidiaries in cell product and services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S T

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save for the Company’s investment in various subsidiaries, the
Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December
2021.

CHARGES OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material charge of
assets or contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
concrete plans for material investment or capital assets as at
31 December 2021. However, the Group will continue to seek
investment opportunities in line with the strategic development of
the Group both at home and abroad to promote the sustainable
and steady development of the Group.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 21 (2020: 172)
employees located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an
equal opportunity employer, the Group’s remuneration and
bonus policies are determined with reference to the performance
and experience of individual employees. The total amount of
employee remuneration (including that of the Directors and
retirement benefits scheme contributions) of the Group for the
year was approximately HK$16.4 million (31 December 2020:
HK$115.8 million). In addition, the Group may offer share options
to employees as a recognition of and reward for their efforts and
contributions to the Group.

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as set out in note 38 to the financial statements, there has
been no other material event affecting the Group since the end of
the reporting period.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

5= NEETTBRAEBN

Mr. Wang Chuang (“Mr. Wang Chuang”), aged 43, is an
executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and chairman of the
Board. Mr. Wang Chuang joined the Group in October 2019. Mr
Wang Chuang was accredited as a grade 1 health management
professional by the Hubei Provincial Department of Human
Resources and Social Security of China in May 2016 and a
psychological consultant by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of China in March 2019. He served as the
chairman of Hong Kong Bomei (China) Company Limited* (F/&18
EFE 5 A 8)) between 2008 and 2019. Between 2015 and 2019,
he acted as the chief executive officer of Changzhou XingKong
Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.* (MM EEEEERFIZ AR AF]) and
the chairman of Jiangsu Xingkong Health Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.* (I# 2 =i EE AR AB MR A R]). He served as a senior
executive of Jiangsu Zhenai Company Limited* (T#EEBR A
7)) between 2006 and 2008, a senior executive of Wuxi Shencai

and a senior executive of Changzhou Meichen Company Limited*
(BIMZERAMR A A between 2002 and 2004. Mr. Wang Chuang
is the president of the Chamber of Commerce of Changzhou
Lishui* (B MNEKE & & K) and the vice president of the China’s
National Alliance for Maternal and Child Health Development* (&
Blim 4h 2 IR B R B B). He was a committee member of the
Organization Committee of the 2017 Boao Forum for Biomedical
Sciences 017FHE LAY ESRIELMALEZ E§E) and the founder
of Bomei Angel Charity Fund* (8= X {FZEZE%).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

5= NEETTBRAEBN

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 36, is a non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in January
2020. Mr. Tsang has entered into a term of appointment with the
Company for a term of two years. Mr. Tsang was admitted as a
solicitor in Australia and Hong Kong in May 2012 and December
2013, respectively. Mr. Tsang is currently a partner of Stevenson,
Wong & Co., specialising in corporate finance and commercial
law. Mr. Tsang obtained a bachelor in laws degree and a bachelor
in commerce (accounting) degree, both from the University of
Melbourne, Australia in August 2008. Mr. Tsang obtained a master
in laws degree from the University of Melbourne, Australia in
August 2010. Mr. Tsang obtained the postgraduate certificate in
laws from the City University of Hong Kong in July 2011.

Since May 2019, Mr. Tsang has been the company secretary of
Mabpharm Limited, a biopharmaceutical company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2181). As a company secretary,
he has been responsible for company secretarial matters for
the said company. Since November 2019, Mr. Tsang has been
the joint company secretary and authorised representative of
Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd, a real estate development
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2608), where he is responsible for company secretarial
matters. Since January 2021, Mr. Tsang has been operated as
the joint company secretory of Sundy Service Group Co., Ltd,
an integrated property management service provider company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
9608). Since September 2021, Mr. Tsang has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of CROSSTEC Group
Holdings Limited, a facade management services provider
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3893). Since September 2021, Mr. Tsang has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
Sterling Group Holdings Limited, a manufacturing and trading of
apparel products company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1825).

From June 2019 to June 2020, Mr. Tsang was an independent
non-executive director of Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (“Inno-
Tech”) (a company which shares were listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange and delisted on 13 July 2021, stock code: 8202). Inno-
Tech was a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and its principal activities were (i) provision of outdoor advertising
business through different advertising media network; (i) television
advertising operation; (iii) the event management business; (iv)
seafood business; and (v) money lending business in Hong Kong.
As disclosed in the announcements of Inno-Tech dated 1 June
2020, 3 July 2020 and 11 September 2020, Inno-Tech received a
letter from the Official Receiver’s Officer dated 9 June 2020 which
stated that Gram Capital Limited has filed a winding-up petition
to the High Court of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region against Inno-Tech for principal sum of
HK$195,000. On 9 September 2020, Inno-Tech was ordered to be
wound up by the High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in HCCW 82/2020 and the Official Receiver was appointed
as the provisional liquidator. Mr. Tsang confirmed that he was not
a party to such winding up petition and is not aware of any actual
or potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a
result thereof.

for identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

5= NEETTBRAEBN

Dr. Liu Ming (“Dr. Liu”), aged 65, has been serving as
executive director and a manager of Shenzhen Jianda Information
Technology Limited since 2018, which is mainly engaged in
the development and application of sleep breathing monitoring
products. Dr. Liu graduated from the West China School of
Medicine, West China Hospital of Sichuan University in 1991
with a Doctor of Medicine degree. He served in the Department
of Otorhinolaryngology, Shenzhen People’s Hospital (Level A)
(the “Hospital”) from 1991 to 2016 and served as the head of the
Department of Otorhinolaryngology of the Hospital since 1998. He
has been served as Deputy Director of the Hospital since 2006. He
is currently a special expert of the Hospital in the Department of
Otolaryngology. He has more than 25 years of medical clinical and
hospital management experience. Dr. Liu has previously served as
a general manager of a subsidiary of the Company since May 2018
and resigned from that position in August 2019.

Dr. Liu holds several community positions including the Standing
Director of the Seventh Committee of the Shenzhen Medical
Association, the Standing Committee member of the China
International Association for the Promotion of Health Care, and the
Standing Committee member of the Sleep Medicine Branch of the
Guangdong Association of Rehabilitation Medicine.

Ms. Huo Chunyu (“Ms. Huo”), aged 48, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Huo joined the Group in
January 2020. Ms. Huo obtained a bachelor degree from Hebei
University of Economics and Business (Al 1L48 & K &), She has
over 20 years of commercial and professional experience with
companies including the Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Hebei Branch (B LgiR77)0 4t % % 17), Shijiazhuang
Haowei Optoelectronic Thin Film Technology Co., Ltd (A% 5
Bt E BRI AR A7) and Hebei Youyuan Certified Public
Accountants (AL BIRE TR EH5FN). Since September 2012, she
has been a Partner of Ruihua Certified Public Accountants (M€

BEIEZ R

Mr. Leung Man Fai, aged 64, has approximately 30 years
of working experience in accounting, corporate finance and
corporate management. Mr. Leung graduated from Manchester
Polytechnic in the United Kingdom with a degree of Bachelor
of Arts in Accounting and Finance awarded by the Council for
National Academic Awards of the United Kingdom in July 1988.
He also obtained a degree of Master of Commerce in Accounting
from the University of New South Wales in May 1990. Mr. Leung
was a company secretary of Creative Enterprise Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3992) from May 2018 to September 2021, which has
been delisted from the Stock Exchange from October 2021. Mr.
Leung has been an independent non-executive Director of Vital
Innovations Holdings Limited (stock code: 6133), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 30 December
2020 and a company secretary of MediNet Group Limited (stock
code: 8161), a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange since November 2015. Mr. Leung has been a member
of the HKICPA since June 1991.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present hereby the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period”), i.e. from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. The Group believes that high
standard of corporate governance provides a framework and
solid foundation for achieving, attracting and retaining the high
standard and quality of the Group’s management, promoting
high standards of sound internal control, accountability and
transparency to all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
and also meeting the expectations of the Group’s various
stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“CG Code”) throughout the Reporting Period, with the exception
of code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. As Mr. Wang Chuang was
appointed as both the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company, following the resignation of Mr. Wang Xuejun as
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company on
9 July 2020, such practice deviates from code provisions C.2.1 of
the CG Code. The Board believes that vesting the roles for both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company in the
same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore,
the Board considers that the deviation from the code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In
addition, under the supervision of the Board which comprised
of one executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately
structured with balance of power to provide sufficient checks to
protect the interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
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CODES AND POLICIES
Securities Dealing Code

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions as set out in the GEM Listing
Rules as the required standard for securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of
the Directors, has confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standards of dealings regarding securities transaction by
the Directors as set out on the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
Reporting Period.

Code of Ethics

The Company adopts a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely
and understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal
reporting; and accountability for adherence to the code. The
Code of Ethics is also intended to promote the ethical standards
of all the employees, officers and Directors in the workplace,
and advocate high standards of professional conduct and work
performance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Composition

Details of the membership of the Board together with their
roles and functions are posted on the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website and such information shall be updated as
soon as practicable whenever there are changes.

The composition of the Board reflects a balance of skills and
experience desirable for an effective leadership of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Board had five Directors, including
one executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Given below are names of the Directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Chuang (chairman of the Board and Chief

Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (member of the Remuneration

Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee and member of
the Audit Committee)

(member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the
Remuneration Committeg)

(chairman of the Audit Committee,
member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee)

Ms. Huo Chunyu

Mr. Leung Man Fai

Biographical details of each director are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Chief Executives” on pages
15 to 17 of this annual report.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Functions of the Board

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with
particular attention paid to the growth and financial performance of
the Group.

The principal functions of the Board are to:

° establish the strategic direction and development of the
Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

° approve annual budgets, major funding proposals,
investment and divestment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and
integrity of internal controls, risk management, financial
reporting and compliance;

° approve the nominations of Directors by Nomination
Committee and appointment of external auditors;

° ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

° monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and assume responsibility for corporate
governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Group to the executive Directors and
senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the implementation
of the Company’s strategies and policies, while the progress and
development are periodically reviewed by Directors. During the
Reporting Period, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly management updates (“Monthly Management
Updates”) in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the
CG Code. The Monthly Management Updates contained latest
financials with summaries of key events of the Group, giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom and has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying and giving recommendation suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate Board decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

The Board has also regularly reviewed the contribution of each
Director as to whether the Director is spending sufficient time to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Board.

The Board considers that the current composition of the Board,
with core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, medical science, legal profession,
marketing management, media development and merger and
acquisition, is appropriate for the businesses of the Company.
The Board will review its composition from time to time taking into
consideration of the specific needs for the overall Company and its
subsidiaries’ businesses.

The following graph provides an analysis on the composition of the
Board as at the date of this report:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for updating the Board on governance
and regulatory matters.

Training will be provided to newly appointed director to his/her
individual needs. This includes introduction to the Group business
activities, their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company will arrange and/or introduce training courses and/
or reading materials for Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills,
ensuring that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period, all Directors participated
in continuous professional development and had provided the
Company with records (if any) on their participation. The individual
training record of each Director for the Reporting Period is set out
below:

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Mr. Wang Chuang
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin
Dr. Liu Ming

Ms. Huo Chunyu
Mr. Leung Man Fai

>>>> >
sslvvllvevellvs)
00000

A. attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/
workshops organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B. reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/
magazines

C. reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relate, but not limited to
the latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable
legal and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

EE2(H&)
SFEE 3

UDH+

ARAN R WE(TARRE]) AE

) QS
RUEABEARRETEZIRNER

i3

o A

ARABEFEZEESTCAATERTHE
il EREEBRAKERK  REZIAEELR
RENREMEERTE

ARBBREEFLTHER/IXNTBEIRE
&/Iﬁﬁu,aéfﬂ%?é)?e&kﬂ&i?%ﬂ%&&&ab 2

R EEATZTANRXECA.41% - A
EEOF2EREETXRR  UEBREHNRK
FZAEREE BRREHEZTSZ2RARMK
ERBAEARYGHT - RBEHME - A
ERH2EFBEIXER  YERARAREHM

R (IE) - FEENAHE B EALE
FCEREN T

EFRFAEXRRAERS

TRxE B-Z-R
LEESLLE 2R
ZIAE L B-Z R
ERERE B-Z R
RIXWEFRE B-Z-R

B, 2B ZXSEERESERNAge &
7 B/ me R HEE

M
|0

B R AR AR, R

A, FEAAFTIENETERRERE R
M EEERENEER - BETRNGEM

EHRA - EtERERREEETENRNH
B UREENBREMEES -

2021 £ FEBEEBREEERAT 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

;LI/_/\-/-\-\

1E3= EI_—‘I

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate
activities, which is in compliance with the CG Code. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third
of the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
Directors who will retire at the annual general meeting of the
Company shall be those appointed by the Board during the year
and not being re-appointed at a general meeting thereafter during
the year, and those who have been the longest in office since their
last election or re-election.

The following sets out the responsibilities for the Directors in
relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements:

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to Shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects.

Accounting Policy

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently applied, and that all applicable accounting standards
are followed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Appointment, Election and Re-election (Cont’d)
Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent or detect fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Board and General Meetings

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals and organises additional meetings as and when
required. The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. Notice of at least fourteen
days is given of a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an
opportunity to attend.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Board and General Meetings (Cont’d)

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice time
is generally given. During the Reporting Period, the Board held 11
meetings, of which 4 were regular meetings. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held
during the Reporting Period:

Espns

Name of Directors

EE2(H&)
EFERRRAE(E)

HESFEMZEETR  RENGERERE
HBH - RBERAM  EFSHBFT2KE
& HP4RRERER - TREJENEER
HEHRRLFEERZBNR

Attendance/
Number of

Board Meetings
entitled to attend

Attendance/
Number of
General Meetings
entitled to attend

(From 1 January 2021 to (ZZ=-F—f—H=% HE BRLE HE/ BREE
31 December 2021) ZEZ-F+ZRA=1+—H) BRRAGEE EZegEYR
Executive Directors YITES
Mr. Wang Chuang TREE 1/1 11/11
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin BB L L 1/ 11/11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYHTES
Dr. Fang Jun AtEEL

(resigned on 30 December 2021) (RZE-_—F+-A=1tHEMH) 1/1 11/11
Ms. Huo Chunyu EETut 1/1 11/11
Ms. Yang Ying BELL

(resigned on 30 December 2021) (RZB-—F+-A=1+HEHF) 11 11/11
Dr. Liu Ming ZAE L

(appointed on 30 December 2021) (RZE-—F+-_A=1HEZH) 0/0 0/0
Mr. Leung Man Fai RYXERE

(appointed on 30 December 2021) (R=B=—F+=-F=+HEZT) 0/0 0/0

Board papers are circulated at least three days (or other agreed
period) before the regular Board meetings and/or other Board/
Committees meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In
addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary prepares minutes and/or written
resolutions and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The Company Secretary
also keeps the minutes, which are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO

As explained in the section “Corporate Governance Practices” Mr.
Wang Chuang was appointed as both the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company, such practice deviates from
code provisions C.2.1 of the CG Code.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and are subject
to re-election. All non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for a term of two years
and they are required to retire by rotation and re-election at the
general meeting of the Company following their appointments in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, if invited; and

o scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting
of performance.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements
of the Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Company in accordance with the written terms of reference
adopted by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall
have the following duties and responsibilities for performing the
corporate governance duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions and disclosure in the corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the above
corporate governance functions through discussion in the Board
meeting and by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
from time to time in accordance with the legal and regulatory
requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper
corporate governance structure of the Company. It is primarily
responsible for setting directions, formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group. Under
the Board, there are currently 3 subcommittees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the
Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

According to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to establish an audit committee comprising of at least three
members who must be non-executive directors only, and the
majority thereof must be independent non-executive directors,
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Audit Committee has been established since 4
July 2001 with written terms of reference which was revised on
16 March 2016 in compliance with the code provisions D.3.3 and
D.3.7 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, all members of the Audit Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

Ms. Yang Ying has resigned as the chairman of the Audit
Committee on 30 December 2021 and Mr. Leung Man Fai has
been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee on the
same day. The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least 4
times a year.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D) EEZES(E)

Audit Committee (Cont’d) ERZEEE (E)

. to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial e R EE - PHRFERBERER  UAEE
statements and the quarterly, interim and annual reports E HHERFERES  BRXEFEF
before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on: FOCERET -

()  any changes in accounting policies and practices; () EFBERER2EMES

(i) major judgmental areas; iy FEHRHAG @B

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit; (i) ABZMELERFE

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications; (iv) FHELEBRUARERREBE

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards; (v) EBFEFRAIRER K&
and

(vi) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal (vi) ETHFBE2MAMEGEM LML
requirements in relation to financial reporting; BOEEBRE

. to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and e o wT AN B 2 BA TS EL A T ERE ) K R B
risk management systems and ensure that the management EEHE UTHRREEEEERITERS -
has performed its duty to have an effective internal control HEERZ NEMIEE KL
system;

o to consider major investigations findings on risk o ZEAIE=ESeRENIEXEHEREE K

management and internal control matters as delegated ARG ETEETHAETRESHNTRNEKX
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s AEFHELEEEMNDE
response;

. to review the external auditors’ management letter, any o ERINEZHEIHEIEE KNG  ZEERE

material queries raised by the auditors to management about @ MR B KBTS EmYEYERE
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control REMNEMEAEE - URERBERE
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board fE - WHBRESE REEEMREL M
will provide a timely response to the issues raised; and =N

o to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and e BRI AEE SRt ER B -
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any EBZ%ZE € AREREH  FATERFTHENRNZ
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain  {FfA=EH ' WE AEERNBYEXZH - £ 5
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and @A 2 HEEHEEIEERESHE @ X EERS
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to f@ﬁ/ﬁl«/\ﬂ-i%f@ﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁlz“

discharge its duties properly.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has met once RBMEHME - BEREE ML LA AR AEME

with the external auditor without the presence of the management BEEIZ 21BN T @ & HEINEZSANSHE — X
of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

The Group’s results for the three months ended 31 March
2021, six months ended 30 June 2021, nine months ended 30
September 2021 and audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

The quorum of meeting of the Audit Committee shall be any
two members. During the Reporting Period, 4 meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control of the Group. The following
table shows the attendance of the members of Audit Committee
at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the Reporting
Period:
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Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Audit Committee EREESREHE to attend
(From 1 January 2021 to —T—F—A—RA=% HE AREE
31 December 2021) —E-—F+-A=+—8H) 2388
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Ms. Yang Ying (chairman of Audit Committee) SR T (BEEREZEEFE)
(resigned on 30 December 2021) (RZZEZ—F+ZA=1+HET) 4/4
Dr. Fang Jun i &iEL
(resigned on 30 December 2021) (RZEBE=Z—F+ZA=THET) 4/4
Mr. Leung Man Fai (chairman of Audit Committee) BRYEGE(FEEZEEEE)
(appointed on 30 December 2021) (R=ZB_—F+-A=THEZRT) 0/0
Dr. Liu Ming IR L
(appointed on 30 December 2021) (R—ZE-—F+-_RA=1+HEZEF) 0/0

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary. Minutes are drafted and finalised in sufficient details
and are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee, as the
case may be, for their comments and records within reasonable
time after the conclusion of the meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee

According to the GEM Listing Rule of 5.36A, the Company
has to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has been established since 22 July 2005
with written terms of reference.

During Reporting Period, all members of the Nomination
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

Dr. Fang Jun has resigned as chairman of Nomination Committee
on 30 December 2021 and Dr. Liu Ming has been appointed
as chairman of Nomination Committee on the same day. The
Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the
Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity as well
as the independent element of the Board on an annual basis
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the
Board on its proceedings and recommendations after each
meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

The quorum of meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be
any two members. During the Reporting Period, 1 meeting of
the Nomination Committee was held to review and recommend
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board.
Altogether the members of the Board bring a wide range of

EEZEE (&)
REZEE(E)

REZEEEHRNEITABSEIMAMANXE -
RBEESHHE - REZESEHRITIREH - BN
BHEFERE AR ARRZTELEHR
EE o RIBEFTENEREFTETRERZD
HMBNES  EEPRARANBEREE - T

knowledge and experience to the Board, which contributes to

the effective direction of the Company. The following table shows EB&&:% 21BN ¢
the attendance of the members of Nomination Committee at the
meetings of the Nomination Committee held during the Reporting

REIRAZEERENRERHALFIREE

Period:
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Nomination Committee REZESHEHE to attend
(From 1 January 2021 to —EBE-—-F—-A—-HE HE BRHE
31 December 2021) —E-—%+=-A=+—8) 22HE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKEBITES
Dr. Fang Jun i &iEL
(resigned on 30 December 2021) (R—F—-—F+=-RA=1+H8&F) 11
Ms. Yang Ying HEZ+
(resigned on 30 December 2021) (R—ZBE—-—F+—-A=+HEHT) 1/1
Ms. Huo Chunyu EREEXL 1/1
Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of Nomination Committee) BB L (JEEZESEE)
(appointed on 30 December 2021) (RZBZ—F+ZA=THEZT) 0/0
Mr. Leung Man Fai R pB A 0/0
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee

According to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to set up a remuneration committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors.
The Remuneration Committee has been established since 22 July
2005 with written terms of reference.

During the Reporting Period, the majority of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

Dr. Fang Jun has resigned as chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 30 December 2021 and Dr. Liu Ming has been
appointed as chairman of the Remuneration Committee on the
same day. The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at
least once a year.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

° to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the skill,
knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights,
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation
as to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
the Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate
goals and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of
those individual Directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer
contributions to Provident Fund) of each executive Director/
senior management is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, taking into account the performance of the
individual, the inflation price index and information from
independent sources on the rates of salary for similar jobs in
a selected group of comparable organisations.

Fees

Fees paid/payable to the executive Directors are determined
by the Board after considering the individual’s relative
performance against the comparable organisations. The
fees paid/payable to the non-executive Directors take
into account factors such as effort and time spent, and
responsibilities of these Directors.

Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the executive Directors and senior management.
The criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved
from certain aspects of the Group’s business activities
against targets, together with an assessment of corporate
and individual’s performance during the Reporting Period.
Bonuses payable to the executive Directors/senior
management are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board to ensure alignment of their
interests with those of Shareholders.

Benefits in kind

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.

Share option scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,
including Directors, senior management, employees,
suppliers and customers. The terms of the scheme are set
out in note 37 to the financial statements. The movement of
share options under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 14 September 2011 during the Reporting
Period is set out in the section headed “Share Options” in the
Directors’ Report and note 37 to the financial statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by
the Company in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company. The amounts paid to each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

The quorum of meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be
any two members. During the Reporting Period, 1 meeting of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the remuneration
package of the Board and the senior management. The following
table shows the attendance of the members of Remuneration
Committee at the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held
during the Reporting Period:
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Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Remuneration Committee FHEEESREHE to attend
(From 1 January 2021 to —EBE-—-F—-A—-HE HE BRHE
31 December 2021) —E-—f+-A=+—8) gHERA
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin EEESE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Dr. Fang Jun FEiEL
(resigned on 30 December 2021) (R—E-_—F+_-_A=1+8#&MT) 11
Ms. Yang Ying BEZ+
(resigned on 30 December 2021) (R—ZE-—F+-_A=1+HEMT) 1/1
Ms. Huo Chunyu EREXL 1/1
Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) Z|BR1E+ (% MZE S @3 /)
(appointed on 30 December 2021) (RZBZ—F+ZA=THEZT) 0/0
Mr. Leung Man Fai RN IEE A 0/0
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully
briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
development and accounts for such when making decisions.
Mr. Wang Chuang was appointed as compliance officer of the
Company on 29 December 2020. The compliance officer is
directly responsible for advising on and assisting the Board in
implementing procedures to ensure the Company complies with
the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant Laws and regulations
applicable to the Company.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, in each financial
year an issuer’s company secretary must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During the Reporting
Period, the Company Secretary has complied with the rule by
taking more than 15 hours of relevant training courses and
seminars. The company secretary, Mr. Lei Ming Fung is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Therefore the company secretary meet the qualification
requirements under Rule 5.14 of the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, auditor’s remuneration
of HK$1,000,000 (2020: HK$950,000) was charged to the
Group. Among such fee, HK$1,000,000 (2020: HK$950,000) was
charged for the audit service provided by MCM (HK) CPA Limited,
the existing auditor of the Company who was appointed on 7
December 2020. During the year, the fee for non-audit services
provided by MCM (HK) CPA Limited was HK$400,000 (2020: Nil).
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
internal control system includes policies and procedures and limits
of authority governing the authority level and business processes.
It is designed to help achieve business objectives, to safeguard
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information and to ensure compliance with relevant legislations
and regulations. The system is intended to manage rather than to
eliminate or eradicate risks.

The Group has performed risk management procedures including
risk identifications, risk assessments, risk prioritization as well as
risk owner appointment. Management’s inputs on risk exposures
were obtained through risk identification questionnaires.
Identified risks have been further assessed and evaluated by
the Management across the business lines. The risks have been
evaluated in terms of their impacts and the likelihood of their
occurrences. As part of the evaluation process, the risks have
been prioritized based on the evaluation results. Follow up action
on key identified risks are being taken by the management.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group has established an enterprise risk management
structure in line with the “Three Lines of Defense” model that
defines the three layers of roles and responsibilities of oversight,
risk monitoring and review as well as risk and control ownership.

The Group’s operating units are the first line of defense. They
are responsible for the day-to-day risk management and control
procedures. The second line of defense is led by the Group’s
Management who are responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring over the Group’s risk exposure. The third line of
defense comprises the Audit Committee and the Group’ internal
audit department. The third line of defense is responsible for
the independent assessment of the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems. The external auditor
of the Group further complements the third line of defense by
independently auditing material internal controls over the Group’s
financial reporting processes and reports on material control
weaknesses to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Internal Control

The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee, to provide the Audit Committee
and the Board with useful information and recommendations on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system. During the Report Period under review, internal audit
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board for
review with recommendations adopted to further enhance the
effectiveness of the internal controls. During the Reporting Period,
the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and considered them to
be effective and adequate.

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Insider Information

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is
fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Additional procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information including but not limited to the following:

(@) access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

(b)  pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by
designated members of the Group; and

(c) notification of regular black-out period and securities dealing
restriction to relevant Directors and employees.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels
to account to Shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders
or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders or
investors may be put to the Board through the following channels
to the Company Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at Suite 2310-18,
Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong
Kong;

2. By telephone at (852) 3918 9005;
3. By fax at (852) 3168 8666; or
4. By email at crmi_adm@crmi.hk

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels
to account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated
and key information of the Group available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website
offering communication channel between the Company and
its Shareholders and investors; and (v) the Company’s share
registrars in Hong Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all
share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors
with high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The
Board is committed to providing clear and detailed information
of the Group and on a timely and regular basis to Shareholders
through the publication and/or dispatching of quarterly, interim
and annual reports, circular, notices, and other announcements.

REEBERRRER

ARABRERRLREEZER - ARAME
RERBBREARREREEERARRZ
KRB BMEBRRIREERHNEARER K
RIAREEABBATREANARMELHL
RREES -

1. BEEARRRWER it AR ELD
MH o BB 1829 ERBE AN/E2310-18%

2. HE(852) 3918 9005 :
3. {EEZ%E(852) 3168 8666 : 5k
4.  EHE ZEcrmi_adm@crmi.hk

ARAMABZELEABARENRRLKES
BEARAZRE - WERBEEONTEFE
FEIRFRERE  (VBITRRAFASHBRE
RS RETHRRELEAUAMEEZER
MBHHFE  (INRNBIARARABUEER
AEBEZEFEZEM  (VARABUHE/N
NRAEEEREREEBBIRE VAR
AZBEERNBPERREABRREEMA KK
BREH-

ARFEERRBRRERREE (B SR ERE
RUBERE - EERRNERTER /T
REE  PMREERE BE RS REL
At EHABRFRGUEN - HEREEZA
KEAR -

40 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Ayt s
EERRE

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting (for which at least 20 clear business days’ notice
will be given). The Chairman as well as chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, the Directors are available to
answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s businesses at the
meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting.
He should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend.
The management will ensure the external auditor to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders
have statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and
put forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.

According to the Company’s articles of association, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. General meetings may also be convened on the
written requisition of any one member of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. The poll will be conducted by the share
registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are published
on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at Suite 2310-18, Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (ii) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/
documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed
by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and
consent of publication of his/her personal data. The period for
lodgement of the Notice shall commence no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient
time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the
Candidate as a Director without adjourning the general meeting,
Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as soon as
practicable, say at least 10 business days prior to the date of the
general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness to comply with the code provision of C.2.8 of the CG
code.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website (www.crmi.hk) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (“CRMI”) (Stock
Code: 8158) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the “Group”) are
pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (the “Reporting Period” or “2021”) and express the Group’s
commitment to sustainability. This is the sixth ESG Report of the
Group which discloses the management, policies, performance,
targets and feedbacks of the business in providing services of the
Group in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong
Kong in relation to sustainable development. The Group would
like to take this opportunity to present ESG performance to all
investors and stakeholders, and put forward the commitments and
contributions on social responsibility.

Reporting Scope

The ESG Report covers the Group’s ESG performance in the
provision of healthcare products and services in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The reporting scope covers the Group’s major source of
revenue, which is mainly office-based operation, and has excluded
its sub-contractors, business partners and subsidiaries sold
during the Reporting Period. The data and disclosures reported
in this ESG Report were prepared based on internal statistics,
internal policy documents and other internal records.

Reporting Framework

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) enclosed in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). For details of the Group’s
financial performance and corporate governance issues, please
refer to the previous sections of the annual report of which this
ESG Report forms a part of.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONT’D)

Reporting Framework (Cont’d)

The following principles guide the preparation of the ESG Report:

(1)

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to
identify material issues during the reporting period, thereby
adopting the confirmed material issues as the focus for the
preparation of the ESG Report. The materiality of issues
was reviewed and confirmed by the board of directors (the
“Board”) and senior management. For further details, please
refer to the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and
“Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the
calculation of key performance indicators (the “KPIs”) data in
this ESG Report, as well as the applicable assumptions were
supplemented by explanatory notes.

Consistency: The Group has revised and enhanced its data
collection mechanism, and has excluded its sub-contractors,
business partners and subsidiaries sold during the Reporting
Period from the reporting scope. Therefore, related ESG
data is unable to provide a meaningful comparison.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group is strongly committed to sustainability and as such it
strives to implement related principles and strategies throughout
its businesses. The Group has developed an ESG governance
structure to ensure ESG governance aligning with its business
strategy and to integrate ESG management into its business
operations and decision-making process.
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (CONT’D)

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
issues and sets out ESG management approach, strategy,
priorities and objectives. In order to better manage the Group’s
ESG performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board
regularly evaluates and determines ESG-related risks and
opportunities of the Group, as well as reviews its performance
against ESG-related targets. The Board is also responsible for
ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and approving disclosures in the ESG
Report.

To develop systematic management of ESG issues under
the Board’s delegations, the Group has established the ESG
Taskforce (the “Taskforce”). The Taskforce is composed of core
members from various departments, which facilitates the Board’s
oversight of ESG matters. The Taskforce has the responsibility
for collecting and analyzing ESG data, monitoring and evaluating
the Group’s ESG performance, keeping track of and reviewing
the progress made against the Group’s ESG-related targets,
ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations,
assisting in conducting materiality assessment and preparing ESG
reports. The Taskforce arranges meetings regularly to evaluate the
effectiveness of current policies and procedures, and formulates
appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance of
ESG policies. The Taskforce reports to the Board periodically,
assists in assessing and identifying the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities, ensuring the implementation and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.
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OUR VALUE KIHHEE
To become a global To become one
leading force in medical of the market leader in
innovation aesthetic medicine industry
REASREBRIER in PRC and Hong Kong

Rl - SIERIR
BEE

AR B R EB XD BEITEN
MmEEEE L —

Strive to enhance health
and improve quality
of life
BB E MR ALERY
EEFfRRRE
To become one of the

market leader in healthcare
product; and services

To develop cutting-
edge medical products
and technologies with a

focus on innovation in in PRC and Hong Kong
regenerative medicine AR B R BB A REREmR
BB B R A n B RISV TSRS E 2 —
BT - ETNEAERE
opvi3-Ei

A value-creating business — this is what the Group aims to be. KA —KEIEEENAR @ EAKEHEEX
The Group achieves this goal by leveraging the biological science #B1E « REBEB N /EETEVEIZ2HRES
research competence to create a positive impact to the world. The 88 - A FREEEEMNFE - AEE/H
research contributes to society by catalyzing bio-pharmaceutical T TETHEIEY B EFEMER - AL EED
research and development (“R&D”). The services make biological  E Bt o I8 AR %5 7] B U468 52 4 W) B i i 5 72
sciences research more efficient by shortening the time required FAIHERERE @ R EMEIEBRITUE - LF
for biotechnology research procedures. Since the Group is brave K ' BREBREIFHNHBEH - AEEKNERZ
in taking innovative steps, it has contributed to breakthroughs HEEEBEREVBIZMRRE  THTELEE
in medical and biological science research over the years — thus ~ #I{RZE{E(E °

living out the Group’s value.
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D)

The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model

The ESG Report provides detailed explanation with regard to the
Group’s corporate social responsibility model, shown in below,
on different aspects, including stakeholder communication,
environmental protection, employee welfare, health and safety, fair
operation, social contribution and maintaining sustainability

Stakeholder Communication

K EBE

Environmental Protection
RIFEHRE

Employee Welfare

EEEF

Health and Safety

BERZE

CRMI
i 4 B

BAMNEEGE)
FEEWEEHEEFRE

RE HEehEaREFANTATEAEE T
ﬁ%ﬁ%éfﬂﬂ%’*” : a%%ﬂﬁ%}%L REMR
CREBN  REERZE  QAFTEE HE

@Eﬁ&iﬁh—ﬁi??"}:#ﬁﬁ

Fair Operation
N ME

Social Contribution

HEERE

Maintain Sustainability

ERUEEER
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D)

The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model
(Cont’d)

The Group continually strengthens communication and
relationship with investors. Designated senior management
personnel keep close communication with shareholders and
investors through emails, teleconference, one-to-one meetings,
participation in broker forums and non-trading roadshow or other
forms, so as to ensure shareholders and investors getting latest
information of the Group in a fair and timely manner, helping
them make investment decisions. The Group will give a detailed
and timely response to inquiries from investors. The Group has
conducted materiality assessment to identify material matters
in the Group’s businesses which have significant influence on
economy, environment and society, and are most important
for stakeholders. In accordance with evaluation results, the
Group hopes to make the commitments and undertake the
responsibilities to all stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
Stakeholder Communication

The Group understands that the long-term success is due to the
commitment to the sustainability of businesses and the diligent
and innovative employees who deliver quality services to the
clients and business partners and make worthwhile contributions
to several stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has consolidated and identified different groups
of stakeholders that are related to its main business. These
stakeholders include customers, employees, government, media,
shareholders and investors.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT’D) EnENZE(E)
Stakeholder Communication (Cont’d) & EE(E)

The Group regards stakeholder’s opinions as a key to the AXAREBRZRAEZHEMENBE R 2RI LA
long-term success and sustainable development. The Group %E%*JEE']F%L NEE G E B ¥ 1S 0
will increase the involvement of stakeholders via constructive $5{HEHRE - UEREHELEE o
conversation in order to achieve long-term prosperity.

Stakeholder Communication Channels Expectations
0 E BEEE )]
Customers ° Company news updates ° Product and service responsibility
®F yNSIE SR EmEkREEE
° Conference ° Customer information and privacy
= protection
RERETER RALE
° Customer service hotline
BRI EAR
° Email, facsimile and phone contacts
B FEREFEBKZTA
Employees ° E-mail o Health and safety
B8 EEH RS
° Mobile communication application ° Equal opportunities
BB FEge
o Regular meetings o Remuneration and benefits
Ble i K k@ A
o Career development
EXEER
Government ° Cooperate with the government and ° Business ethics
B regulatory authorities on compliance g

inspections

RABMAMREERBNARRE

° Complying with relevant laws and

regulations
e  Conference ETREBEERER
A*ﬁ
= iR

Email, facsimile and phone contacts
B FERKEFEBKTA
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Stakeholder Communication (Cont’d)

Stakeholder Communication Channels

BHE BEEE
Media ° Company website
1R NG bR
o Social media network
R4
Shareholders ° Annual general meeting
and investors IRRBFRE
REREREE
° Company news updates
N EE
° Email, facsimile and phone contacts
BI FEREFBEIN
o Stock Exchange’s website:
announcements, notices, reports, etc.
BESIATABNE - ik - B RS
° Press releases
FEAM
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In hope of understanding the views and expectations of
stakeholders on the Group’s ESG performance effectively, the
Group conducts the materiality assessment regularly. With
reference to the Group’s business development strategy and
industry practices, the Group identified and determined a list of
material ESG issues. The Group prepared a questionnaire based
on the list and invited relevant stakeholders to rate the potential
material issues according to their influence on stakeholder
assessments and decisions and their impacts on the economy,
environment and society. The results of the survey were analyzed
to develop a materiality matrix. The materiality matrix and the
identified material topics were reviewed and confirmed by the
Board and management and disclosed in the ESG Report.

BFOENSEGE)
HHEEBE(E)

Expectations

e

o Giving back to society
E): g

° Environmental protection
RERE

o Compliant operations
BREE

o Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

BT HBARER

° Disclosing latest information of the
corporate in due course

MERBRAEEER

° Financial results

B RAE

° Corporate sustainability
ARHELE

EEMFMML

AEEFHETEENENMG  BRTEEN

HBAKERSE HERERRAMNEREAH
2-AEE2RAGEBERRBERLITRE
7l BHIABITHERE HEREGNEER
BRE - ASBEREZFERBTRAERS
VHFRBEFNE  REEEEELRFHEN
mRREOTE  UREHEE RERTEH
TE PEENBEEZBETHD o RMOMT
HEGEREFETEENER - E2HEER
BALMNEEZRE  THEFSNEEERT
R WERE HEREARESPRE -
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONT’D)

EHFFE(E)

The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG I\ THEEHMAEFEHNEEIEE e kE8

issues: som
The Group's Materiality Matrix for the Reporting Period
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. Emission Control B iZ il

. Waste Management & & 1) 12

. Energy Consumption #E8E

. Water Consumption 7K

. Indoor Air Quality =R ZRmE

. Environmental Protection 3RiF{R &
. Climate Change Sa{& &1t

. Employment Practices {&{#&1& 4l

. Employee Welfare {& & & #ll

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

18

Health and Safety fi& i % &

Development and Training Management 3 & & 55 31| & F8
Labor Standards # T %8|

Product and Service Quality & f M RS mE

Protection of Customer Information (R = &k}
Anti-corruption X &75

Social Contribution 4+ & & &

Stakeholder Communication #1{5 #& /& &

. Maintain Sustainability #3% Al 58 35 =
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CONTACT US

The Group greatly values stakeholders’ opinions and suggestions.
Stakeholders can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
Report or the Group’s performances in sustainable development
by emailing to: crmi_adm@crmi.hk.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
A1. Emissions
Emission Control

The Group recognizes the importance of good
environmental stewardship and is committed to protect
and conserve the environment. The Group hopes that
the concept of environmental sustainability lies in all
aspects of daily operation.

Specifically, the Group strives to balance quality, price
and environmental impact when consuming resources
and materials. The Group closely monitors the energy
consumption and water consumption through the
concept that it is part of the communication priorities
to educate staff on the rationale of environmentally
friendly choices, and actual applications.

As principal operation is based in the PRC, the Group is
principally subject to the PRC environmental laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group
strictly complied with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations and was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations that would
have a significant impact on the Group, including but
not limited to the PRC’s Environmental Protection Law
of the PRC (F# AR A FBIIRIZRZER) and Hong
Kong’s Water Pollution Control Ordinance (k35 & i
figf3).

The senior management team are delegated to perform
the maintenance of the Group’s sustainability. The
representatives of each operational department, will
actively manage business in an environmentally and
socially responsible manner. The Group will meet
annually to review the key processes and identify
possible aspects underlying the operation of such
department. The senior management team will
also discuss any significant aspects identified, and
design measures accordingly. These measures will
be documented for reference to ensure effective
implementation.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)
A1. Emissions (Cont’d)
Maintain Sustainability

The Group’s ultimate goal is to minimize the adverse
impact of the businesses on the environment by
controlling and reducing its emissions so as to ensure
the sustainability of the environment as well as the
Group’s business growth. The efforts being made
throughout the Reporting Period can be concluded as
follows:

A.

Rk (&)

Al. B (&)

HIFHTFERE

AEENRE B IR E R AR D
W A EBHREN TN ERE
RIE BRRRAFERR  AKE
EBREFEER -  AEBERREHH
FRYER) THEAREELAT -

Practices
iR

1.  Avoiding generating waste that polluted the environment.
8 B A5 R M B R

2.  Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules and requirements of environmental protection.

BTBRBRERBAER  JEZR REREX

3: Creation of an environment for sustainable development.

Bl AT RS

4.  Provision of training for employees on the protection of the environment.

RREBRHERBRERENE

5.  Reduction in the consumption of various resources including raw materials and fuel.

WMAOEBERNER - BERME R

6. Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and reusing as much as possible of the waste.

MABERERYEL - WERN EHEETERMERER

7. Using environmentally friendly materials as well as design, technology and raw materials capable of

conserving energy and reducing waste.

EERARAME - AREREHORRIN D BEREYNRG - AR FAREEK LR B2

W RET « BT SRR

8. Vigorous promotion and implementation of the recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding
negative effects due to the Group’s development on the environment.
ANEEMEHEERSE  ROMEBEERARNEENERERFEKNEEZE
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A1. Emissions (Cont’d)

Maintain Sustainability (Cont’d)

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted
comprehensive inspection regarding the environmental
management situations of all controlling subsidiaries to
facilitate the improvement and promotion of controlling
subsidiaries on environmental management, and
demanded the completion of its construction and
implementation with stipulated deadlines, ensuring
effective sustainable development of the Group. During
the Reporting Period, there was no environmental
pollution incident in the Group.

Air Emissions

Due to the Group’s business nature, it was not
involved in any industrial production nor possess
any manufacturing facilities or motor vehicles during
the Reporting Period. Therefore, the Group did not
generate a material amount of exhaust gas emissions
during its operation.

A.

Rk (&)

Al. B (&)

HIFUFEREE)

RBEHE - AEREYAEERK B
NAMRBEERRER T ZEAR
L REZERHNBARERRERS
ENRERRES  RATKEEER
BREMNE - A RERAS B & A #F
BER - NREHE  AEELES
EEMRRISRENF -

BER BB

ERNAKENRBENE KA BHR
EATIXREES R EAREREHK
B - Ft - ARERHSHELE
REEBEEEKRERERIMN -

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2021
“ETERE - g REAWNE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)
A1. Emissions (Cont’d)
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) are mainly
resulting from electricity purchased and consumed
during operation of the Group. Due to the business
nature of the Group, GHG emissions were mainly
attributable to energy indirect GHG emissions. The
Group targets to conduct annual activities (such as
seminars and workshops) to raise awareness of GHG
emissions reduction among employees.

The Group’s GHG emissions performance during the
Reporting Period was summarized as follows:

Indicators!

et 3

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions

HE— - EEAEREBHEWN

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions
HE_— - fREERE RN

— Electricity & 71

Total GHG emissions BEEREHHEE

GHG emissions intensityd J3 == { AL HE p = & s

A.

Rk (&)

Al. BERY) (&

BEREB(BERE])HK

RREEAERBIHR(EBE2) X2
KERANEEEBHBRENINEENH
M ERARENEKUEE - BER
BHREI2RAEREZAEREL
W ARBEFESFRITHNERT
G EFES  NESEEHRLAEE
REBBEREV AR o

REB RN HE BE )R = REBBEMR
WA

tCOe -
M A(LREE

tCO,e 20.80
WS EE

tCO,e 20.80
M_S{RER
tCO,e/ 0.07

million revenue
ME — | (b Aik
B2/ Aaelz
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A1. Emissions (Cont’d)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Cont’d)

Notes:

GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and is based on, but not limited
to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare
an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange,
the “Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC
Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5) and the 2021
Sustainability Report published by the CLP Holdings
Limited.

tCO,¢ is defined as tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.
The Group recorded a revenue of approximately

HK$282.90 million in 2021. This data is used for
calculating other intensity data.

A.

RE (&

)

Al. B (&)

BERBHMY (E)

GEE
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A, BRE(E)
A1. Emissions (Cont’d) Al. B (&)
Waste Management BEYEE
Non-hazardous waste BEEZEY
The Group promotes the “3-R” concept which aims AEEHIT[3-RIEL §ERIE
at minimizing, to the extent practicable, the amount AITHE R TR A EBEEFEE
of wastes produced during the course of the Group’s BREPAEENEEVHE -

business operations.

Concept Practice
(@ Reduction Reducing the volume of daily wastes generated to the extent practicable, by
Rl using alternative materials, processes and procedures.
FREAERME REMEFRYBATHNERTRIESE R BEEYH
E0gs
(b) Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning unused materials.
fBRE A BIRBRAELENERY KEREREROME
(c) Recycling Converting waste materials into usable materials or extracting useful
BERBE substances from them, such as recycling packaging material and paper.
BENERSAAMEEEFRREAYE  fINBERBEBREME KK
9
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A. IRIE(E)
A1. Emissions (Cont’d) Al. BELY) (4E)
Waste Management (Cont’d) EEYEE(E)
Non-hazardous waste (Cont'd) EEEEY (B)

Due to the Group’s business nature, non-hazardous
waste produced in the Group’s operations was mainly
composed of office waste and paper disposal. To
minimize its impact on the environment, the Group
targets to conduct annual activities (such as seminars
and workshops) to raise awareness of non-hazardous
waste reduction among employees.

The Group’s non-hazardous waste disposal
performance during the Reporting Period was

summarized as follows:

Non-hazardous waste

BEBRZEY

AEEZEBHERE  EBELN
BEBERMIEOARABEYMERR
RAK - RBERIEREFE A%
BB SFRTVNERTHEGEFR
B URSREREHRSEZEZYD

=77 24
R ©

AEERRENENEEZEZYRE
RIEHAAT

Office waste ¥ Q&)

Paper disposal & & 45k
Total non-hazardous waste EEREEYHE

Non-hazardous waste intensity fE=EREE Y2 E

To demonstrate the Group’s dedication to waste
reduction, it has implemented paperless office. The
Group encourages its employees to utilize email and
online signature system for document review, signing
and communication where possible, reduce the
frequency of printing and/or copying, and reduce the
use of office paper. If necessary, employees are also
encouraged to re-use paper and conserve paper usage
by printing double-sided to the extent practicable.
Furthermore, the Group provides drinking water supply
equipment for the use by employees, meetings and
visitors. Employees are encouraged to bring along their
own reusable cups to reduce the use of plastic bottles.

kg AT 262.00

kg AT 450.00

kg 2 712.00

kg/ 2.52
million revenue
AT/ B8R

RBRAEERDBEZYORL
AEEEREREAND - AEE
HBEECREFHHERR LBZRR
MERN - RERERH XM - BAIIE
R/ RZEER - LR BRRER
Mo mBBARE  AEETTSEREES
EOEAITERERARREAER
SIUEDN o pEON » RERBEKAKRME
PHES  e2BSEEFEM - 38
BEBHAIBEERAONE - BDE
FHRER -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

Al.

A2.

Emissions (Cont’d)
Hazardous Waste

Due to the Group’s business nature, no material
amount of hazardous waste was generated by the
Group during the Reporting Period. Nonetheless,
the Group has established relevant guidelines for
governing the handling and disposal of hazardous
waste. The Group will separately manage and store
hazardous waste produced and engage a qualified
third-party professional to handle such hazardous
waste.

Sewage Discharges into Water and Land

Considering the Group’s business nature, sewage
discharged into water and land is considered
insignificant. As the Group’s wastewater is directly
discharged into the municipal sewage pipeline
network for further processing, the amount of water
consumption of the Group represents the wastewater
discharge volume.

Use of Resources

The main resources used by the Group during
operation are electricity, water and paper. In order
to be an environmentally responsible corporation,
the Group strives to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of resources consumption in the
operation process for minimization of wastage and
avoidance of excessive usage of precious resources.

Energy Consumption

The energy consumption of the Group was primarily
attributable to the consumption of electricity. The
Group targets to conduct annual activities (such as
seminars and workshops) to raise awareness of energy
conservation among employees.

A.

I& iﬂ: ( ma )
Al. BEY) (7&)
BEZEREY

AZ2.

ERNAKENERBEE - ERXREH
MY BELEAEREERY - EEW
b AEEEREEEREMOEER

EFERBES AEESHEL
MABEESBRRMETEREENRET -
VEFAEBNF = TEXARRE
SEBREERY -

18 7k R 1 #h BE 3L 05 K

ERIAEENOEBMEE - mAKRL
HEBERES KA R BT RE - AR
AEBESKEEZEHEATBRSKE
B UEE—FEREE  MAEENA
K=ERSKEERE -

gREH

AEEEXRBBREFEANTIRZER
REN  KEAR - BSRBEIRER
BEENER  AEBRNRSEKB
Eqﬂiﬁf}%ﬁﬂ’ﬁkwﬂﬁz# CEER
PRE BEBEERZEER -

BEF B #

AEBEMEREEEIBREE NN
#o AEEHNSFRTHIERT
D %ES - LIRBEEHHENR
% -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A. IRIB(E)

A2. Use of Resources (Cont’d) A2, EFIEH (&)
Energy Consumption (Cont’d) BERHFE(4E)
The Group’s energy consumption performance during AREBERRE B RLRHERIEE
the Reporting Period was summarized as follows: s

Types of energy

RER 3 5

Direct energy consumption & 8ER 4 #E

Indirect energy consumption 5% 828 54 £
— Electricity & 77

Total energy consumption &R EEHAE

Energy consumption intensity §&JR 4 &% &

kWh F B i -
KWh F E B 53,328.00
kWh F R 53,328.00

KWh/ 188.50

million revenue

TERE, B8k
The Group also continuously implements “green” BEAREBEEBU NS EE
concept with the following measures: [4 6 1B
° Office power saving: Policy to turn off lights when ° WMAEEHSE EMEFHEBHE

not in use, air-conditioning temperature control,
printer and computer hibernation management,
shut down of lights and computers during lunch
break, etc.

° Increase equipment efficiency: Efficiency .
Arrangements for equipment to undergo
regular maintenance in order to improve
their performance and dispose high energy
consumption equipment as part of the efforts to
conserve resources at source.

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021

M¥ENE - ZFRREES - FIE
BEEKAEKERE - FHRER
RENERS

RITREAEE - REERBHETT
EHRBEARFTEREREE
BFEERE  BHRRBELE
HEIR -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2021
B R HEREARE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A, BRE(E)
A2. Use of Resources (Cont’d) A2, BIREH (&)
Water Consumption Fok

The Group encourages its employees and clients to
develop habit of conscious water consumption so as
to reduce water consumption in its operation site. Due
to the geographical location of the Group’s operations,
the Group did not encounter any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. To reaffirm the Group’s
commitment to water conservation, the Group targets
to display posters or other promotional materials in
prominent locations at its offices to further encourage
and promote water conservation.

The Group’s water consumption performance during
the Reporting Period was summarized as follows:

Water consumption

AXxE

AEEZBEREMNEFEKBER
IKE)BIE - DA & E 5 P ey A K
B -ERAKEXRBOHELE - XN
SEERBESRENKTHLES
B {E I FERE - ﬁ?ﬁiﬂﬁgl%ﬁﬁi’]ﬁﬁ
IKEEGE - ARBEEERIER
RUBRMEBFIEMBEEER E
— B AR AKX

REE RIS HAEAAKERRB N
™

Total water consumption FAA7K42 =

Water consumption intensity FA7K%Z &

Use of Packaging Materials

Due to the Group’s business nature, it does not
consume a material amount of packaging materials
during its daily operation.

m? 3 7oK

ms/ 0.38
million revenue

MR B &R

BEHEEH

ERNAKBNEBHE  REELE
T REHREREBRMF -
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Environmental Protection

Environmental protection is the responsibility of
every staff in the Group. Although the impact on
environmental and natural resources caused by the
Group’s operation is limited, the Group is committed
to sustainable development and delivering its premium
and quality products in a manner with minimal impact
to the environment resulting from its business activities.
Apart from those details disclosed in the section
“Emissions” and “Use of Resources” above, the
Group remains conscious of its potential impact, and
therefore actively adopts relevant preventive measures
and industrial best practice to further minimize the
potential impact on the environment and natural
resources.

Indoor Air Quality

As indoor air quality is directly related to the health
and comfort of the Group’s employees, the Group
regularly monitors and measures the air quality of its
operation sites. During the Reporting Period, the indoor
air quality of the Group’s operation sites has remained
satisfactory. Air filtration systems are installed and
maintained periodically so as to ensure the efficiency
and effectiveness of such systems. As a result, the
Group’s indoor air quality remained at a satisfactory
level.

RIB(E)

A3 }‘—;iﬁ&5/||\’ /“/\

RER#E

RERBEEASBESEEENE(E -
BEASBELEHRELRERERY
BER AKBDBRORAFESR
B UESEBHRBENTERD &
BEwrs  BEHEEER KR LEX
[BER | K [ BIR A R ER 4 FR HY 48
Eioh - AKRBERABD B st gElE
M2 - E AR AUAR B TR B fE e
MITHEREME  NE—FRLHIR
BREBABERNBELE -

EFEAEREE

FRNEREEERBRIAEERE
REZEAETE - RAKETERERE
BEMNZERER - RIREME - &
SEREEMNEANTRERGRE
ﬁo$EI#“ ZRBBES L
SEHEITHE  BEREEXFRHOUE
&?&%Oﬁt AEBNERNERE

RRFFEEBKTE o
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) A IRIF(E)
A4. Climate Change A4, TIREE
Climate change is already happening and causing RIESCIEERA  WHHRSE
devastating consequences to different parts of the K ZEETE - EA—REEEHA
world. As a responsible company, the Group strives 7 AEBEWMBIXTMES R ADIRE
to reduce its environmental footprint as elaborated in EE . NEBERES(EHAEBRER
previous sections, and acknowledges the potential FE - [HIt  AEE R KRIER

impacts of climate change to the Group’s businesses.
Therefore, the Group has been actively collecting
stakeholders’ comments, and regularly updating
and implementing relevant policies as well as taking
climate-related risks into consideration during its
risk management processes to better mitigate these
impacts and adapt for a sustainable business model.

Physical Risks

Extreme weather events are expected to occur with an
increasing severity in the future due to climate change.
These events, such as typhoons or floods, can pose
significant safety risks to its employees and damages
to its equipment. The Group has formulated relevant
policies for identifying and mitigating significant
potential climate-related issues.

The increasing severity of extreme weather events such
as extreme cold or extreme heat, storms, rainstorms
and typhoons, could lead to an increased risk of power
shortages, interrupt the supply chain and damage the
Group’s assets, disrupting the Group’s operations
and resulting in an adverse impact on the Group’s
financial performance as well as increasing the cost
of repairing or restoring damaged sites. These events
could also disrupt the work of employees and even
cause casualties. As a countermeasure, the Group has
formulated Business Continuity Plan for emergencies
so that loss can be reduced or avoided when extreme
weather events affect the Group’s operating sites and
to reduce the time required for the Group to resume
its business operations. The Group will identify these
risks and prioritize those that may have a significant
impact, and to take precautionary measures based
on the significance of impact of the risks. At the same
time, the Group will examine the possibility of a change
of business model to reduce or avoid these serious
effects on business operations.

H&%%Tﬁ%,mi EHEHME A
FAEGR - LHERARERBES &
REEHANERMAZE  UEZZ

HMEBETE  BRAFENEER
= o
ERmE

EREZTE  KRRBFEHLEN
MR B B A R KSR E T - Bl
HKERKERREFTREANRZE
Rk - TEEKBRE -  AEEDEH
ERBBRABR MEHEENEX
RIBHEEE -

BERFIGEH - AR EHLRERAFR
mARREGAREE  AIREHAE

BENER HEETE N EEERR
MERIEN - TEAKREZE /K
SENMBRETFRINTZE - ME

BRREXBSHH KA TSN -
ZEEMNAIEE TERETIF B
EERABEBT - RIFEYE A&
BEEREEZESBER T EBEE MG
g UBEEERARSHRZEARE
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A4. Climate Change (Cont’d)

Transition Risks

Due to the increasing awareness of climate change,
the Stock Exchange has required listed companies
to enhance climate-related disclosures in their ESG
reports, which may result in increased compliance
costs. Failure to meet the climate change compliance
requirements may expose the Group to risks of claims
and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also decline.
The Group will regularly monitor existing and emerging
climate-related trends, policies and regulations to
avoid reputational risks due to delayed response. In
addition, in order to reduce the Group's environmental
impact and to comply with the requirements of the
Stock Exchange, the Group has set targets to reduce
energy consumption and GHG emissions. The Group
will continue to assess the effectiveness of the Group’s
actions to address climate change and enhance its
resilience against climate-related issues.

Nonetheless, the Group will continue to monitor related
developments as climate risks are directly related to
its operations and businesses, and thus the Group is
committed to addressing any such issues effectively if
they should arise.

A.

Rk (&)

Ad. sRIREZ L ()

BHmE

HEHRIERE(CMETTERS - B
RFRELMARAERE  HERE
AR E PN BERIREEORKE - Al
BEBEARBAIE I - REEH B
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B. SOCIAL B. #&
B1. Employment B1. 1E1&
Employment Practices EEE A

The Group has set up a comprehensive set of human
resource policies stipulating rules on recruitment,
compensation, training, welfare, promotion guidelines
and dismissal. In order to safeguard benefits for
the employees, the Group abides by Labor Law of
the PRC (FZE AR LB LB E), Labor Contract
Law of the PRC (F#E AR LME LB & RE), the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (& & &
&) and employment laws applicable to relevant
jurisdictions where operations are located. Labor
contracts or employment agreements are entered into
between the Group and the employees. Moreover,
the Group regularly monitors information related to
employment to prevent non-compliance with labor
laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance or breach of relevant laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

In order to increase efficiency in hiring and to ensure
consistency and compliance in the recruitment
and selection process, as well as to promote fair
opportunities to each candidate, the Group has
detailed recruitment policies in place. An objective
and carefully documented recruitment process will
ensure that any discrimination risks are minimized
and will provide the Group with the best possible
chance of identifying the right candidate. Regardless
of nationality, gender, age, race, religious belief
or disability, candidates with relevant professional
qualifications and working experience receive equal
consideration for employment.

AEEERER - FHH - FI

A~ BTHESI R ER L — Eiﬁﬁﬁ
ANEREE - Z%f%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ R
;‘%%:FEP%E/\E CMEI 8% -
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R Mo B TS A B Y B A B
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SEEREERIY - WS ARETEH
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MAERRERBR
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B1. Employment (Cont’d)

Employee Welfare

The Group provides its employees with mandatory
provident fund, business trip allowance, birthday
allowance, wedding allowance, body check, and
holiday allowance. Employees are entitled to national
holidays, company holidays, annual leave, funeral
leave, marital leave, maternity leave and sick leave as
well. In addition, the Group also adopted measures,
such as distributing gifts and benefits, as well as
holiday lengthening, to further enhance the benefits
system and its staff satisfaction.

The Group actively recruits talents in a fair and
equitable manner through social media such as online
platforms and newspaper advertisements. Across
the Group’s diversified business portfolio, as at 31
December 2021, the Group has a workforce of 21
employees. Of which, 85.71% of them are full-time
employees and part-time employees accounted for
the remaining 14.29%. All employees are employed
in Hong Kong and are located in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Breakdown of the Group’s employees
by gender and age group was summarized as follows:

By gender
RIERIE 5

Male
B
Female

poglid

20

B. #&

(%)

Bi1. IE1E(#&

ESEF

$%Eﬁ§?xﬁ%%ﬂ B - ERAE
B A BERL - BERE - BRRAR
B2 - 1@%%7?2.%&?%@
B a8 F& - BR-BEK-
ERMBERE ot - REBIRK
HUIR 2548 o S 48 A A R IE R REIE 15

)ﬁ'r@ CE—SRABRNEHEREERE
AEEREBAHAR - TakRERS
EHGHBRAFREMBEAS - K
SEEE-_E-_—F+-HA=+—H
BHE21EEE  ER85.7T1% AT R
EE  #BT1420% A% BEEAS
HEEHZERES  WOMHRESR
KRB R o REE R 8 IR R & F
B AR B D VBB AN T

By age group

REEAERIE 5

[} <30

m 30-50

m >51

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2021
B R HEREARE

B. SOCIAL (CONT’D) B. #== (&)
B1. Employment (Cont’d) B1. 1E1E (#&)
Employee Welfare (Cont’d) ESHEF (&)
During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover RNBEEE - AEBEMES TELR

rate* of the Group is approximately 97.56% and the
composition was summarized as follows:

Employee turnover rate of the Group (%):

2F%l1§§un%$ %) :

4 /297.56% © B RB M T ¢

By gender &1 5l &%
Male S 1%

Female 1%

By age group ZFE#R4A R &5

Below or equal to 30 305%a A T
31-50 31 &508%

Over 50 5055 A £

By geographical location Z#ti E 2|5
Mainland China 1 B APz

Hong Kong &8

Note:

4. The employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the
number of employees leaving employment during 2021
by the average number of employees at the beginning
and the end of 2021.

100.00%
97.14%

200.00%
89.66%
57.14%

97.56%

GEE
4. EERKEDE-E—FAHRR

MEEAE  RU-ZZ-—F¥9H
FEMNFIHEEABESH -
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B2. Health and Safety

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to the
support of the Group’s precious asset, employees.
To create a safe working environment, the Group
has established safety policies on the prevention
and remediation of safety accidents, and detection
on potential safety hazards in workplace, measures
include regular safety inspections and launch of safety
promotion and safety training.

To mitigate the health and safety risk during operation
processes, protective equipment would be provided to
operating employees, such as protective suit, glove,
mask etc.

Employees are briefed and trained with safety
and environmental knowledge regularly to ensure
that everyone understands the risk of the task
they are involved in, has safety and environmental
consciousness and is familiar with safety and
environmental precaution measures. Emergency
and evacuation procedures for fire were established
for timely and orderly response to any major safety
accidents.

The Group monitors the workplace safety continuously,
and performs a regular examination of workplace safety
hazards. To ensure the effectiveness of fire emergency
control, the Group appointed a third-party institute to
test its fire alarms and inspect its fire safety equipment.

B. = (&)
B2. #BFEHZTE

22  BRNEFENTERBEHNE
BASENEEEE —EE  ZEHE
B o BREYLTEMIERE A58
EHELEHERUBH EAELYE
$E§( AR TESMEEL 2R
L2 REEEREHENTLEERENE
BEEHNEFEMEI -

ABREERBREFNEEREZE 2R
% EREITCRERRIERS
ZZM% iR FE O05F-

HZMNEEHECHESLERIRE
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B2.

B3.

Health and Safety (Cont’d)

The COVID-19 pandemic crisis has been putting
pressure on the Group and its employees during
the Reporting Period. As part of the COVID-19
countermeasures and to prevent the spread of the
virus, the Group has implemented stringent infection
preventive measures to protect its employees. The
Group closely monitored the health of its employees
every day by checking their body temperature,
providing sufficient rapid antigen test kit and alcohol-
based hand rub in the offices. The Group also required
its employees to consider using other methods such as
work from home arrangement or online video meeting
software for interviews or meetings. Employees are
advised to wear masks and avoid physical contact
(such as shaking hands, hugging) and crowded places
when they are required to meet people or work outside
in their local community.

During the Reporting Period, there was no occurrence
of any fatal accident (2020 and 2019: no fatal accident
as well), nor was there any lost days due to work injury
in 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with health and
safety-related laws and regulations that would have
a significant impact on the Group, including but not
limited to the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases (/1 % A R £ 1 B B % 5 [ )48 7%) and Fire
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (#° %
AR HAEIEL %) of the PRC and Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (%% & RIERE%HI) of Hong
Kong.

Development and Training
Development and Training Management

The Group recognizes the importance of empowerment
through development and training in the Group.
Equipping employees with the appropriate knowledge
not simply benefits the long-term development, but
society as a whole.
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Development and Training Management (Cont’d)

The Group has devised training schedule to provide
different types of trainings to employees every year.
The categories include personnel, finance, medical
instruments, environmental management and fire
safety. Through education and training, the Group
can enable its employees to enhance their personal
qualities, strengthen their working skills and reinforce
the team performance. Moreover, employees can grow
with the Group by realizing their own values on the
basis of their personal interest and expertise.

Besides, all employees are subject to regular
performance and career development appraisal
in order to ensure the efficiency and quality of its
employees and to foster the stable development of the
Group. During 2021, approximately 90.48%° of the
employees have participated in trainings for an average
of approximately 8.29 hours®. Their participation in
different trainings by gender and employee category
are presented as follows:

Indicators
BE

By gender &% 5 &l 5

RERZIEE (F)

AEEBFEEIEIFERK - ZH]
TREEEINITREE EoBEREA
=% BESW - RREE B
ikeEEnm - ARETRBHE
AR RAEEBEARE - HEETHE
TEE - EINBEBKAER - MESIRA
ERNEARBREROER FERA
FEE EAKE-RKE-

S AEBFBEETES EHE
BEMBRERRETN  UEREEZT
ERR N REEE R AREBBAFE
BR T —F4H90.48%5EE
205 - FHZ8.209/ N6 o &
HrIkEEERE D EELNTR
BEIRBERAT ¢

Percentage
of trained Average

employees’ training hours?®

ZIMEEMGET  FIEDIRRC

Male 5% 5.26% 1.00
Female 1% 94.74% 8.65
By employee category 1% & ¥ 5| &l o

Management &2 [ 15.79% 7.00
General employees — & 1& & 84.21% 8.69

Notes:

5 This percentage is calculated by dividing the total
number of employees who took part in training during
2021 by the total number of employees at the end of
2021.
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B3.

B4.

Development and Training (Cont’d)
Development and Training Management (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

6. The average training hours per employee is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours during
2021 by the total number of employees at the end of
2021.

7. The percentage of trained employees by category is
calculated by dividing the number of employees in the
specified category who took part in training during 2021
by the total number of employees who took part in
training during 2021.

8. The average training hours by category is calculated by
dividing the number of training hours for employees in
the specified category during 2021 by the number of
employees in the specified category at the end of 2021.

Promotions are made in accordance with the needs
from the Group’s business development and the
employees’ competence. Vacancies of the Group’s
internal management positions will be filled up internally
by promoting the most qualified employees within the
Group. This offers the employees with the opportunities
for promotion and enhances the efficiency of the
Group.

Labor Standards

As the Group strictly adhered to the Law of the PRC
on the Protection of Minors (FfZE A R A& KA F
ANRF#EE), the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
and other laws and regulations in all aspects, the
Group does not permit forced labor or child labor
under any circumstances. In pursuant to the Group’s
comprehensive set of human resource policies, all
new employees’ identification card should be checked
before they are recruited by the Group to ensure their
age meets requirements of laws and regulations and
prevent the Group from accidentally hiring child labor.
Should the Group discovers any violations, they will
be dealt with in the light of circumstances in order to
eliminate such practices.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance or breach of relevant
laws and regulations in child labor and forced labor.
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B5. Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are the Group’s long-term business partners.
Stability, safety and effectivity of product quality is
directly influenced by the selection of suppliers. To
effectively manage the supply chain, the Group has
developed a comprehensive system for assessing
new and existing suppliers. The Group has further
regulated the operational procedures of evaluation and
approval for main suppliers, and clarified the suppliers’
qualification, selection principle, quality evaluation
methods, evaluation standard, and approval procedure
for main suppliers. In addition, with the aim to promote
environmentally preferable products, the Group has
included suppliers’ environmental impact of production
into its supplier evaluation process’s criteria, and
such criteria is made aware to the Group’s supplier
along the supply chain. The Group requires all of its
major suppliers to strictly comply with local laws and
regulations in all aspects so as to further eliminate
its supply chain’s environmental and social risks. In
addition, the Group requires its major suppliers to
regularly review their operational compliance relating to
areas such as human rights protection, occupational
health and safety and environmental protection so as to
identify any potential environmental and social-related
risks along the Group’s supply chain.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged
10 major suppliers, which 8 of them are located in the
PRC; 1 of them is located in Hong Kong; and 1 of them
is located in the USA.

Agency Contracts Management

The majority of the Group’s businesses and product
distribution are relied on agents to introduce and
promote the products to hospitals for sale. Therefore,
the management of the agents is very crucial to
the Group. To avoid inefficiencies in agents and to
strengthen the sales performance, the Group has
tailor-made contracts for each agent in accordance
with its selling ability and respective target customers
in the PRC. The contracts clarify the province or
area in which the agents are responsible for, as well
as the hospitals they cooperate with. The contracts
also list out the compensation they may get, and the
sales amount that is targeted to be achieved during
the contract period. The Group will evaluate agents
from time to time following their performance against
the contract terms. The Group believes that the
management of agency contracts can help to control
the quality of agents and to implement the business
strategy efficiently.
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B6. Product Responsibility B6. EMEF

The Group strives for products and services excellence
across all the business activities. The Group’s
equipment is calibrated externally by professionals
and internally when necessary to ensure its accuracy.
Qualified personnel is assigned to each equipment for
the daily management and maintenance, to ensure
equipment in-use by the Group using is in good
condition. Damaged equipment will not be used until
they are fixed by the suppliers.

Also, listening to customers about their experiences
with products and services is the key to the Group’s
success. The Group constantly interacts with
customers by reviewing their enquiries and feedback
so that performance can be tracked regularly.
Also, the Group is dedicated to provide technical
supporting services to customers. Training is provided
to employees in offering comprehensive services to
customers.

Product and Service Quality

Being a responsible corporation, the Group strictly
monitors the quality of its services and any potential
safety issues in using its services.

The Group is committed to complying with local rules
and regulations on service and product safety, and
protecting consumers’ health on using its products.
During the Reporting Period, there was no product
recalls due to health and safety reasons, nor was there
any material written complaint received by the Group.
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B6. Product Responsibility (Cont’d)

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to safeguarding intellectual
property rights and has developed and implemented
different practices to ensure that intellectual property
rights are protected. The Group strictly prohibits any
purchasing of pirated products or unauthorized usage
of photos provided by the third-party manufacturers.
In addition, the Group regularly verifies whether photos
or pictures used by the Group are copyrighted. In
addition, the Group will not adopt designs that are
not authorized by the third-party manufacturers and
conducts verification on whether designs being used
are authorized on a regular basis. The Group attaches
great importance to ensuring that all propaganda or
product designs of the Group do not involve plagiarism,
and requires all employees to have a sense of
intellectual property rights.

Advertising

The Group understands its customers’ rights and is
committed to providing accurate product and service
information for customers in connection with their
purchase or consumption decision. The Group requires
careful review of advertising materials to protect
customers’ interest.

Labelling

The Group is committed to providing sufficient and
accurate information and product label to customers
and considers that it is an extended responsibility
of product safety management. The Group provides
clear instructions, including the danger, precaution
measures and emergency treatment of products and
contact information.
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Protection of Customer Information

The Group has stringent measures in place to protect
operational and customer data privacy. Non-disclosure
agreements are signed by all suppliers. A systematic
approach is implemented internally to ensure that only
designated employees have access to sensitive and
confidential information.

In view of the customer confidential information, the
Group has implemented a strict confidentiality system.
According to the system, the Group should enter into a
confidentiality agreement with the client who provides
the confidential information. Meanwhile, for ensuring no
betraying confidential matters, risk control department
of the Group is responsible for investigating the
confidential information to delimit secrecy scope and
ascertain information security. The Group also provides
employees with education regarding confidentiality,
and specifies the confidentiality obligations of
employees in employee manual.

Methods of Redress

Although the Group ensures the quality of its
products and services, at the same time, it requires
that products with quality issues should be returned
or compensated in accordance with terms of sales
contracts. Return, recall or compensation of products
is required to be offered to all customers who are
affected with consistent treatment and procedures.

The Group values customers’ feedback, as this is
the driving force for its continual improvement. Once
a complaint is received, the Group will take prompt
actions to investigate the issue and carry out remedial
action plans.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material issues on product health and safety,
advertising, labelling, privacy matters and methods of
redress, and no products and service-related material
written complaints were received.
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B7. Anti-corruption

To ensure honest, loyal behavior and ethical conduct
among employees, the Group has adopted code of
ethics and anti-corruption regulations, so as to enable
employees’ conducts and behaviors to be monitored
throughout daily operations. The Group performs
annual self-evaluation to look at the implementation of
code of ethics and relevant regulations, the objective of
which is to ensure the thoroughness and consistency
in actual operations and management practices, with
a view to balancing and safeguarding interests of the
stakeholders and establishing long-term partnerships.
The Group has zero tolerance towards any form of
corruption, bribery, extortion, money laundering and
other fraudulent activities in connection with any of
its business operations and employs independent
auditors to carry out external audits on the Group,
aiming at preventing corruptive behaviors within the
Group through internal supervision and external audits.
Corporate governance training, which covers the
anti-corruption provisions outlined in the said policy,
knowledge on anti-corruption legislation as well as
necessary skills to handle ethical dilemmas at the
workplace, is provided to raise employees’ awareness.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the
Group, including but not limited to the Company Law of
the People’s Republic of China (2 A R £ HME A 5)E)
and Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery
(AR IEEERITAMNEITHE) and Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance ([ 1= 8 B& & ) of Hong Kong.
During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded
legal cases regarding any forms of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering brought against the Group
or its employees.

B. = (&)
B7. RE’S

REREENRE  DHITR/RER
B AEBERMERTAMRE
AR NERBMTTAREENE
HEREETARIER - AEEHE
TEE ARG A REER TR ME
FRIRPIHEERR - £ B M EERER
ERZENEEEINFIEM 3D
BT M T & RRER D H QM E
REIRBBHEBER - AEE I
MBS - FERE - AReF - 08 - BA
Ro B At SR EL AT (] 6 75 208 A R O FRRF
AR TRRREE  YZRREBIZH
A AR BIETTINEDBRAZ - FEIAE
BAREE RIMNDEZ - ILEAKE
WHIREBTR - RFRELEER
BIAMRSETINERES  RAEE
REABRINENORESHRE  RE
FEEREMBUAREE TESERE
R W BIEE

RIFEHE - AREE AR BERE
RERBM - BGF - MEFRAEEN
BEREAAMBA R AREELAS
AREENBR - HPBEETRRF
B EARKME R BERBERE
LEAEBRITRANETRAEAREL
R LERSRR R0 - NS BHE - #
EHHASEREERNOERMTZAN
PR - G - BRFRAEARMNGESR
REREMN -

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2021

T FRR g NERHE

B. SOCIAL (CONT’D)

B7. Anti-corruption (Cont’d)

B8.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption
awareness and encourages them to report any
corruption or fraud activities. The Group promptly
conducts inspections and takes necessary measures
while protecting the identity of the whistle-blower to
prevent any conflict of interest or behaviors that will
bring harm to the Group and the stakeholders.

Community Investment
Social Contribution

With the market’s focus on corporate behavior, the
short-sighted behavior of maximizing financial returns
to shareholders is no longer the management goal of
business. The Group stays proactive in fulfilling the
responsibilities as a corporate citizen of the community
and has developed relevant policy in promoting and
encouraging its employees to participate in social
welfare activities, in particular, focusing on improving
community health.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed
to extending the sustainability efforts from own
operation to the wider society. The Group believes that
staff members are the core value makers in the society.
The Group will continue to pool the strengths and
commit itself in increasing community participation,
balance of interests of stakeholders and strives to build
a corporate-community relationship that promotes
harmony, security and prosperity.

Although the Group has not established and
documented a specific community policy, social care
is deep-seated in the Group’s corporate culture.
Employees are encouraged to participate in various
charitable events and community service.

During the Reporting Period, in view of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group didn’t arrange or participate in
volunteer services to protect the health and safety of
employees.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BESHE

The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of
healthcare products and services. In accordance with Schedule
5 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, further discussion and
analysis of these activities including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing by the group and an indication of
likely future developments in the group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 14
and notes 42 and 45 to the consolidated financial statements of
this report, which form part of this directors’ report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the Reporting
Period as well as discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance under review and the material factors underlying
its financial performance and financial position are provided in
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 7 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 14 of
the annual report and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 102 to 104.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 195 to 196.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.
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RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$Nil (2020: HKS$NIil).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 107 to 108
and note 28 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Chuang (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Fang Jun (resigned on 30 December 2021)
Ms. Yang Ying (resigned on 30 December 2021)
Ms. Huo Chunyu

Dr. Liu Ming (appointed on 30 December 2021)

Mr. Leung Man Fai (appointed on 30 December 2021)

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Leung Man Fai and Dr. Liu Ming shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Tsang Ho Yin shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as director at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are set out on pages 15 to 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
the date of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and GEM Listing
Rules.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Group was
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period, each Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/ she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties
of his/ her office or otherwise in relation thereto, save for matters
in respect of his/her fraud or dishonesty.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those set out in note 38 to the financial statements and
under heading “RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” in this report,
none of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 14
September 2011 is for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees of the Group and is valid for ten
years from its adoption until 13 September 2021.

The movement of share options under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 14 September 2011 during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was as below:

I\% Eﬁ *-"_
R-ZB-——FNA+MB ARRRANBIRE
HE TEEMRMASEEERAERES
RERE BERPETFRNAR EE-%
——FNAAT=ARL-
RBE_T-_—+-_RA=+—HILEFE "
REAR_ZE-——FAA TR RM 2 BARES
AT ZBRERSHIT

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2021
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRC-F1oAST-ALEREZBRRAD(MRARHANSARERENR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat as at
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price (Note) exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2020 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2021
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS)  Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
] H-2-%% Hog=-%
EE BREZ t2A=t-8  ERE/ TZE=t-8
ke (W) SERERR HRTE 1 ] B BENAE BAY  HAAE
AEKAL  BEAH (Bm) () WOEHH BRLBREZAGRTH (i) ik (B (H3t) (Mit) ik
Others 16/9/2015 045 9.00  For Grantees other than new employees who have joined the Company for 3,302,000 NIL NIL NIL NL 3,302,000
HpAL -1 less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company on i i i &
AAT/A hereevan daeofgran (as the case may be):
il BHARR AR~ R AR
5 (HERRE):
1st Period 1st Options
£-5H ERED:
2nd Period 2nd Options (together with any 1t Options
£-fA5H which have not been exercised during the
m Period)
ShBRE( zaﬂf‘” [EBREAARE
LEAE-HERE)
3rd Period 3rd Options (together with any 1st and 2nd
£-(A5H Options which have not been exercised
during the 1st Period and 2nd Period)
E-hBRE(EERE - EAERE_A
IREATRENE-HRE-R
BE)
4th Period 4th Options (together with any 1st, 2nd and
ERU 3rd Options which have not been exercised
during the 1t Period, 2nd Period and 3rd
Pe riod)
miRERE(EARE - BHR £-@
SRRE=EERRATRZANE
E-(RE=(ERR)
5th Period 5th Options (together with any 1st, 2nd,
ER 3rdl and 4th Options which have not been
exercised during the 1st Period, 2nd
Period, 3rd Period and 4th Period)
ERnERE(ERAE-RHRE 2=
28 E=EERRERESEEAGE
JEE-f E2f - £=(RERS
BiRE)
2021 £ HEBEB2EBRERAL R 81
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

B (E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2021
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRC-EtoACt-ALEEZBRRAB(RRAAHENEARRRRERE)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding

exercise asat asat

Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December

Eligible price (Note)  exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2020 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2021
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS)  Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
e it 2 A\ZR-%

e BREL t2A=t-8  EBRE/ tZA=t-8

ke (i) SENERR HATE 1 ] BfiE  ZENAE BAN  HAME

A8KAL  BEAH (B7) (1) WfEHE BRLBREZIORBH (M) (h3t) ) (Hi3t) (M) (B3t)

For Grantees who are new employees who have joined the Company for
less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company on
the relevant date of gran (as the case may be):

FREERIRE AR
RFFE7 ﬂEE’ )l /75

/* N e Tl

16 March 2017 to
15 March 2018
(ooth days inclusive)
(the “Period 17)

E-tEZAT/BE

_T‘_/‘\ﬁ ﬂfﬁﬁ
(REEEMA)
(T1))

16 March 2018 to
15 March 2019
(both days inclusive)
(the “Period 2')
“3-\fzAt7HE
“5-hEZATEA
(BEEERA)
([5H2))

16 March 2019 to
15 March 2020
(ooth days inclusive)
(the “Period )

E-NEZRT/BE

o= ZZEZRt1A
\E}EEJ: #A)
(TE3))

16 March 2020 to
16 March 2021
(ooth days inclusive)
(he “Period 4')

ZECEESATNRE
ZE-EZJ1HA
(BEEERA)
(T84l

82

Up to 20% (‘Options 1)
55 20%([ B )

Up to 20% (‘Options 2') (together with any
Options 1 which have not been exercised
during the Period 1)

RH20% ([ B2 (BRRBR B AR
2 fEmERE)

Up 0 20% (‘Options &) (together with any
Options 1 and 2 which have not been
exercised during the Periods 1and 2)

5% 20%([RRES)) (ERNR1 R
AT EAEREIR)

Up to 20% (‘Options 4') (together with any
Options 1, 2 and 3 which have not been
exercised during the Periods 1, 2 and 3)

R520%([BRE4)) (ZRAHH 2R3
RATTE EMERE  2R9)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2021
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BECRC-EtoRCT-ALEECBRERE(RROAMANTERERERR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding

exercise as at asat

Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31December  Granted/ 31 December

Eligible price (Note)  exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2020 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2021
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS)  Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
FEE H-8-%% HoB=-%

fiFE BREZ tzR=t-R  ERE/ tZA=t-8

fEE () BERERR HATE 1 ] BfiE  2ENS BAN  HAME

AERAT REAE (B7)  (F1) THRHE BRLERE TARIH i) (h3t) ) (M) (M) (B3t)

16 March 2021 10 Up 0 20% (together with any Options 1, 2,
15 September 2025 3 and 4 which have not been exercised
(ooth days inclusive) during the Periods 1, 2, 3 and 4)

TRC-ESATREE RP0N(ERREE 23R4
TROREAATER HAAEZEMERE 2 3Ry
(BfEERR)

9 September 2020 to Upto 20% (‘4th Options") {together with any 1st,
8 September 2021 2nd and 3rd Options which have not heen
(ooth days inclusive) exercised during the 15t Period, 2nd Period and
(the “4th Period) 3rd Period)
CRIREMANBE  BHn(ERNERE]
ZE-ERANA (ERHE-E5R -
(nAEERR) E-EBERE=A
([EmiEsE) IEHANRZER
£ E-hik
£=hihiE)

9 September 2021 to Upto 20% (‘5th Options’) together with any 1st,
8 September 2025 2nd, 3rd and 4th Options which have not been
(ooth days inclusive) exercised during the 1st Period,

(the “5th Period') 2nd Period, 3rd Period and 4th Period)

E-EARARE RSN(EDNERE]

CECREARAR (ERRE-EER-
(PEERRR) £-f5R =0
(&R SRREDALRAR

£ 4
ERfERE
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Blre(E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2021
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRC-F12A=t-ALERZBRRAB(NRARHANSALERENR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price (Note) exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2020 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2021
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS)  Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Notg) (Notg)
HEE ] H-2-%% g%
ke BREZ t2A=t-8  ERE/ TZA=t-8
ke (N3 SENERR HRTE 58 B BENAE BAN  HAME
2EEAL  BLAH (B7)  (Bn) WfEHE BRUBREZIORBH (M) (h3t) (hst) (hi3t) (M) i)
Others 9/9/2016 0.291 5.82  For Grantees other than new employees who have joined the Company for 3,905,200 NIL NIL NIL NL 3,905,200
AT ZT5F less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company on i : & &
NARA the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):
FREERABE AR BNAZLTIR T Z BRANFERR
ZRAFEZHEEN M (EEIME) -
the First Period the First Options
E LT S-hEkE
the Second Period the Second Options (together with any
£ [5R First Options which have not been
exercised during the First Period)
E-hBRE(ERNE - EHR
AT A% —-HiRRE)
the Third Period the Third Options (together with any
ER First and Second Options which have not
been exercised during the First Period and
Second Period)
EohBRE(ERAE-ERERE—MA
IREATR ENE-HREZR
BiE)
the Fourth Period the Fourth Options (together with any
ERUIA First, Second and Third Options which have
not been exercised during the First Period,
Second Period and Third Period)
SMhEREERAE-EHE 5=
IRRE=EERRATRLENE
E-RE=hERE)
the Fifth Period the Fifth Options (together with any
EnE5R First, Second, Third and Fourth Options
which have not been exercised during the
First Period, Second Period, Third Period
and Fourth Period)
SRhBRE(EANE—E8E 2=
28 E-EERREREREEATR
JEAE-H 226 F=HRENG
Efe)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2021
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BECRC-EtoRCT-ALEECBRERE(RROAMANTERERERR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding

exercise as at asat

Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31December  Granted/ 31 December

Eligible price (Note)  exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2020 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2021

persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS)  Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
e it 2 AZR-

fiFE BREZ tzR=t-R  ERE/ tZA=t-8

fEE () BERERR HATE 1 ] BfiE  2ENS BAN  HAME

AERAT RERH (B7)  (F1) THRHE BRLERE TARIH i) (h3t) ) (M) (M) (B3t)

For Grantees who are new employees who have joined the Company for
less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company on
the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):

RREERL BB ZEN (BUAK AT RS~ BRANATER
HATFEZFER )T Z(BERRE):

9 March 2018 0 Up 10 20% (‘Options I')
8 March 2019 5500( &R
(ooth days inclusive)

(the *I Period)

“5-J\EZANAE
Z2-NE=ANR
(RHEEERA)

(%R

9 March 201910 Up to 20% (‘Options IF) (together with
8 March 2020 any Options | which have not been
(ooth days inclusive) exercised during the | Period)

(the “I Perioc B520%([BREN) (BRAER

CR-NESAMBE RRARZEMERE)

ZECREZA)R
(PfEERMA)
(F0))
9 March 2020 o Up 0 20% (‘Options II") (together with
8 March 2021 any Options | and Il which have not been

(ooth days inclusive) exercised during the | and Il Periods)

(the “II Period) S500%([BIREN]) (ERREHIRI
CRCEECAAEE HATRZEMERERD

Z32-£=8)\R

(REERMA)

(880 ))

9 March 2021 to Up 0 20% (‘Options V") (together with

8 March 2022 any Options |, | and Il which have not been

both days inclusive) exercised during the 1, Il and IIl Periods)
e “IV Period’) 5500 ([ BIREN ) GERAEE 1RI
—-EZHARE  HEAlC ;

1 3

 (BfEERAA)

([5Rv]
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Note: By virtue of a share consolidation of the Company whereby every 20
of then existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company was consolidated into 1 consolidated
share of HK$0.20 each. The share consolidation took effect on 16
May 2019. The number of shares and exercise price under the share
option scheme were adjusted accordingly.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules related to securities
transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange:

Long Positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

BrE(E)

MisE R ARBETROEH - NRBRA P HEF
F20RBRO.O1BTHEBEITRRETRNDE
HAEIBRTR0208B THEHRKRN - BHDEH
RZZE—NAFRA+BER - BRESSIE
THRME B RITEEMMERERE -

EERRETRASRRD R
B zERRRE

RZTE-_—F+_A=+—8 " THEEER
REEBITBRABERAAG REEE ZE(EE
RBEABEFESTEBFRBAEGR([FH R
BI&H ) EXVED) 2 kfn - BERMODKESRF -
BB I RIEES ()VRIEFESH KB EAIEXVED
FTR8DIBEME NN T REE AP 2 R FOK
B(RRESREELARBEKRABRBEGEEE
ESRIEHE R R OKE)  SVBEESF R
B EE I B 35218 780 ARG AT il = 20 it 2 i 2k
SRR ¢ (i) IRIEGEM EM AR AIES.4625.67
BREBESHETRELAX G AT EANERRT
MU 2 SRR -

R
REAARGREBR P 2 25

Aggregate long
position in the

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Directors/ shares and the issued

chief executives Capacity underlying shares share capital

RRAR HERT

HERA 2 BRABL

EE/BETRABESR £ TR At

Wang Chuang Beneficial Owner 538,670,000 18.87%
TH EnBEAA
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long Positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

==

RS STHRASRRS KA
BRpzERRAE (E)

HE (&)

REARARGREHEK G 2 #a ()

BREXHBEBEEN R_ZET_ZFTF+ - A
=+—H BEESEIARAESTERAER
AR REBHEE(TEERES P EEME

XVER) Z B fn - ABRIRRD sk EH P A AR 1E
BE)RBEES RBEIRAIEXVIBETRSD I
AMEARANR Rz EEIAR(BERSE
BIEFE S M BERGA BIE SO E (S G 1EH
BtEm %Mﬁ)fmmﬁ%f%&%EMW”
3E2{EBRAZIGHI M ERIORE & 3K
(i) BRIHEGEM E MR R 5,46 E5.67IKEHES
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

Long positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

RERXGARGREBER G 2

Aggregate long
position in the

FTERREEMATRRD KRIEE

Approximate
percentage

shares and of the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital
RBRHRAEE HERTRE
BEgE/ 28 e R 172 R B R
All Favour Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 582,547,765 20.41%
2EERARAF (M) BREAA
Dai Yumin (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation 582,547,765 20.41%
F2E(ME) BXEEERA
Beneficial owner 875,000 0.03%
ERfBA
Li Ren (Note 2) Held by controlled corporation 582,547,765 20.41%
Fg)(Miz2) BXEEERA
Beneficial owner 21,380,000 0.75%
BREBA
Deng Shufen (Note 1) Interest of spouse 583,422,765 20.44%
RS (PEE) Fo B R
China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 157,744,659 5.57%
FERFEEEERHERAR(HE3) BREEERA
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 157,744,659 5.57%
(Fi3E3) BXEERA
Changzhou Yaoguang Enterprise Management Held by controlled corporation 262,400,000 9.19%
Consulting Limited Liability Partnership* (Note 4) RS AEHEA
ENmRACRERRACRER(EREHE)
GELY
Lei Changjuan (Note 4) Helﬁ by controlled corporation 262,400,000 9.19%
e ETY BXEEERA
Changzhou Minxing Enterprise Management Held by controlled corporation 160,600,000 5.63%
Consulting Services Limited Liability A EEEE
Partnership* (Note 5)
BHMRREEERERAAREEBLR
(AR&R)(Ki:ts5)
Kong Yu Dong (Note 5) Held by controlled corporation 160,600,000 5.63%
HER(Ki5E5) BXEEERA
Wang Xiaogang Beneficial owner 149,450,000 5.24%
FER| BREAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes:

All Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) is beneficially owned as to
(i) 40% by Nat-Ace Wood Industry Ltd. (“Nat-Ace Wood Industry”)
and 20% by Honour Top Holdings Limited, of which Nat-Ace Wood
Industry is ultimately and wholly-owned by Mr. Li Ren (“Mr. Li”) and
Honour Top Holdings Limited is ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Dai
Yumin (“Mr. Dai”), and (ii) 40% by Mr. Dai. Moreover, All Favour has
been the beneficial owner of 582,547,765 Shares. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Dai, Mr. Li and Nat-Ace Wood Industry are deemed to be
interested in 582,547,765 Shares in which All Favour is interested in.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Dai was granted 17,500,000 share
options by the Company under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 14 September 2011 entitling him to subscribe
for 17,500,000 Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per Share,
subject to the terms and conditions of the share option scheme of
the Company. The number of Shares to be issued upon full exercise
of the said share options and the exercise price per Share were
adjusted to 875,000 Shares and HK$9.00 per Share with effect from
16 May 2019 as a result of the share consolidation of the Company,
details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 15 May 2019. Assuming the share options granted
to Mr. Dai has been exercised in full, Mr. Dai shall hold an aggregate
of 875,000 Shares as beneficial owner. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Dai, together with his deemed interests in All Favour, was deemed to
be interested in an aggregate of 583,422,765 Shares, representing
approximately 20.44% of the issued share capital of the Company.
All Favour has pledged its interests in 157,744,659 Shares in favour
of Optimus.

Ms. Deng Shufen is the spouse of Mr. Dai Yumin. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Deng Shufen is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Dai Yumin is interested or is deemed
to be interested.

Mr. Li personally owns 21,380,000 Shares. Mr. Li is therefore
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 603,927,765 Shares,
representing, approximately 21.16% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

FTERRREMATRARG KRR
Wtz e ()
e (&)

REARARGREHEK G 2 #a ()

GEE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

3. Based on the disclosure of interests form both filed on 14 December
2020 by China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd (“COAMC”) and
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (“COAIF”), Optimus Prime
Management Ltd. (“Optimus”) has a security interest in 157,744,659
Shares. Optimus is wholly owned by COAIF. COAIF is wholly
owned by China Orient Asset Management (International) Holding
Limited (“COAMI”). COAMI is owned as to (i) 50% by Wise Leader
Assets Ltd. (“Wise Leader”) which is wholly owned by Dong Yin
Development (Holdings) Limited (“Dong Yin”); and (ii) 50% by Dong
Yin which is wholly owned by COAMC.

By virtue of the SFO, COAIF, COAMI, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and
COAMC are deemed to be interested in 157,744,659 Shares held by
Optimus as security interest.

4. Changzhou Yaoguang Enterprise Management Consulting Limited
Partnership* (“Yaoguang”) is a limited liability partnership established
in the PRC and is managed by Ms. Lei Changjuan as the general
partner and the shares were held by Yao Guang (Hong Kong)
Enterprise Limited as nominee for Yaoguang. Accordingly, each of
Yaoguang and Ms. Lei Changjuan is deemed to be interested in
262,400,000 Shares.

5 Changzhou Minxing Enterprise Management Consulting Services
Limited Liability Partnership* (“Minxing”) is a limited liability
partnership established in the PRC and is managed by Ms. Kong
Yudong as the general partner and the shares were held by
Zhong Min Starry (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee for Minxing.
Accordingly, each of Minxing and Ms. Kong Yudong is deemed to be
interested in 160,600,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors
are not aware that there is any other party (other than the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company (i) which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (i) which
were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES” in this report, at no time during the
Reporting Period were the rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or chief executive of the Company or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights or benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as set out in note 32 to the financial statements and
elsewhere in this report, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction during
the Reporting Period which is required to be disclosed under the
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements. For those related party
transactions that constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has disclosed such connected transactions
in accordance with the disclosure requirements in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in this section, other
related party transactions disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements are not considered as connected
transactions, or are exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company, or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 7% of the Group’s total turnover for the year. In
particular, sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 2% of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 71% of the Group’s total purchases for the year. In
particular, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for approximately 65% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates (as
defined under GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 18 to 42. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to
make short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group’s business is subject to the relevant environmental laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not subject to any major environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties, administrative or disciplinary actions.
For more information in the environmental policies of the Group,
please refer to the ESG Report included in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong in all material respects.

The Company has adopted the CG Code. During the Reporting
Period, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code in relation to
separation of the role of chairman and chief executive officer. For
further information in respect of the corporate governance of the
Company, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has maintained good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with them. During the Reporting
Period, there was no material dispute between the Group and its
customers, suppliers and employees, respectively.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors acknowledge the importance of stakeholders’
engagement, and would make effort to share the Group’s results
with shareholders by dividend payment. The Directors will
determine the portion and actual amount of distribution out of
profits based on various factors, including but not limited to the
Group’s financial condition, funding for R&D, cash availability and
future plans.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has three members, comprising of our
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Man Fai
(the chairman of Audit Committee), Ms. Huo Chunyu and Dr. Liu
Ming. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.20 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Octal Capital Limited as its compliance
adviser, which provides advices and guidance to the Company
in respect of compliance with the GEM Listing Rules including
various requirements relating to the Directors’ duties. Except
for the compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and the compliance adviser dated 12 August 2019,
neither the compliance adviser nor its directors, employees or
close associates had any interests in relation to the Company
which is required to be notified to the Group pursuant to Rule
6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Pursuant to the said compliance adviser agreement, the service of
the compliance adviser has been ceased on 11 August 2021.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

AUDITOR

The Company changed its auditor to perform audit works for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Reference is made to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 November 2020, the
ordinary resolution in respect of the proposed re-appointment of
BDO Limited as auditor of the Company was not passed at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) held on 31 August 2020 and the
office of the Company’s auditor has become vacant with effect
from the conclusion of the AGM. After careful consideration,
the Board has resolved to recommend to the Shareholders the
appointment of McM (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
to fill the vacancy arising from the retirement of BDO Limited. The
ordinary resolution to appoint McM (HK) CPA Limited as auditor
of the Company until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company was duly passed on 7 December 2020 at
an extraordinary general meeting.

Save for the above, there were no other changes in the
Company’s auditor in the past three years.

McM (HK) CPA Limited will retire, and being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of McM (HK)
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Chuang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 April 2022
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MCM

McM (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA REGENERATIVE MEDICINE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
102 to 194, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

The key audit matters we identified are:

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of
trade and other receivables

Refer to notes 19 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statement.

The Group had trade and other receivables with gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$74,314,000 and HK$215,037,000
respectively, and provision for allowance for expected credit
losses of approximately HK$74,106,000 and HK$18,126,000
respectively.

In general, the trade and other receivables credit terms granted
by the Group to the customers ranged between 60-180 days.
Management performed periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables and the sufficiency of provision
for allowance for expected credit losses based on information
including credit profile of different customers, ageing of the trade
and other receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and amount of realisation of
outstanding balances, and on-going trading relationships with
the relevant customers. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected credit
losses for the allowance for expected credit losses assessment.

We focused on this area due to the allowance for expected
credit losses assessment of trade and other receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.
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Qur procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2021 included:

- Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the
Group has implemented to manage and monitor its credit
risk;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the
trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2021 to the
underlying financial records and post year-end settlements
to bank receipts;

- Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade and other receivables past due as at year
end and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and

- Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit losses
provision methodology, examining the key data inputs on a
sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness,
and challenging the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The Audit
Committee assists the directors of the Company in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

100

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

EREBEFERTENETETBES - BN
EBRTEXHALE  RETEXREEE - 1M

I

BRI M EER KR ERM BTG AW
BREAFEEAERRAVER - Rt &
HITEABEFAREELRR  ARER
FRRMEENER;TER  EREMAERH
At - ARHGFRIBE S R BR  E &
BER  EBRRM - EBRARZES 2
£ FUEREER A M B E AR
AR PRt e [ B 7 O R BE B3R R BE AR T 2K
MEAHERRAER -

TRREEFT MO ARG - AR RE
BENETIEF  EENYFHEEER
MEHNEREERRER -

HEARRRESAHEASHBERNIBE K
REH AR A REN AR -

HEERAKBELCLZGHERNIREEE
HaEw - RIZFMERMNETRE  BER
EFEEESEXABRAARNEANET
M EeMmA SR ESRENKERLERE
NEEERRE - WRBEMBREFEERKR
THEEMN AV EERBEINRETIRR
EREIBGRAVBRRTHOBEBEKE -
SERHNEETR - RIRMIEERT H A
MER - ZfNERISERZBEHRE A
IEFTES M BETRE - A - KRRFIRRK
BRAEEHERETREFELE

HEFAVMBRR(BEREEN)WERE
UGN - BEEBNMAT - A REGEEHBR
REETERRBBIZMER -

RESRBENERAXEFADNUKESE
BAER  BENERNEE UEHEaY
BHEBRER - RMBEKERTNT
M EEMAT - HPIERBE B R AL
BfE-

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy.

McM (HK) CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number PO7560
24/F, Siu On Centre

188 Lockhart Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

27 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reEmREMEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 iz T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—EBE--F —ECTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET FHTT
(Restated)
(&E5))
Continuing operations BREREER
Revenue Wz 6 282,897 182,136
Cost of sales $HE KA (215,170) (140,328)
Gross profit ER 67,727 41,808
Other income, gain and loss HMRA - = Rk EE 6 6,082 16,032
Selling and distribution expenses HE R D HFAX (4,392) (6,747)
Administrative and other expenses TR E M (43,054) (40,201)
Impairment loss on allowance for B 5 e W IE B AR EE B
trade receivables - (663)
Recognition of expected credit loss on R E b ENFIETE R EE
other receivables &8 (2,688) (36,762)
Fair value gain on financial assets BRAFERIERIER
at fair value through profit or loss (MZAFEREZRVIE])
(“FVTPL”) ZEREEZ A FERS - 2,340
Write off of deposits for acquisition LGN R e
of subsidiaries - (100,000)
Finance costs BB R 9 (736) (17,9086)
Reversal of provision for expected Hig s mEmE
credit loss due to subsequent TEERE B IE B
settlement 41,353 -
Profit/(Loss) before tax from BEREEE CBRBA
continuing operations = (EE) 10 64,292 (142,099)
Income tax expenses Fre i 13 (12,465) (12,380)
Profit/(Loss) for the year from BFEREERZAEE
continuing operations = (ER) 51,827 (154,479)
Discontinued operations BRI E
Loss for the year KEEEIE 8 (38,479) (284,349)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reEmREMEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
s ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
(Restated)
(&E7))
Profit/(Loss) for the year REERF,(FHE) 13,348 (438,828)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to: UL N A T E{EAREE
w=wEL(BR)
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ZS DN 13,348 (404,226)
Non-controlling interests JEPE IR AR B A - (34,602)
13,348 (438,828)
Other comprehensive loss after tax: (R ZEHME2EEIE :
Items that may be reclassified HEiEAEEH 7R B m L
subsequently to profit or loss: IHH -
Exchange loss on translation of BMEBINEEI B ImER 2
financial statements of foreign bE I B8
operations (1,139) (16,224)
Item that may not be reclassified HER[RET A B AR e
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIHE :
Financial assets at fair value through R A FEREMEEIA
other comprehensive income IR (MM A FEREM
(“FVTOCI”) ZEHBAFIE 2 e REE - (21,482)
Release of translation reserves upon =N
disposal of subsidiaries iR B PE H 39,231 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for R ISBR L 2 NEE
the year arising from continued Hia2mB A (FEiE)
operations 38,092 (37,706)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reEmREMEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 iz T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—EBE--F —ECTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FHExT T
(Restated)
(#&=7))
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEZEAWA (EE)
for the year 51,440 (476,534)
Total comprehensive income for UTATEBEFER2E
the year attributable to: MU A
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE SN 51,440 (438,449)
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR AR B A - (38,085)
51,440 (476,534)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRUTEEZ A AT
for the year attributable to BEAELFERZE
the owners of the Company WA (EE) :
arise from:
— Continuing operations —FELEET 50,688 (192,185)
— Discontinued operations —ERIEREER 752 (284,349)
51,440 (476,534)
Earnings/(loss) per share from RERAQATEEAZ
continuing operations attributable FHERKEEK SR
to owner of the Company: ZA,(FEE) :
Basic (HK$) AER(ETT) 15 0.02 (0.10)
Diluted (HK$) S AG ) 15 0.02 (0.10)
Loss per share from discontinued SEEBREAATEEAZ
operations attributable ERIEREER 2
to owner of the company: BREE :
Basic (HK$) AER(ETT) 15 (0.01) (0.18)
Diluted (HK$) wE(ET) 15 (0.01) (0.18)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARERIIFARER

As at 31 December 2021 A =E=-—F+=-_/F=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZB=-—F RIZT-THF
+=ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=1+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MisE FHExT FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B N ERE 16 753 1,304
Non-current rental deposits nBHEZRS 19 - 7,571
753 8,875
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 384 1,378
Trade receivables 2 5 e FRI8 19 208 80
Deposits, prepayments and other e - FEBRIEREAM
receivables FE Y FRI8 19 247,867 137,391
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTAEER 20 9,929 4,767
258,388 143,616
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B o ENMIE 21 89 7,996
Accrued charges and other payables  fEztE F [ H fih &~ 5008 22 10,540 139,314
Contract liabilities aHAaE 23 76,600 3,900
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 5,870 17,028
Shareholder’s loans REE 24 29,954 20,295
Current tax liabilities EHAFIEAE 24,260 12,564
147,313 201,097
Net current assets/(liabilities) FREBEE (AE) 111,075 (57,481)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PRI

\\/T\

As at 31 December 2021 R =ZE=-—F+=-_F=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-IBE=-—% i
+=HA=+-8B +=ZA=+—8H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FExT FHET
Total assets less current liabilities HAEERARTERS 111,828 (48,606)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEEE 17 - 5,870
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEE E 25 100 674
100 6,544
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) FEE/(8fF) 111,728 (55,150)
Capital and reserves EARR#EE
Share capital R 2R 26 570,858 570,858
Reserves i (459,130) (512,730)
Equity attributable to owners of RNAFIHEE AEL
the Company 111,728 58,128
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR AR R M - (113,278)
TOTAL EQUITY/(CAPITAL MR (EAEM)
DEFICIENCY) 111,728 (55,150)

FI102EF1M4ENGRAMBHRRER =T _=
FNA-—t+t+tHEESeEMREETZERA

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 194 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: RTALTREBEE
Wang Chuang Huo Chunyu
Ed EFE
Director Director
BFE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—||— N/
T Z \Il\l:lll\%bi%

\\/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE
Non-
controling Totd
Attributable to owners of the Gompany interests equity
R
NN e
Convertible  Retained
Share bonds ~ profts/
Share Share  Translation ~ Specl Other option RVoCI equity  (Accumuated
captal  premium  reseve  reseve  TeSenve reseve  resene resene loss)  Sub-tota
AT
REf2E
WABIE WERER REET/
RE BOEE BERE WhREE lhEE EREEE  0RE  EERE (ZRR) it
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000
thn fén Tén TEn Tén  TEn  TEn  TEn  TExr  TEn  TEn  TEn
[notel) ~ (notei)
(k) (s
At1 January 2020 A-8255-5-R 175,858 3,196,096 (23,749 (2000 (413,000 40299  (81406) - (2801870 9282 (15198 17,638
Loss for the year R - - - - - - - - (1987 (119877) (34600 (154479)
Loss of the cisconfinued operafion BAIHERRE 2 ER - - - - - - - - (84309 (284349) - (284349
Other comprehensive income Afp2E4A
Fair vaue change of FVOC! FATERAMZANATIE,
TEEH - - - - - - ) - - 4 - (248
Exchange loss on translation of A REIRER
financial statements of foreign operations EEE = - (274) - - - - - - [oTd) (3483 (16224)
Total comprehensive income for ERRRBYA
the year . - (o) . = - ) - {426 UMY B80%) (65
Fquit-setlled share-based WhEEEHARR AR
payments LIRES - - - - - 2,034 - - - 2034 - 2,034
Lapse of share options b - - - - - (408 - - oe - - -
Share placement kirkE 100,000 - - - - - - - - 100,000 - 100,000
Share ssue expenses &T%‘ﬁffﬁi - B = = = = = . - ) -
Subscription and Setflement Agreements IERRERE 80,000 - - - - - - - - 80,000 - 80000
Recogniton of equity component ﬁﬁ "H%ﬂ; HERSH
of convertble bonds - - - - - - - A0 - A0 - A0
Disposal of investments n equiy instuments.~~ HERATERER2ERATIE
at ATOC) ZBEIRRE - - - - - - 10888 - (102888 - - -
Conversion of convertiole bonds SRTARES 5000 7334 - - - - - (Tu0) - 1479 - T
At 31 December 2020 et it LI E: 5088 328513 (60 PO) @310 B9 - - PINY  R1IB (138 5150
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

\\/T\

dEN 7
T Z \lnl:l/n%bi%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 iz T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company NCI Total
E32
KLAREARE Rrig it
Convertible  Retained
Share bonds  profits/
Share  Share Translation  Special Other ~ option ~ FVOCI  equity (Accumulated
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve loss) ~ Sub-total
BAvE
HE#RE
BASE TERES RERF/
Re  BBEE HERE GRRE ARGE BERESE  NBR  BERE (THER) it
HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TR  fEn  TEn TR TEr  TEn TR TEn  TEn TR TEn  TEn
(notei)  (note i)
(i) (i)
At1 January 2021 H-g=-£-5-R 510858 3203513 (36490 (200 (413100) 38449 - - [B304%0) 58128 (113278 (55,150)
Proit for the year Emil - - - - - - - - B8 58N - B
Loss of the discontinued operation BAIHERRH BR - - - - - - - - (38479 (38479) - (38419)
Other comprehensive income RH2EUA
Exchange diferences arising on translation of ~ AEEHEHEVER R
foreign operations - - (1,139) - - - - - - (1,139) - (1,189
Release of ranslation reserve upon disposalof ~ HEMBATKEEAE
subsidiaries - -8 - - - - - -8 - %
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZAERA - - 38092 - - - - - 13348 51,440 - 51440
Eouty-settled share-based payments WREEENNRDAERAMNR - - - - - 60 - - AL - 60
Released upon Disposal of subsidiares (note 36)  HEMBATKEE (Ki36) - - - - - - - - - - 328 113218
Balance as at 31 December 2021 R-B=-F+-h=1-H 570,858 3,208,513 1,602 (200) (13,1000 40,609 - - (3201554 111,728 - T8
Notes: Misr -
(i) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal () R REFN T —FEAR - K

(i)

108

value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time
of the Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

The other reserve represents (1) the difference between the fair value
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in subsidiaries
and the amount of adjustment to non-controlling interest; and
(2) deemed capital contribution from shareholders, represented
the difference between the principal amount of the shareholder’s
loan and its fair value. The fair value is determined by discounting
the estimate future cash flows throughout the expected life of the
repayment.

(i)

BHREARRMEEERNR TE'MSZE!%EAﬁWE
RRIMFAETZARARRODEE L ZH

Ef@ﬁffﬁ%ﬁ( )t 458 A Y 88k B 2 AR A AN A
BEZAFEAFERRRERABRSRIER
REMRBETEREBMRER A S EEEL QY
EZF‘aﬁE’J%%E o T {E i B {E TR A (B8 B BS
BAEFTRIBRSREE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/T\/\EE stz ;ﬁ:%%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZ H=E
—E-—F —E-TF
+=HA=+-—AH —A=+—8
LHEE FFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FET F&TT
Cash flows from operating activities & EZECRERE
Profit/(loss) before income tax: BETER RS, (EE)
From continuing operations REFEREET 64,292 (142,099)
From discontinued operations KED R RS ER (38,479) (284,349)
Adjustments for: SRR
Depreciation of owned property, BEYE BER
plant and equipment R E 16 78 1,731
Bank Interest income RITF S WA 6 (11) (23)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARZEE, (W) 36 38,489 (3,548)
Gain on disposals of property, tlj’%%% W= Kt 2
plant and equipment, net Weax OF58) 6 - (259)
Fair value change on financial assets BRAFENBRIIERZ
at FVTPL CTREEZATEES - (2,340)
Equity-settled share-based PAMEZ 45 7 [
payment expenses XN & 10 2,160 2,234
Interest expenses FEEHA ©) 174 16,828
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGEHE 562 1,696
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENFIEREA
receivables written off JE YR TE 3 8 - 100,000
Reversal of expected credit loss BREHEESERE
provision (41,353) -
Recognition of expected credit loss on 28 5 fEdk i IE TE
trade receivables EEEE 1€ - 663
Recognition of expected HEsR B FE UL TR IR
credit loss on other receivables BHEEER 19 2,688 36,762
Gain on modification of leases HEET 2 W= (5,408) (4,424)
Operating profit/(loss) before EELESRFAI 2 KE
working capital changes =R (&) 23,192 (277,128)
Decrease in inventories FERD 55 545
Increase in trade receivables B 5 eI GRIE L AN (126) (932)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and %% - TE{3RIE R E A EUGRIE
other receivables N (73,863) (152,126)
Decrease in trade payables 2 2 T ZaEm (8,142) (11,642)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities &4 & &0,/ (Fd) 72,585 (17,269)
Decrease in accrued charges and JE T2 73 Ko EL Ath & < FROE R
other payables (16,161) 61,103
Cash used in operations REXBHEAZRE (2,460) (397,449)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEEREFE (562) (1,696)
Net cash used in RETHREARLFE
operating activities (3,022) (399,145)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
CERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 iz T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BZE H3HZE
—E-—F —EFF
+=HA=+-—AH —A=+—8
LHEE FFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MiaE FET FAT
Cash flows from investing activities H&ETE2EHEHE
Interest received BdFIE 11 23
Decrease in pledged and restricted Eﬁﬁﬂrm&xﬁiﬁﬂﬁ SR
deposits - € L2
Purchase of property, BEWE  BE LR
plant and equipment (809) -
Net cash inflow from disposal HERBARZ
of subsidiaries REMANFE 36 10,069 15,160
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets & &R FENR BT8R 2
of fair value through profit or loss S RVEE ZFT5F0E - 301,860
Net cash generated from investing BRETEB
activities R T 9,271 326,964
Cash flows from financing activities ®EEFHZRERE 29
Proceeds from share placing R AP BE & AT 1S 508 - 99,183
Proceeds from shareholder’s loan R E AT FUE 9,659 20,295
Refund of deposits for acquisition of U B BT B A 72&%‘1&'%’&
subsidiaries - 46,512
Repayment of principal elements BREEREASHD
of lease liabilities (10,874) (26,621)
Repayment of other borrowings EBEREEMER - (55,172)
Interest paid on other borrowings B EAMERZFE (174) (14,494)
Interest paid on convertible bonds AR EH DN E - (2,334)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMETEE(ER) FERLFHE
financing activities (1,389) 67,369
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand R4ERELZEEEHZ
cash equivalents i, (R )FE 4,860 (4,812)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNZHER
beginning of the year HEEEEB 20 4,767 9,289
Effect of exchange rate changes on EZSHEEEK
cash and cash equivalents ReEEBEEZHE 302 290
Cash and cash equivalents ERZBEERAELEEEE
at end of the year 20 9,929 4,767
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20
April 2001. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2861, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business is Suite 2310-18th, Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”
hereafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 27 April 2022.

— R

REBEEBR2ERERAR(IARA R
—EE-—FUA-THERERSHS QA
FE(ZEZE—FEFIR)ERS A S MK
VREREBRAR c M ERKE
o 2 B 2 i AE 5 Bl A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2861, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &
BEABNERPEHBABEIRREEEANE
2310-18% - ARAIRHNEBEBHER S
FrBEMR AR ([EEAZFT])GEM LTI °

ARAR S —RREZBRAR - HEBWE
RAZEBHBARNEGRE M B RERM &
33 ARRIREKBRAR TXHES [
£@] -

HEMBHRRUEBT(TET 29 K5
BRIAESD -

HE-_ZE-_— S+ -_A=+—"HBILFEH
EAMBRERER-_E-_—_FMNA-_++
BESEoH T -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

112

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective

on 1 January 2021

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 for the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

In addition, the Group has early applied Amendment
to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

The application of the amendment to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.1

WE\;‘%:M%%%EEU(FE\?

TN TR
IZ—I—/\j _7__$_ﬁ_
H B4 3%

AEEDBEREABAGMAGHE
17FEE’J%.5P*EHQ$E¢‘7§H'HI%T$$E5E®$E
ZREVERI I DA T &8 B 75 o &5 E Rl Y
ERIAR » RFERI AR T _—F—
A—BRXZRABNFENRNGES
B RS SRR SR B 2R -

BEMBREENER - MREEHE
BAGFHERFI0% - -5
BAMBREERETR
BAMBREENFIRL
BAMBHREERF165
CHEN)

o - ANEE B IR AT E S S R
HEAFEIGRAETR T —F <
A=+ H1%COVID-1948F8 A £ R %
7 ZEFTR_E-_—FmA—B
2B FRKFE IR ER ©

AEERBEEMBHREERNER]
WEKAEEANEEMBEFEOY
BRAREER, KZSEE PR
RPN BRENEATE -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RN \5 B2 ([ &)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B3RS 2R |) (&)
(CONT’D)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 2.2 B MEME KL BIFTET A
issued but are not yet effective 155T & BB #R & 2E A
Other than the Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19- Br BB R EERE165HE T A
Related Rent Concessions, the Group has not applied COVID-19 A& B EIN » XEH
any new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued, N AR B AR (AT 2 A8 7 18 18 7R A8 R T
but are not yet effective and have not been early ST REIEET BB BREAER] 0 B
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention REARNEBIREEMA - K& liﬁﬁﬂéﬁ
is to apply these changes on the date they become REZEEHENEARAERE
effective. These new and revised HKFRSs include the ZEHE R s Ji&%,ﬁaﬁk#&iﬁﬁu
following which may be relevant to the Group. BIEAT AT ge AR EE AR -
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related EAMKRGEEAEITH RRADORIEHE?
Amendments 2
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual Framework @{%ﬂéﬁ&m/ BE|BI%E AR R
25
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BARBREEAS105% & é‘%‘ﬁiﬁ AN
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its REBSHENENT AECEZENEE
Associate or Joint Venture Bl ﬁ EPTEe
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current BRSHENEIREIA aEIEARDNERE
or Non-current and the related k& /’HE%W 21
amendments to Hong Kong BB (232258
Interpretation 5(2020) Presentation %&2’%255‘] %%ﬂ
of Financial Statements - HYFEREKERREX
Classification by the Borrower HEBERE 2

of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause ?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 2 BRSHENEIRE  SHIRHRE
and HKFRS Practice BANBRGEANER
Statement 2 REEREA
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates? EAS RS0 SHHEER?
BEIA
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and BEQEAZE125 BE—RIEEZEER
Liabilities arising from a Single 3R BEEECRLRIE
Transaction 2
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and Equipment: EBQHERE16% nE  BELREZE-
Proceeds before Intended Use B3R INMERTE RRAIZFTE
FOE!
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling BAEHER BT FREAH-EBTERNZ
a Contract ' {BEIA KA
Amendment to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ERRBREER 2 EANBRELEL T
2018 - 2020 cycle ! EHE —/\ﬁﬁquqiﬂ
o7 ERE
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 RZF-_—_F—A—AHRk2’
January 2022. s 2 FERREER °
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R=ZZT=_=F— A —HRAKB=k 2%
January 2023. E'vﬁﬁ/*2¢fﬁfﬂ?ﬁ€|£xﬁl
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date 8 REFE BBk 2 @FAG 2 FE M
to be determined. R e
The director of the Company anticipate that the application REEEEH  ERAMAZXSENI R
of all these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no RIETEBMBREEUED] R R
material impact on the results and the financial position of the EHASENEERMBMRREKRER
Group in the forseeable future. P& o
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

114

@

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are stated at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in note 5.

Restatements due to discontinued
operations

The presentation of comparative information in respect
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2020 has been restated in order to disclose
the discontinued operations separately from continuing
operations.

As the restatements do not affect the consolidated
statement of financial position, it is not necessary to
disclose comparative information as at 1 January 2020.

3.

mBEE
(a) EHREH

()

(c)

REMBmRIIERMEEREEY
BHEER - B G EAN(EFES
PR KRR BEM B RS
EH D ZERAUBRRTEBLERE
BRARGRPIZHEBRTE - BREEH
BRIMABRRFGEME S EmRE
MEZBERBEEERKRE

FTEEERIFELERR

RAEMBHRRTDIZELKAEER
2 HETIIFAES S BERIEENR
RFEFIRNE T8 T AR -

BHRER  wmAEVBRREERAS
A RRER - BEUFEFTIER
EEEHREEHMTBZ&EATT
R HEMIEL  EERERREX
BN 2B o Fhm E A E
SEME  BE IS R B RA MR
RBEAZEZBRIMAFT 2B H
BERMIAES -

BFRERILEE XTI E S

BEZT-_ZTFF+-_A=+—HLF
ENmeEaEMEEKAZRED
LEREREKET - UEHERIEE
BEBHRGECEEBDRAEE -

SIS 2
L BARBR =T

ARBRAE - A
HosE R - B

TFE-A—HH
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to
the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

4. EESFTEE

(@)

2021 £ HEBLEB2EBRERLA

REBEHREGSEE

REMBHRREBARARENBA
AI(TAKE ) 2MBHRE - KERF
ZERRBIRR P MAERARKRER
MR REE A M RERE 2
i - BRIERZBRAAEREIEED
BRE ZBEReRNBRETER - &
AIARBHEEITALE -

FARBREEZWBEAR - EXE
RUEEM B e REEHEEN
B8 (Em) S ARAEBm R E
feEmBARA - EFER - HEA
AZMBEREEGWARE - FEHETEK
REAKEEMKERARIAEMAE —
B o

W BT B A B R EBIRKREEARR -
WIEAATDIZKERBMERZE
E FEEZABRASE(ERK
BH)BITZREBZRAFEBER
E - BB AT HRIEERAAER
BEBEZWBAMZAFEFE - A
5 B ST R TR R T 2 R DA R R
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

116

@

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(@)

RBEEHRES

E(E

WD TEE cEMAREDR
YiE B Q- FERER - HERKES
EEXNHEHR(REAKEREHE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able
to exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency of the individual
entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(6)

(c)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

118

(c)

(@)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rate over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

5%—-25%
33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Computer equipment

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(c)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) (d) Y% - BMEKZKE(E)

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and

REFEBHSRHMEEZRGBE
B RESERAFERFH WHE
BREITHAE -

BEIHEEL 2 WEHBESRE
EMGRAREEREERN EHE
E - WRBRPHER
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maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

120

(e)

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the
right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises
it judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

4. FESFTEHE(E)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(e)

Leasing (Cont’d)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

122

()

Financial Instruments

0]

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments as following measurement
category:

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(f)  Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

0]

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured
at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI,
as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if
doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
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()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

0]

(ii)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies,
the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at FVOCI are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12 months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
aged more than 90 days.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired or default when: (1) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (2) the financial asset is aged more than 90
days.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
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()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iij)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings and liability
element of convertible bonds issued by the Group
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue
of the convertible and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the
convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds equity reserve).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iij)  Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Cont’d)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until
the option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium.
Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry dates, the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be released to the
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised
upon conversion or expiration of the option.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.

Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method.
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()

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the loss allowance, being the ECL provision
measured in accordance with principles of the
accounting policy set out in note 4(i)(ii); and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Q)

Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. In the case of work in progress
and finished goods, cost also comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and applicable selling
expenses.
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(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand, time deposits with banks within original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(1)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time when
the goods are transferred and the customer has
received the goods, since only by the time the Group
has a present right to payment for the goods delivered.
For the provision of service, revenue is recognised
over time as the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs.

Revenue from provision of healthcare products and
services is recognised when the services have been
rendered to customers.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. There is no right of return, volume rebate
and warranty arrangement for the sales of goods and
provision for services.

There is no significant financing components for the
contracts and the consideration is not variable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

132

()

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the delivery under such sales contracts
but yet certified by customers. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade
receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the
Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(k)

()

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions. Government grants relating to
costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries,
other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment,
right of use assets, land use rights and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.

4. FESFTEHE(E)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

134

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill
in particular is allocated to those cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the
other assets in the cash generating unit, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in use,
if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
has been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(m) Employee benefits

0]

(i)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in the Mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

136

(n)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the equity instruments awarded. The value
is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any nonmarket vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit
to share-based payment reserve, net of deferred tax
where applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate of
the number of share options expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number of
share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised in
prior periods is made if fewer share options ultimately
are exercised than originally vested.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over
the remaining vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

(p)

Share-based payments (Cont’d)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the vested share options are lapsed, forfeited or still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when
incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualified asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

138

(CONT’D)

(@) Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary difference arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)

(q) Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

—F+ZA=t—BILFE

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are

recognised in profit or loss, or in other

comprehensive

income or directly in equity if they relate to items

that are charged or credited to other
income or directly in equity.

comprehensive

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(@)
off the recognised amounts; and

()

The Group has the legally enforceable right to set

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities;

and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:
(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities whi

ch intend either

to settle current tax liabilities and assets

on a net basis, or to realise

the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts

of deferred tax liabilities

or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(r)

140

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors, being the chief operating decision makers
of the Group, for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product and
service lines.

The Group has identified the following continuing
operations and reportable segment:

- Healthcare products and services — production
and sales of healthcare products and services.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except that:

- finance costs

- income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of

any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(r)

Segment reporting (Cont’d)

In September 2020, the Group disposed of its
“dermatology and others”; “ophthalmology products”,
and “stomatology products and others” business and
in March 2021, the Group disposed of its “cell products
and services”; “cosmetics products and others”
business. In June 2021, the Group disposal of its
cell technology business (collectively the “Disposed
Segments”).

The Disposed Segments represented a major business
line of the Group in the last financial year and regarded
as Discontinued Operations in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Accordingly, the related financial information of the
Disposed Segments were not included in the operating
segment information from the continuing operations
and the comparative information was also reclassified
to conform with the current period presentation.
Further details of the Disposed Segments are set out in
note 8.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

142

(s) Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(s) Related parties (Cont’d)

1

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

4. FESFTEHE(E)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(1)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
and other receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on ageing analysis for groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on management’s estimate of the
lifetime ECLs to be incurred, which is estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing
of trade receivables, customers’ repayment history
and customers’ financial position and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or
the forecast economic conditions were to deteriorate,
actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
The Group’s management determines the impairment
of trade and other receivables on a regular basis.
This estimate is based on the credit history of its
customers or debtors and current market conditions.
Management reassesses the impairment of trade and
other receivables at the reporting date.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

(1)

(i)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
and other receivables (Cont’d)

For other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies
or non-response to collection activities, they are
assessed individually for impairment allowance. The
Group recognised the provision for expected credit
losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of
debtors, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery
and considering the prevailing economic conditions.

The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
and other receivables is disclosed in notes 19 and 35
to the financial statements.

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group engages in healthcare products and
services during the year. The Group concluded that
the Group acts as the principal for such transactions
as it controls the specified products and services
before it is transferred to the customer after taking into
consideration indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the
products and services. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognises such
revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled as specified in the
contracts.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised revenue relating to healthcare products
and services amounted to HK$258,159,000, which
was substantially generated through the platform
of Changzhou XingKong Medical Clinic Co., Ltd,
which Mr. Wang Chuang acted as the previous chief
executive officer of that company.
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINAND 6. W& KEKEAMKA » Wz KkEE
LOSS

The Group’s turnover represents revenue from its principal AREFELBERERFEANREEE
activities, measured at the net invoiced value of goods sold BEE KEEE R CDIEHREREF
or service provided during the years presented. Bt & 2 W o
2021 2020
—E-— —EEAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
(Restated)
(&&&:5)
Contracts with customers within the BREBYIEHRE LR E 1558
scope of HKFRS 15: HEANNEFEH
Continuing operations FREREEK
Sales of goods (at a point of time) HEER(FHEE) 11,629 1,528
Services income (over time) BRASUTA (B FEIER ) 271,268 180,608
282,897 182,136
Discontinued operations EARIEREER
Services income (over time) BRAGUL A (B FEIER ) - 26,923
282,897 209,059
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Y|

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND 6. WxREMKA - WX R ER
LOSS (CONT’D) (&

mE

~

AEEEREABEEVBREERIE 155
FI2IRFHAIITRENEZREHEERY

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts such that the above
information does not include information about revenue that AR ERT TIREARNEERTEX
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining RETEHFHAE —FHUT 2REE LIE
performance obligations under the contracts for services that T HHEBHSEEBEESZWZNE
had an original expected duration of one year or less. *f o

AEEARBREEBZERRAE MK
A Wess REIEINT ¢

Other income, gain and loss recognised from continuing
operations during the year is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHEIT
(Restated)
(%= &%)
Bank interest income ERITH B WA 11 23
Government grant income (note) BT B A (B 5E) 87 4,373
COVID-19-related rent concessions A AR AIARCOVID-19

from lessors HEESESR 3,130 4,424
Gain on modification of leases MEEE] 2 W 1,834 =
Others Hith 1,020 7,212
6,082 16,032

Note: These government grant income refers to the government Misr © ZZEHFHBWAEh BB QT A

subsidy received by Hong Kong subsidiary for the adoption
of IT solutions to support its business and services upon
satisfaction of specific conditions. They were received
and complied with all attached conditions and therefore
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The government grant income refers to the government
subsidy received by the PRC subsidiaries for the research
and development project or upon satisfaction of specific
conditions. They were received and complied with all attached
conditions and therefore recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors,
being the chief operating decision makers of the Group,
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to
the executive directors are determined following the Group’s
major product and service lines.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
identified the following continuing operations and reportable
segment:

- Healthcare products and services — production and
sales of healthcare products and services.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
that:

- finance costs
- income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

In September 2020, the Group disposed of its “dermatology
and others”; “ophthalmology products”, and “stomatology
products and others” business and in March 2021,
the Group disposed of its “cell products and services”;
“cosmetics products and others” business (collectively the

“Disposed Segments”).

The Disposed Segments represented a major business
line of the Group in the last financial year and regarded as
Discontinued Operations in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Accordingly, the related financial information of the
Disposed Segments were not included in the operating
segment information from the continuing operations and the
comparative information was also reclassified to conform
with the current period presentation. Further details of the
Disposed Segments are set out in note 8.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEER(E)
Discontinued operations Continuing operations
BALBEER BELELEK

Cosmetic Healthcare

Cell products products products
and services and services Subtotal and services Total
PRERRESE  tHERES Mt XBRERRES @t
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RBE-B--E+-A=+-ALEE TER THR THR TR T
Reported segment revenue REDSHBUWA - - - 282,897 282,897
Reported segment profit REHEHF 10 - 10 40,392 40,402

Depreciation of property, nE - BEREERTE
plant and equipment - - - (78) (78)
Interest income FISdA - - - 11 11
Discontinued operations Continuing operations
BRIREEY BEREER

Cosmetic Healthcare

Cell products products products
and services and services Subtotal and services Total
ARERREE  CRRRES Mt XBEERRES @t
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
RBE-B-BE+-A=1+-HLEE TR TR THET THEL TEL
Reported segment revenue EEERETON 1,675 1,528 3,203 182,136 185,339
Reported segment profit/(loss)  AIER&E A& %A/ (EiE) (69,310) (65,919) (135,229) 31,609 (108,620)

Depreciation of property, nE  BERRERE

plant and equipment (255) - (255) - (255)
Interest income MEKA 3 - 3 = 3
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEER(E)
The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments 7N £ [ 4% 4 5 R B T Y 48 B8 B K & B B
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in FEIRET R BB IS SR SR T ¢
the financial statements as follows:
2021 2020
—E- —ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
(Restated)
(&&&E5))
Continuing operations FERSEEL
Reportable segment revenue AT E2Wy B 282,897 182,136
Group revenue B W= 282,897 182,136
Reportable segment interest income A& 2 & F S M A 11 23
Group’s interest income REEHF S WA 11 23
Total reportable segments’ profit AT 2D EBRFIAREE 40,392 31,609
Gain on disposal of financial assets HESREE W - 2,340
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBREEEZEE - (5)
Reversal of provision for expected credit  REAEA&EpTEEEEERE
loss due to subsequent settlement 2 B [E] 41,353 -
Unallocated corporate income RAMBERA 2,233 16,032
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOBEEERE (18,950) (179,199)
Finance costs B 7% & (736) (17,906)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRETERADER, (&) 64,292 (142,099)
Income tax expenses FrigHi (12,465) (12,380)
Profit/(Loss) for the year from BEREEK
continuing operations REEKRF,(FR) 51,827 (164,479)
Discontinued operations EARIEREER
Loss before income tax BRETEBATER 10 (247,918)
Income tax credit FTis itk % - 135
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 EE (38,489) (36,566)
Loss for the year KEEEIE (38,479) (284,349)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

7.

22FT

—F+ZA=t—BILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEER(E)
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
(Restated)
(& &=75))
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BTE "*Bé? 57,084 66,203
Cash and bank balances iﬁ%&fﬁﬁ,‘ 9,929 4,767
Other corporate assets HEhxEE 192,128 81,521
Group assets EFEE 259,141 152,491
Liabilities a&
Reportable segment liabilities BYEFROHTAERE 87,228 151,210
Shareholder’s loans RERE K 29,954 20,295
Deferred taxation PRIEF IR 100 674
Lease liabilities MEAE 5,870 22,898
Other corporate liabilities HibFEEE 24,261 12,564
Group liabilities SEaE 147,413 207,641
Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included staff costs, Ao XY TEBHEIIEEEHEMAK

exchange loss, equity-settled share-based payments, rental
and other expenses not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segments.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets other than FVOCI, non-current rental
deposits and pledged deposits (“Specified non-current
assets”) are divided into the following geographical areas:

2EE R ()

AEEKRBINAEPHW R REIEREE
E(RATEREMEZEWBAIIRZIERE
THMEE N EEeREEREFER
BRAN) (THEIERMENE E ) = 5 A7 40
™=

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENAEF K= BEERBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
=B C"T-TF B "T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT FERT FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(& E5)) (&%)
Continuing operations BEREEK
Hong Kong BB 20,689 4,068 753 1,304
The PRC (domicile) AR B (EBEFTTE ) 262,208 178,068 - -
282,897 182,136 753 1,304
Discontinued operations B #& [H & £
The PRC (domicile) AR B (BB TR ) - 26,923 - -
282,897 209,059 753 1,304

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
revenue derived from various customers, 1.9% (2020:
5.9%) of the Group’s revenue depended on a customer in
Healthcare products and services segment.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets.

BE_ZT_—F+-_A=+—RLFE"
AEBREREZEEE  ASEKIEH
1.9%( T -FTF :5.9%) KRB KNEHRER
MIRFEDEH—BRE o

BEPAEME I RIEATIR M Z RGN
Em2inEE D BENRBEEZ I
DIREEEERMELE S o

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 _E - —F+_AF=1+—HILFE

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the years ended 2020 and 2021, the Group ceased
several operations as detailed in note 7. The results of
discontinued operations of Disposal Groups are set out
below.

8. DRILKEEXER

HE_ T ZFR_ZT_—FFFE 0
fex7afal - AREBKRIFZEEE - E&IE
LEMNEEEBNESEYHOT :

The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of GEERRMHEMEERERMLERE T
profit or loss and other comprehensive income have been EEINENERZSLEIERB I
restated to re-present such arrangement as discontinued 7 o
operations.
Period ended Year ended
29 June 31 December
2021 2020
Bz H=E
—E-—fF —ECTF
ANAZ+AHAB +tZA=+—H
LEHA LEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Revenue W &= 444 26,923
Expenses 53 (434) (2r45841)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BrETE R AR A, (BE) 10 (247,918)
Income tax credit Fris i e - 135
Profit/(loss) after income tax BRETSR &R, (EBE) 10 (247,783)

Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment under
discontinued operation for the year was HK$Nil (2020:
HK$1,467,000).

FRARERIEKEEBTHEBSIME BE
LEARAEBT(ZE_ZFF : 1,467,000/
JL) °
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8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D) 8. BRILKEEKE(E)
The net cash flows incurred in discontinued operation of HEERRNDRIETKESERELENFRS
Disposal Groups are as follows: R
Period ended Year ended
29 June 31 December
2021 2020
Bz H=E
—B=-—F —T_THF
AAZ+HhB +t=ZA=+—H
LIEHARS IFFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAEIT
Operating activities K TEED 15,979 (46,006)
Investing activities HAEE - 6
Financing activities BEEE (17,592) (42,147)
Net cash flows R B (1,613) (88,147)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the HEEERLERHMNEERBENERE
Disposal Groups at the date of disposal are disclosed in note BERMEC6HEE - ERIEEEERH E
36. The operating profit for the year from the discontinued B2 % HA10,0008 T (=%
operation was HK$10,000 (2020: loss of HK$247,783,000) 247,783, OOO/%TE)&E%JH«%%%EKW
and the total loss for the year from discontinued operation [E B 184258 538,479,000 TL(Z T =&
was HK$38,479,000 (2020: HK$284,349,000). The loss on F :284,349,000/87L) - B HEEBHE
disposal of the Disposal Groups of HK$38,489,000 (2020: B E518 538,489,000/ T ( — T — T4 :
36,566,000). 36,566,000/87C) °
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. HKEH
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EFF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Interest on: AME :
— Other borrowings and shareholder’s — B fE R R ARR &K
loans 174 14,494
— Liability component of convertible — IR 2 /Y
bonds measured at amortised cost A ESa B D - 2,334
~ Lease liabilities —HEBE 562 1,696
736 18,524
Finance costs is attributable to: ATEEHFER
- Continuing operations — BB 736 17,906
— Discontinued operations —ERIEEEET - 618
736 18,524
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10. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BREFIERANER, (F18)
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense from continuing B EE ZBRATEH R AR F (&
operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB, (GFA) THIEAE -

2021 2020
- ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(e=E=751)
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EREN BN & 1,000 950
Depreciation of owned property, plant and BEWE - KENLEBEITS
equipment 78 1,731
Advertising and marketing, included ESkmigHERY
in selling and distribution expenses (EBREEHEERDHEAXH) 817 22,697
Equity-settled share-based payments AR EE 2 RESZNER 2,160 2,234
Exchange difference, net BN EROF) 14 275
Short term lease expense EHHERX 309 552
Low value lease expenses EEEHERX - 106
Research and development costs 3% B AN - 368
Employee benefit expenses EERAFAZ(BRESHE)
(including directors’ emoluments (BfFEE11)
(note 11)) 16,378 49,377
Less: Employee benefit expenses included i : BIEEHEK AR 2 EE
in research and development costs =il - (368)
16,378 49,009
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of the emoluments paid or payable
to the directors are as follows:

1. EEME

ENENESOMSARET :

Defined
Salariesand  contribution
Fees  allowances scheme Total
we  HERER  EEREMFGE &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
iR i FHR i
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E--F+-A=t+-HLEE
Executive director HTEZE
Mr. Wang Chuang FRE%E 1,200 - - 1,200
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin BEERE - 360 18 378
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Dr. Fang Jun hfEET
(resigned on 30 December 2021) (R=E-—F+-R=1HEA) 120 - - 120
Ms. Yang Ying 7)- e
(resigned on 30 December 2021) (R=E-—F+-R=1HEA) 120 - - 120
Ms. Huo Chunyu EEFNT 120 - - 120
Mr. Leung Man Fai PUBEE
(appointed on 30 December 2021) (R=Z-—F+-A=THEZF) 1 - - 1
Dr. Liu Ming HEL
(appointed on 30 December 2021) (R=Z-—F+-A=THEZF) 1 - - 1
1,562 360 18 1,940
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

158

1. EEWE (8)

Defined
Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances scheme Total
e FeRER  THRENGE Gh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T THT AL
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-E-ZFE+-R=t-HLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Chuang THEE 1,200 - - 1,200
Mr. Wang Xuejun (resigned on 9 July 2020) E%E( ZEIRELANAEA) 600 = = 600
Mr. Qin Bin (appointed on 20 May 2020 EW%E( “ECRERACTHEZA
and resigned on 29 December 2020) RRZEZEE+ZAZTNBE) = 739 12 751
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Wu Wei Liang RERKE
(resigned on 29 December 2020) (RZE-EF+-A-TNBET) 360 - - 360
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin }%EX%E
(appointed on 30 January 2020) (R=E-ZF-F=THEZT) - 316 17 333
Dr. Ray Yip EEEL
(resigned on 30 January 2020) (R=E-ZF-F=THET) 29 - - 29
Independent non-executive directors  BYFHTES
Dr. Fang Jun kAL 120 - - 120
Ms. Wang Danjuan FhRELL
(resigned on 30 January 2020) (R=E-ZF-A=THET) 10 - - 10
Ms. Yang Ying )L 120 - - 120
Ms. Huo Chunyu EEERT
(appointed on 30 January 2020) (R=B-ZF-B=+HEZM) 10 = = 10
2,549 1,055 29 3,633

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments in respect
of those persons’ other services in connection with

the management of the affairs of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

AEEYBAZEE N EAME -
A B INA R 5 B i 7 22 o B B
e -

BE_T_—Rk-_Z_ZFTF+_H
ST HLEFERMBEEENREXREME
ERME 228 -

fER 0

XNFHTEF BT  HF2REHBE
REL&F

ATEHEERRAREMB LR
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) 1. E5M< (&)

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Employees’ emoluments

The five individuals whose emoluments including share-
based payment expenses were the highest in the Group
for the year included one (2020: three) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2020: two
individuals) were as follows:

RAEFERFRFRNERKE - RNAFHE
RIVEAEEXRBAEMETNETEER
IEEREEAEaNBEARS » Tk
BH

BESHZ

ArEEFRNRAEE=TAT(EHESBEN
BOAERZNRAZ)BE—R(ZEZ
T ZR)EF - EBleRBR ST
Ao THNE(ZE-_ZFF : ME)ATH
BemT

2021 2020

—EBE-F —ECTEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHxT THEIT

Salaries and other benefits Fre kEMmEF 4,554 3,012
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R RIEF|EH 2|4t 2% 58 36
4,612 3,048

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals
fell within the following band:

HFEENRSFALHMEN FUATEHE
AR

Number of individual

A
2021 2020
—EB-—F T TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 1,000,000 7T 4 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7c2 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 722,000,000/ 7T - 1
4 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to these four
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office

REBE I EEAZOH AL AEMEE
BMALMARNEENFR - HE/KE
BfzmmE -
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12.

13.

160

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 12.
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

EERAMBAX(BEESHE)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT TET
Wages and salaries ITENFS 12,926 105,142
Equity-settled share-based payments AR EE 2 RESZNER 2,160 2,234
Pension costs — defined contribution plans iR k% 5k 78 — & 28 4L K ETE 456 7,456
Other staff benefits HEib B T1EF 836 995
16,378 115,827

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13. TEHiMAX

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity established in
Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above that
amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. The profits
of the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit
Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%.
The PRC enterprise income tax of 25% is applicable to the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

REMRBMEHFIE  REEKILAN
EEREEERHNEH2,000,000% T8 A
#% #8.25% 1M B8 7% B AR i A 75 LA
16.5% KB KB - N1 & K155 ™ 4R i
ZEEERMNGENSEEZ165%M T X
BB o NEE T BB R RERA25% 2 F
BEEAEN - BINIBRIREAFE
ARG M IE AR EE LA 2R
THEEE -

2021 2020
s ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Profit tax NS
- current tax —EH%E 12,365 12,380
— over provision in respect of prior years ~ — BT SRR E - -
12,365 12,380
Deferred taxation (note 25) EERTR (MI5E25)
— Income tax expenses/(credit) —FBHAX(ER) 100 (135)
12,465 12,245
Income tax expenses/(credit) is PSR (ER)RR
attributable to:
— Continuing operations — R ET 12,465 12,380
- Discontinued operations — BRI T - (139)
12,465 12,245
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONT’D) 13. TE M (&)
Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting RERAMERAE 2 EREKE et EE
loss at applicable tax rates: ZEERAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
(Restated)
(&=75)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBLAREA,(F5R) 64,292 (142,099)
Notional tax calculated at the rates BAEBENIER AR BB
applicable to the loss in the tax EAZHEGFENER
jurisdictions concerned T 18 16,296 (26,834)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR RERNE 2 A %
for tax purposes & 1,234 36,849
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERT WA BT IS E
tax purposes (11,231) (779)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised HARERTIHEENTBTEE 6,166 3,344
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFE B - =
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) A SRl AR TR B 15 5 18
recognised - -
Income tax expenses FrEHimmEx 12,465 12,380
14. DIVIDENDS 14. R E
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders E’\ﬁﬁ{lﬁfﬁﬂiﬁikﬁ RETARD
of the Company for both years, nor has any dividend been BRERE  BmSHRETNEES Tﬂ—J
proposed since the end of the reporting period. H“ B o
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15.

162

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
result attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

15. BREA,(E#E)

SRESRF, (BBR) DEFER AR
B A 2 R UAF R BT %R
FHBEHE -

2021 2020
—E-—F S Sas
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(&&s7)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to SBRAREEES A
owners of the Company: ZBRAEF,(BHE) :
From continuing operations RERELE TS 0.02 (0.10)
From discontinued operations REBRIEEEER (0.01) 0.1
0.01 (0.28)
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&E5))
Earnings/(loss) attributable to equity holders 5+ & &I E A BB AT A 2
of the Company used in calculating basic BN AA GlE=EE A
loss per share: Z&F(ER) :
From continuing operations REFELEER 51,827 (154,479)
From discontinued operations R E BRI T (38,479) (284,349)
13,348 (438,828)
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITE BRI (TR
shares in issue (thousands) 2,854,290 1,606,772

The computation of diluted earning per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
because the exercise price of those options was higher
than the average market price for shares for the year ended
31 December 2021. Accordingly, the weighted average
numbers of ordinary shares used as denominators in
calculating the basic and diluted earning per share are the
same as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2021 is the same as basic loss per share because the impact
of the exercise of share options and convertible bonds was
anti-dilutive.

EREEEF AN E T REAR 7§ E
RETE  AAZZERENTEESR
o8Bz -_—F+-_A=+—HIt
FEMFEHME - Bt - st ESREAK
BB RFEBIES R B INE TS
R BABE—_ZE—_—F+_A=+—
B IEF e B S E LR o

HE-_ZE-_— S+ -_A=1+—"HBILFEH
FREBEEEEGRAAEEER @ RE
RBITEERENTZEZERESSIER -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W% - MERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Computer Motor
Buildings improvements eﬁq;{pmgnt equipment vehicles Total
BB
BF RENERE Rt EjiRfE RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAL
At 1 January 2020 R=2-%%-f-H
Cost ﬁjm 101,095 107,257 129,500 7,820 5197 330,889
Accumulated depreciation ZHiE (99,726) (107,257) (129,179) (7,805) (65,192) (249,353)
Net book amount HEFE 1,369 - 125 15 7 1516
Year ended 31 December 2020 ﬁ%éé:?i‘l‘lﬁ Sr=[z
I
Opening net book amount HRETE 1,369 = 125 15 7 1,516
Exchange difference ERES 88 - 13 1 1 103
Disposals e (88,648) - (38,067) (833) (1540) (129,142
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAR (18,958) (6,007) (45,066) (5,728) (8,518) (79,272)
Depreciation e (1:369) (131) (213) (18 - (1731)
Depreciation eliminated on disposals £ B2 71 4517 &
of subsidiary . 12,901 5,808 38,974 2,962 2,217 62,917
Imparment losses eliminated on ~ HER L HHERR
disposals 94,617 880 45,538 3,646 2,777 146,913
Closing net book amount HREEEE - - 1,304 - - 1,304
At 31 December 2020 R-2-BF+-A=1-H
Cost ﬁk$ - 101,817 51,840 1,659 3% 165,710
Accumulated depreciation and ZHEERAERR
impairment losses - (101,817) (50,536) (1,659) (394) (154,406)
Net book amount RE¥E - - 1,304 - - 1,304
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-E£+-A=1-R
Cost &ZIS o - 101,817 51,840 1,659 394 155,710
Accumulated depreciation and ZiERAERR
impairment losses - (101,817) (50,536) (1,659) (394) (154,406)
Net book amount REFE - - 1,304 - - 1,304
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£4+-A=1-H
Opening net book amount ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ,ﬂﬁ - - 1,304 - - 1,304
Addiion - - 698 1 - 809
Exchange difference [R%%’E - - 573 - 573
Disposals LeE - - - - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary Hj%ﬂﬁ% - - (1,871) - (1,871)
Depreciation e - - (83) (25) - (78)
Depreciation eliminated on mERBA RS
disposals of subsidiary ‘ \ 16 - - 16
Impairment losses elimnated on ~ HER L HHERE
disposals - - - - - -
Closing net book amount ARRETE - - 667 86 - 753
At 31 December 2021 R=B--£+-A=t-H
Cost RA - - 704 111 - 815
Accumulated depreciation 2B - - (37 (25) - (62)
Net book amount FREFE - - 667 86 - 753
In view of the businesses and operations of the Group, the ZRE BESBEMNEBREE- EHRA
directors of the Company did not identify indications of EEUTESZRETS R &#E—-Z

impairment and thus, no impairment loss was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

:_$+:HE+_ Eiifx_ﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬂ

BEE -
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17. LEASES

164

(@) Right-of-use assets

17. HE
(a) EHEEE

Land use rights Offices Total
Tl A WA= st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHT
At 1 January 2020, RZZT=TF
31 December 2020, —)E]—EI °
1 January 2021 and —E-THF
31 December 2021 +ZHA=+—H
—ET_—%—H—H
MZT——%F
+=—A=+—H - = =
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Short term lease expenses REEERY 309 552
Low value lease expenses EEEHEEMS - 106
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHERE 7,744 25,913

In 2021, the Group leases a number of properties and
offices for its operations. The leases run for an initial
period ranged from one to three years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group did not entered into new leases during the
year.

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets was fully
impaired as at 31 December 2019, as detailed in the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

R-ZF—_—% AREREXHHEE
ETHMEREMAE - HENVIFHR
NF—E=F - GRIIEEBIERE L
B BRSETEGR R EGE - ®
EEHEMEFE T HENRRE
AEERBAAONERLEEALA
SR B BITROHIR

AEBRFAL BT LHHEE -

R-EBE-—hAhE+-_A=+—8 " 8
BEERTDEDBZERE  FEHD
BE_ZT—NAF+-_A=+—HIF
ERIF IR ©
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17. LEASES (CONT'D) 17. & (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) FHEEE
2021 2020
—EBE--F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHTT
Lease liabilities HERE
— Current portion —REE D 5,870 17,028
- Non-current portion —FEREE D - 5,870
5,870 22,898
Future lease payments are due as follows: RREERNREEHBERAT :
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
BEEENRK FE BRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—F
+=HA=+—H
Not later than one year —F R 6,985 (1,115) 5,870
Later than one year and —FLLERMEA
not later than two years - - -
6,985 (1,115) 5,870
As at 31 December 2020 N-EBE_ZHFE
+=BA=+—H
Not later than one year —FER 18,827 (1,799) 17,028
Later than one year and —F A ERMEA
not later than two years 6,985 (1,115) 5,870
25,812 (2,914) 22,898
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates JEFHEAfoE\E\FE’NJMEEFi’jiEE%ﬁ
applied to lease liabilities range is 5.00% (2020: 4.75% FMENT5.00%(ZFE=_ZFF :4.75%
to 5.00%). £5.00%) °
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18. INVENTORIES 18. &
2021 2020
—EC-F —E_THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Raw materials ER R 384 399
Finished goods SIRK T - 979
384 1,378
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 19. EZEWIE « 8% « BHA
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 5 & H AU FE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
(a) Trade receivables (a) EZEWFRIE
Current assets: MENEEE :
Trade receivables 5 W IE 208 74,186
Less: Impairment losses R REEE - (74,106)
208 80
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other (b) &% - B EERHEi
receivables FE U FRIE
Rental deposit HEZS 7,571 11,979
Other deposits HEize 2,023 7,491
Prepayments TS FRIE 41,362 8,601
Other receivables FAth B Y 5RIE 215,037 173,682
265,993 201,753
Less: Impairment losses of other R H At EGRIE R E S
receivables (18,126) (56,791)
247,867 144,962
Represented by: LA B 57 ¢
Non-current assets EMBNEE - 7,571
Current assets mENEE 247,867 137,391
247,867 144,962
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 10. B2 EWWENIE « 7€ ~ AR
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES BN EMEWIE ()
(CONT’D)

Movements in the impairment losses in respect of trade FERNE 5 EWFRIE & E b FE U kI8 /)R E
receivables and other receivables during the year are as EEEEMNT
follows:
2021 2020
—EBE--F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Trade receivables (lifetime expected BZEWFIE (LXEFMEHN
credit losses collectively assessed) 2HFEHEEES)
At 1 January R—HA—H 74,106 138,062
Impairment losses recognised during FAERRREEE
the year - 663
Written-off of impairment loss during F NI H )R E B B
the year (74,106) (67,597)
Exchange alignment bE 5 AR - 2,978
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H - 74,106
2021 2020
—E-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT THT
Other receivables (lifetime expected H b W 718 (A B FR A B 2 T8
credit losses individually assessed) HEEBER)
At 1 January w—HA—H 56,791 20,029
Impairment losses recognised FRERIREEE
during the year 2,688 36,762
Reversal of impairment loss during B [0l & AR RVE B 18
the year (41,353) -
At 31 December Rt+t—_A=+—H 18,126 56,791
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1€,

168

TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT’D)

The changes in the gross carrying amount of trade and other
receivables are mainly due to new financial assets originated
or purchased during the year. During the year ended 31
December 2021, no impairment losses of trade receivables
is recognised. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the impairment losses of other receivables recognised during
the year were mainly due to the assessment result of lifetime
expected credit losses. Management identified that these
debtors are in financial difficulty and the recoverability of
these receivables was remote.

Prepayment mainly relates to payment in advance to
designated service provider in PRC for offsetting future
operating costs incurred by the designated service provider
on behalf of the Group for providing services in PRC.

Other receivable mainly relates to the current account with
the designated service provider in PRC and the increase is in
line with the increase in revenue.

As at year end date, ageing analysis of trade receivables
based on sales invoice date and net of provisions, is as
follows:

19. B 5

SEWKIE - BE -
" E@J@Hﬁz,uﬁ(,ﬂ;)

IEEREN

B REMERNENEDAEESHEE
HRFAEEKBEENTESRMEEMY °
HE_T-_—F+-_A=1+T—HILFE "
WEZZEWGKBREBBERR - HE
—E-—F+=-A=+—HLFE FR
BREMERZENREBEEZZEZSHRN
HBEHEEBEENTEER T RER
R EEHEATRY BEE - MZzSER
TR TE 9 A U [ A

BNRERERTBENEERGEERN
BN BAEEREERGEEBRAER
AEEETFBREHREMELENAREE
DN
HEWRREREETREEREHER
MR AR B B ZIB RN AR IR AN — B -

REER  BEHREFAZEEXRRAY
RINGRBR 2 REDITWAT ¢

2021 2020

—EB-F —ECTEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAETT

0-90 days 0E 90K 208 80
Over 90 days but less than 1 year FEIAIONIE D1 - -
208 80

The Group allows an average credit period of 60-180 days
(2020: 60-180 days) to its customers.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the
accounting policy stated in note 4. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 35.

AEBHRTFTEEFPZTFHEEH AR
180K (ZF=_FF : 60E180K) °

AR BR AR MY T4 P & 5T IRCR HE R RUEES
B AAAEEEEBRANRE S KHAD
U RIEELEFEERROE - TFBAR
|31-JL|:_|I_35 °
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20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED 20. B2 RIBITHE CIEMIRIT
BANK DEPOSITS (N
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash and bank balance R RIRTTHERR 9,929 4,767
Included in cash and bank balances, short-term deposits of AEBZRESRIRITEHS  SHEREE
the Group are HK$7,362,000 (2020: HK$2,285,000) of bank FHRFABRZIRITEUAARB(TARE])
balances denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) placed with TEZIRITH#R7,362,0008 L (=ZE=F
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. F : 2,285,000 7T) - AR IEF B &
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Rz G o BiE A B A 2 FMNE E IR (1§
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Bl #E  EERNEETERE  A5H
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is BB REREETINERER 2RITHEA
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through REHIBBINE o
banks that are recognised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. EZENFE
2021 2020
—EBE--F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
0-30 days 0E 30K 84 87
31-60 days 31E60X 5 25
Over 60 days but less than 1 year FEIA60RIE DI - -
1 year or over 1 year 1Fa 1 FIA E - 7,884
89 7,996
General credit terms granted by suppliers are 30 days to 60 HEFRE 22 —REEHN FI0KRE6O
days. X e
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22.

23.

170

ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

22. Bt E AR EMENRIE

2021 2020

—EBE-F —ECTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHxT THEIT

Accrued charges ERE-4= 3,707 13,739
Other payables H b3R8 6,833 120,311
Government assistances BT 8 B - 5,264
10,540 139,314

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities mainly relate to advance consideration
received from customers to deliver healthcare products and
render related services. The contract liabilities will be offset
against to the healthcare products or services consumed
by customers and will be recognised as revenue when
the said products and services are rendered according to
applicable accounting policies of the Group. The increase in
contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the increase in
membership fees received from customers in relation to the
provision of the said products and services at the end of the
year.

23. B ERE

GHEBBEETEREREPKWIINRFEEE
mERHEEERENER - ANEEER
RIEBERFERENEBEERNKRS - IR
BASBEEANSTBORERE LLEM
MREEBERBARER - —TE=_—F4
HNEENENEZEARFERARETRWEH
migft P ERRRGEE BN 8 &
oo e

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 —E - —F+_A=1+—HILFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

24.

Movements in contract liabilities = N=b- =L
2021 2020
—EBE--F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Balance at 1 January R—HA—B#&% 3,900 21,169
Increase due to operations in the year R A8 DABAE AN 79,009 -
Decrease in contract liabilities FRERRZERHE L
as a result of recognising revenue aERD
during the year (2,614) (17,269)
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result  FARAHEMHEBE R 71&
of disposal of subsidiaries during the year & 49Fft/& 72> (3,695) =
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=1+—HB#&& 76,600 3,900

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations

ﬁ@ﬁ%i*%%“ﬂ’]%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ*%fﬁ

unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised as 1% FBEARKR T — (B0 R EEREER
revenue in next financial year. as o
SHAREHOLDER’S LOANS 24. REREM
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Current portion B HB &R 29,954 20,295
29,954 20,295

As at 31 December 2021, shareholder’s loans were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
whole amount of shareholder’s loans were classified as
current liabilities.

R-TF-_—F+-_A=+—H BRREXK

AEEE B RARERER REE
REBEBETFHEARHAG -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 iz T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. IR I
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary difference EERENERBEABEEUARAEFRZE T
under the liability method using the rates of taxation BRZRITHMEIRERZHTE o BT
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. The EREEZEESMT :

movement on deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
At the beginning of the year F 1) 674 2,351
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss for ke, GTAAFEERR
the year 100 (135)
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries &M E A 7R EUEER
(Note 36) (Ff5E36) (674) (1,456)
Exchange difference i =5 - (86)
100 674
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H ' A£EHE
of HK$65,282,000 (2020: HK$102,589,000) available for X Bh F 1 1E B 1865,282,0008 T (=T =
offset against future profits. During the year ended 31 T4 1 102,589,00058 70) ¢ A AR IIAK
December 2021, unused tax losses decreased upon the Komh e HE_FTE-_—F+-_H=+—H
derecognition of certain subsidiaries. No deferred tax asset IEFE  REAOREEEERE THEBA
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the AR AR TR MR A o B3 A0 R 2R s I 2R
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will expire B9 AT FEORI M - AR B IR B R R SRR
after 5 years from the year in which the tax losses were EMIBEE - MIBBBERREELE T8
incurred. STEFIREIH -
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R
Number of Nominal
shares value
iy 4= EE
HK$'000
T
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZE_TF—H—H-
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021, —E-EF+-_A=1+—8H"
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each —E-_—F—-A-HRK
—E_—F+"A=1+—8"
EREE0.2E TH &R 5,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTREHHR
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZZE-_FF—H—H"
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021, —E-EF+-_A=1+—8"
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each —E-_—F—-A—-HK
—E_—H+-A=1+—8"
FREEC.2B T LB 2,854,289,500 570,858
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 —E - —F+_A=1+—HILFE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

27. AR A Z BB AR 3R

2021 2020
—EB-—F T FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BE K&K - 7
Investments in subsidiaries KERKB A A 200 200
200 207
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments e - BN FIE R H A E KGR
and other receivables 57,549 2,617
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 73,947 80,641
Cash and bank balance B NIRITAER 59 1,883
131,555 85,141
Current liabilities =R
Accrued charges and other payables FESTE A & H A e BRIE 6,987 137,469
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASHIT B A B FRIE - 8,045
Shareholder’s loans fEERE X 16,258 14,565
Lease liabilities HEAE - 2,135
23,245 162,214
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(8%)FE 108,310 (77,073)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 108,510 (76,866)
NET ASSET/(LIABILITIES) BE/(8fE)FE 108,510 (76,866)
TOTAL EQUITY/(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY) & ZfE 4t
Share capital N 570,858 570,858
Reserves f#fa (462,348) (647,724)
TOTAL EQUITY/(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY) #2% /(&4 # %5 108,510 (76,866)
On behalf of the directors RERES
Wang Chuang Huo Chunyu
TH EEE
Director Director
EF -
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28. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 28. RN EfE B
Share Share option Other Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

Rtvaf BEERG RtEG  EXRR  RHER @t
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$000
TR TR TR THT THT TR

At 31 December 2019 and RZE-AE+=A=t-AR
1 January 2020 K-Z-Z£-A-H 3,196,996 40,299 12,238 13 (3,439,643)  (190,097)
Equity-settled share-based payments ~ MABIE& ZH AR A
EREAHE - 2,234 - - - 2,234
Lapse of share options BERERH - (4,084) - - 4,084 -
Share issue expenses RAETRY (817) - - - - (817)
Irrecoverable deposit for WEHB AR AT
an acquisition of a subsidiaries WmEs - - - - (100,000)  (100,000)
Conversion of convertible bonds ERIARER 7,334 - - - - 7,334
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - 60  (366,438)  (366,378)
At 31 December 2020 and RZB_ZF
1 January 2021 +-A=T-8k
—“E-—-F-f-H 3,203,513 38,449 12,238 73 (3,901,997)  (647,724)
Equity-settled share-based payments ~ AREEE R A
HREAHE - 2,160 - - - 2,160
Profit for the year REEHT| - - - - 183,216 183,216
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-FTE+-F=+—H 3,203,513 40,609 12,238 73 (3,718,781)  (462,348)
In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman BEREBEELAE  ARAlZBRHEE
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is AR TRE - EARRIARBREE
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that HIKNEMBE@ES KB HE @ eHEBRT
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the XBAREPERINNAES -

ordinary course of business immediately following the date
on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.
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CASH FLOWS

29. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 —E - —F+_A=1+—HILFE

29. REMBRIFHE

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities:

RERDELNARBIHK

Interest
payables
Convertible Shareholder’s Other for other Lease
bonds loans  borrowings  borrowings liabilities
Hfbfa R
TERES REER Eftfas ERFIE HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2021 A\E-—F—-F—H - 207,298 55,172 1,693 49,519
Changes from cash flows: Rengil
Drawdown e - 20,295 - - -
Repayments (El5 - - (65,172) - -
Interest paid BHFIE (2,334) - (14,499 (1,653) -
Repayment of principal portion of EEREEEAEHH
lease liabilities - - - - (26,621)
Interest paid on lease liabilties ERREARET S - - - - (1,696)
Total changes from financing cash flows: BERGNEEDAT 2,334) 20,295 (69,666) (1,663) (28,317)
Other changes: Ep#
Interest expenses MBS 2334 13,332 14,494 = 1,696
Settlement by issue of convertible bonds BAARERERN 220,630 (220,630) - - -
Conversion of convertible bonds ERTRR ER (220,630) - - - -
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZE-EF+-A=1t-HE
“2--%#-R-H - 20,295 - - 22,898
Changes from cash flows: Rensi
Drawdown 25 - 9,659 - - -
Interest paid BIFIS - - (174) - -
Repayment of principal portion of REREAERLHH
lease liabilities - - - - (10,874)
Interest paid on lease liabilties ENAERETIE - - - - (562)
Total changes from financing cash flows: REHSRER LS - 9,659 - - (11,436)
Other changes: L2 :
Interest expenses FEFEY - - 174 - 562
Gain on modification of leases BEBT s - - - - (5,408)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBEAR - - - - (3,066)
Exchange difference ERER - - - - 2,320
At 31 December 2021 WZE--F+-A=+-H - 29,954 - - 5,870
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30.

31.

176

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material
capital and other commitments (2020: contracted but not
provided for purchase of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$1,509,000).

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 September 2011
(the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the directors may grant
options to (i) any eligible employee (means any employee,
whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive directors and non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries and any invested entity;
(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity; (iii) any customer of the Group
or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides
research, development or technological support or other
services to the Group or any invested entity; and (v) any
shareholder or any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group to any invested entity (collectively known as the
“Participants”), to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to the Participants thereunder for their contributions to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity. The period of
the Scheme shall not be more than ten years from the date
of adoption of the Scheme.

30. EAR K H i

31.

RZZE-_—F+_A=+—H AEEL
BEAEANEMAE(ZZE-_FF : EE
ME - BEMRENETNEREESSE
#31,509,000/8 T ) °

B

RARBREBE-—ER-_TE——FNLATHEA
BBZRBRFES —ABBRAE S (5
g1 - RIFFHE - EFARTINALRGK
BRENRBARARG - )&AR7F - H
ERMBARREMAREERZENS
EREECEEMNE2REGEBEES @ BT
AATESRIFATES) : (IAAKEIT
AR B ARREMRMAIREERHEEE MK
RS 2 R FER ¢ (i) AR BEHERAKR

BERBZEMET : (vAAKES @A
BREBREHRIE FEIARMEIE

RIS 2 R AL HERE ¢ R (V)ERBER
HAKEELMKE QB REAAIREER
SAKEELMKERBIREAMIKEER
BOZEMES2EAFAEA(GRE 28
EF]) - HEZBENNREHEL2EEHAE
BAE 2 BERME L S B S B &Sk AR
SESGURERREESES  LRAY
AEEREFNAREERMEEEZAN
BIR - stE| MRt 8 B HE A58
B

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Hi2 —E - —F+_A=1+—HILFE

31. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) 31. BIRAE (&)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
approval of the Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors of the Company, or any of their respective
associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per
grant. An option period to be determined by the directors
is at their absolute discretion shall not be more than ten
years after the date of the grant of the share option (“Option
Period”). Options may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during the Option Period
after the option has been granted. The exercise price should
not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares; (ii) the closing price of the Company’s
share on the date of grants, which must be a trading day;
or (i) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing its
shares.

No share option was granted under the Scheme during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

2021 £ HEBLEB2EBRERLA

BRIEESFS AR AIRRALE - BIEFTEIA T
Bz BREL R 2RO BETBBAA
NEIRBEFEIE R BITRM 210% °
SEoh - BITERBEET SR H MM ARITE 2
BREmMT FREOTZAQABROEE £
R TREBEBARATHERTERGLG 2
30% ° RE121& A #AfE A A mAER A+
Rz ERESRZBRHEETBEBAA
R EIPMEREE B BT Z21% ° fHRA
RAIFEERFHB I IEHNITE B R MK
EEREZHBEBEARE . BREBBARQT
AR Z0.1% & {E{EEB5,000,0007% 7T -
Bl A 7B 1S AR A B AR BB E o

gt BRESANK L HEE28H
HIR MRS - MERENERER A
1AL - BREABSHESZE2ENE
BT ETSEBEERLERER NIRRT
FRBBEMR] - REBRER  BRK
R B I o A R A R BR G B IR R BE B T
AITE - TEEIFERAT =2 2&D
EF()VARFERMOEE : (i) AR EBRHRER
HAM(WARRSR) ZWHIE & k(i)A
RAIRMREBEERBASHIAEXZHEZ
FHWRHE -

FREUNBRN XN 2R EME K AERX
o REBEBRBEITRMIN - BEEAFENE
TE 1508 [0 5 S S BB AR -

BHE_Z2_-_—"Fk-_FT_22F+ = A
=t HIFERERBETEIRHBRRE -
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—F+ZA=t—RILFE

31. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) 31. BRE(E)
The Company K\E]
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Share at 31 December during at 31 December
Name of category of participant option type 2020 the year 2021
g St 223 RZB=-§
T=A t=A
Er=E ==
SREZERNER BRESD HATE FEREN HARITE
Employees =]
In aggregate = 04/2016 1,655,000 - 1,665,000
04/2017 2,536,500 - 2,536,000
Consultants B
In aggregate = 04/2016 1,647,000 - 1,647,000
04/2017 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
8,238,500 - 8,238,500

During the year, no (2020: 636,100 share options (adjusted

after share consolidation)) share options were lapsed.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with consultants is by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted, as the directors consider
that the share options granted is an extra incentive to the
consultants and no specified identifiable goods or services to

be provided to the Group.

ER - BMEEBRE(CZ_ZF : 636,100
BB IE (R Hm A ETARE)) BRI -

HREERSAE L ZBIRET &R EM
YR 2 BRINEUEY - Ko b 4 15 (7] AN 5= [ £2 it
ZHRER BRI E MRS - RERETL
DRGSR ECREXNERARS ZAFE
T2 EMBRRBIRE AFEETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

31.

22T

—F = A=t—BILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) . EBIRE(E
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at RZEBE-_—FR T _FEF+_A=1+—
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: H 27 B R IR R R &R
Contractual Number of options
exercise EREZE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted BRAAHEZERE
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2021 2020
ANfTEE
(RRBEH
RS HR & #AE) BREANED ZB--F —ZCTE
Employees
&g
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2016 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
“2-AFNATAR ZE-RFEAATAAE ZE-AEAATAEE 9T 10F
ZZ-ENATRA ZZZREAATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2017 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
“E-1FNAtAR  ZE-REAARTAAZE —E-—tENATAEE 9T 10F
“Z—tEnATHA _q_ﬁinﬂ+ﬁa
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2018 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATAR ZE-REAATABRE ZE-\ERATABE 9T 105
ZI-\fhA+tRE ZZ-RENATAHA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2019 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZZ-RENATAR ZE-REAATABE ZE-NENATABE 9ET 105
ZE-NENATRR  ZEZRENATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2020 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 331,000
15 September 2020 15 September 2025
ZE-TEAATAR ZE-REAATABRE ZEZEEAATARE 9T 105
ZECREAATAR ZE-RENATEA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2017 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE ZE-REAANRE  CE-LFARARE 5828 10%
ZE—tFNANR “E-RFAANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2018 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
—E-RENANA -z /\Eﬁﬂ/\az “Z-\FNANEE 5828 10F
Z2-N\FNANR “E-RFAANA
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31.

180

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

22F

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at

—F+ZA=t—RILFE

Bk (E)
R-B——FR-B-FF+_A=+-—

31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: (Cont’d) HBRREERRREERT @ (&)
Contractual Number of options
exercise BRERE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAEHE SER
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2021 2020
RRTRE
(RRBEH
RUAH HRD & #AE) BREANES “E--% “T-%%
Employees (Cont’d)
B (&)
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2019 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
ZEREAANE ZESEAANAE ZE-NEAANRE 5.82%T 105
“E-NERANR _j_ﬁinﬂﬂa
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
“E-R"ENANR ZZENANBE ZE-TEAANBE 58287 105
“Z-EFAANR ZE-RFAANAR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 507,300
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
ZE-R"ENANR ZZFNANBE  ZZZ-FAANRE 5828 105
“Z--FNANR “Z-RFENANR
Consultants
BE
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2016 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
—“Z-RFNA1+/H :T ﬂiﬂﬁH’/\\H: “E-RNENATAER 9T 10F
“F-rFNAtTRR —E-RfNATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2017 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
ZZ-RENATAR ZE-REAATABE ZE-tENATABE 9ETL 105
—E-t¥nA+AA ,7,£¢nﬂ+£a
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2018 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
ZE-RFAATAR ZE-REAATARE ZE2-\FAATABRZE 9T 105
“E-N\ENATEAE  ZZZRfnATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2019 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-REAATABE ZE-NEAATARE 9T 105
“Z-NFENAtRA  —Z-RFEAATRA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

31.

22T

—F = A=t—BILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) . EBIRE(E
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at RZEBE-_—FR T _FEF+_A=1+—
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: (Cont’d) B BRI E&HnT o (8)
Contractual Number of options
exercise BREHE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAEHEZERE
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2021 2020
ANTEE
(RRBEH
RitiAH BE s %AB) BRESNES ZBI-F 3
Consultants (Cont'd)
R ()
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 15 16 September 2020 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
September 2020 15 September 2025
“E-RFNATAR ZE-AFAATAHE ZESEENATABEE 9T 105
“Z-EFNA+RA —ZE-RFAATRA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2017 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
“Z-R"ENANA “Z-"ERANBE Z—+ENANAZE 5828 108
“E—tFNANR _7_£¢RHAH
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2018 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
“E-"ENANA -z /\Eﬂﬂ/\ﬁi E-N\ENANAZE 5828 10F
ZE-N\FAANR _q_ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2019 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
—E-~ENANE -z /\Eﬂﬂ/\ﬁi “E-NENANAZE 5828 10F
Z-NEnANA “Z-RFAANR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2020 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE ZE-REAANBE  ZZZEEARARE 5.828T 105
“Z-EFAANR ZE-RFAANR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016to 9 September 2021 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
“E-R"ENANR - ENANBE ZE_-FNANBE 58287 105
“Z--FNANR ZZZRENANR
8,238,500 8,238,500
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31.

182

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The Company had 7,207,200 and 7,207,200 share options
exercisable at 31 December 2021 and 2020 after share
consolidation and the weighted average exercise prices
of share options exercisable at 31 December 2021 and
2020 after share consolidation are HK$7.28 and HK$7.28,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 8,238,500
(2020: 8,238,500) share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.3% (2020:
0.3%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 8,238,500 (2020: 8,238,500) additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$1,647,700 (2020: HK$1,647,700) and share premium
of HK$56,800,730 (2020: HK$56,800,730) (before issue
expenses).

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

Bk (E)

RZB-—FR_FT_TF+_F=+—
BR&MmDE HFE AR 7%7207200@
$.7,207,20017 BE MR #ER] T 470 - =
R E_FTF+-_A=+— EIEAHX
BE D& - ATTTEEBRRER INEFEH T E
BH R AT7.288 L k7.28 T °

RZEBE-_—F+=-_A=+—0H " &2

£8,238,5001p (= FE =FF : 8238500
MIFTEETZHMARITHEBRE 42
AINZBZEEBTRHA03%(ZE=_F

F:03%)  MRARFRBEARET -
¥§MT{§§%TE§HMEH BARAET

8,238,500/ (=& =Z 4 : 8,238,500%)
RE NI AR - IF‘EE%E?I\HX$1,647,700
BIL(ZZE_FF : 1,647,700 L) &%
5 ' (8 56,800,730 B L ( =& = T 4F -
56,800,730 7T ) (MBI AT) ©

FEREZ R R EFIITEENT

2021 2020
“Z--§ “E-%F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MEFHTEE BREMR METHRE BRERE
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
B T4 BT Tin
(restated)
)
Outstanding at beginning of the year 1% A 17{E 7.09 8,238 7.09 8,874
Forfeited/Lapsed during the year ERRI/ K 7.09 - 7.09 (636)
Outstanding at end of year ERBARITE 7.09 8,238 7.09 8,238

Note: The number of share options and exercise prices were
adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation.

As at 31 December 2021, the weighted average remaining
contractual life for the outstanding share options is 3.70
years (2020: 4.70 years).

During the year, share-based payments expense of
HK$2,160,000 (2020: HK$2,234,000) have been charged to
profit or loss for the year.

Bt © BARES R RITEETDRIERD & GHE

ﬁnﬂﬁko

R-ZBE-—F+-_A=+—08 ' WR1TE
E%Hxﬁéa’mwfg%ﬁﬁﬁ% HEHI AB.704F
“EFF 1 470%F) o

FER - AR N EH2,160,0008 T (=
777¢ 2,234,000 L) ERAFE 18
AR o
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 2. EAETRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in B ETERREMIBOF MRS I
these financial statements, the Group had the following AREBRFRNEBE S BIUNTRS
transactions with related parties during the year.
Compensation of Key management personnel FTEEBASML
The key management personnel of the Group are the AEEBZFTBEBABNARAEE §
directors, chief financial officer and legal counsel of the EMBEE RERER - TEETIEAS Z
Company. The remuneration of the key management BEFMEESREBEENA LT ZRIRR
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee TGBRET TEEBEAS(THEES
having regard to the performance of individuals and market E)ZMeSmEWLT -

trends. The remuneration of the key management (excluding
directors) was as follows:

2021 2020
—EBE-F —ECTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Salaries and other benefits FHe REMIET 1,717 3,012
Retirement benefits scheme RIRBFFT B R
contributions 28 36
1,745 3,048
The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals SeHEEEEANMEN FLATEHE

fell within the following band:

Number of individual

A
2021 2020
—EB-—F T TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,0007 7T 2 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/& 721,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /&7 22,000,000/ 7T - 1
2 2
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

184

—F+ZA=t—RILFE

33. RHIB A B 2 &

Issued ordinary Percentage of

Place of incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests  Principal activities and

Name of company registration capital held by the Company  place of operations
ERTEER ARRRERR
AFER ERRY /R RA/HRER EERLA TEERREENY
Directly  Indirectly
E& i

HK International Regenerative Gentre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Healthcare business, Hong Kong
BEEARREEETLERAT B 10057 EEREXE BE
CRMI'HK Health Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
hEE(FRBRERERAR Bk 18T REARR Bk
CRMI HK Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
hEE(BREXERERAR Bk 1% REARR Bk
CRMI HK Health Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
hEE(FRRRIAERAR B 1% REARR Bk
CRMI HK Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
hEE(FR)REERAR B 1% REARR Bk
CRMI HK Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
HEE(BR)ERERAT B 137 RARR Bk
China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited British Virgin Islands US$20,000 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
HELNESEERKARAT EBRES 20,000%7 RARR Bk

The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% Investment holding, the PRC
hEE(IH)EXESERARDA Gilei AR 30,000,007 REARR  hE

The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% Investment holding, the PRC
hEE(TH) BERRERAR Gilei AR 30,000,007 REARR  hE

The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% Investment holding, the PRC
hEE(TH)AFEREAERAA Gilei AR 30,000,007 REARR  hE

The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% Healthcare Business, the PRG
LARERRERANERAT Gilei AR 30,000,007 BEREXE HE
Longar Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
RRRERRAT EBRNES %7 REARR Bk
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 33. RMB AR 2= (&)

Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in iz : ERIIEEESRATFEXEREFHHR
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results HEENHEAN A EE PR EEFEETES
of the Group for the period or formed a substantial portion MZAEBRBRAGR - EERA  §IH
of the net assets of the Group at the end of the period. To EMHB AR ZHBEESEEBENITT
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Ko
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
All subsidiaries are limited liability companies. FTEMBARESEREMERA -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at

the end of the period or at any time during the period.

REE SN BN ERER - SEREA
AEEERNERES

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

34. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

FEY,” (FEA) BB 2 R SR Th SRR -

RENABRERER -

34. cEERETRBERE

The following table shows the carrying amount of financial
assets and liabilities:

TRV EREERARZE@EE

2021 2020
—E-—F S Sas
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Financial assets SREE
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: HHEENAFTNEREE ¢
Trade receivables E 5 G IE 208 80
Deposits and other receivables e R H A FEIGIE 206,505 128,790
Cash and bank balance H& RIRTTHE R 9,929 4,767
216,642 133,637
Financial liabilities cRAasE
Financial liabilities measured BEENAGTNEREE
at amortised costs:
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B S 3RIE 89 7,996
Accrued charges and other payables FEsT &R R E A FEERIE 10,540 134,050
Lease liabilities HEBRE 5,870 17,028
Shareholder’s loans BREER 29,954 20,295
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 5,870
46,453 185,239
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35.

186

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group has a written
risk management policy in place in relation to credit risk
associated with loan receivables, if any.

The board of directors meets periodically to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor the Group’s
exposure to a variety of risks associated with financial
instruments which arise from the Group’s operating
and investing activities. Generally, the Group employs
conservative strategies regarding its risk management to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how these risks are
mitigated are described as follows:

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency exchange rates is
minimal as the group companies usually hold most of
their financial assets/liabilities in their own functional
currencies. Currently the Group does not have
foreign currency hedging policy but the management
continuously monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

Financial assets and liabilities at variable interest
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and those at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group monitors the
interest rate risk exposure on a continuous basis and
adjusts the portfolio of financial assets and liabilities
when necessary. A reasonable change in interest rate
in the next twelve months is assessed to result in
immaterial change in the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses. Changes in interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of equity.

B ERERE

AEERARAFERGBRETREREED

hEReR T AmMAEM KRR - BHKR
REREmEAR(EREE %J—Uﬁ » MR E R
&E‘rﬁif’iﬂﬂ 2)  EERREARBE SR

B e KEI%‘JJEEFWEM(ZZDE)%E%E’J
EERRzEmMEREZRE

% SEHAREHETONLS EXR
- NEBENMEEAKERMAZBEREAEK
W%&&ﬁ%%?iZﬁﬂIﬁZTﬂ
“°*&ﬁm AEBEHEREEER

%E B - ARERBE R AR BVEE 5

W B E R T A AR 2 B B N a0 fa] R
DUt F R 2 BORE M

(a) SMEJEfz

HRAEBETAREEERFEXR
HBHEeMEEAFE  WASEHER
PE R B R o A E B AL ESMNE
BHHBR - BEEE-EEREINE
RREN AT EEEZEEPERIMNE
B -

(b) FZEE

AP eREERABEAS
EERRESRENXER - mAREE
7T'WZ$@$§F&1%EE$‘£IEE?

RFENERR - AEBEFEEZE
KRR YRV ERFARSBEEN
BEZHEE -RART_EAMERZ
BEEHRIEHARERFENE
BREABERYEBEANEE - F R
B AR B 2 AR I &

Y
= °
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of these financial assets
presented in the Group’s statement of financial position
are net of impairment losses, if any. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. As at 31 December 2021, 92% (2020:
38%) of the total receivables were concentrated in
the Group’s largest debtor and 94% (2020: 63%)
of the total trade receivables were concentrated in
the Group’s top five debtors (all private companies
incorporated in Hong Kong and the PRC). Since the
Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks.
The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because most of the Group’s bank deposits are
deposited with major banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade
and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables is estimated
using a provision matrix with reference to past default
experience of the debtor, current market condition
in relation to each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs
also incorporated forward looking information with
reference to general macroeconomic conditions
that may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables.

B ERERE(E)

(c)

EEAR

AEBZHBRARAZT S RMEE
WMEREEC MR RESE(RE) -
AEBZEERBREESEREZT
BEERTE - FPEEMEZT %&
BRZELNRBR I EEERRE
2 HRERIKE - m_$:—¢+_
ﬂ*+ B EUWRIERTEI 2% (=

ZEF 38%)EHFRAEE KA
ﬁ%A\WW@&%%mEQMM_Y
—EF 63%)ETFRAEEBRKE
HARESBRED K+ B
YHFART) c ARAEE(EEE
RAREERTNE=HETRS -
WHARERER - SR EERRIE
BE/HFR BRI RITERD
EHEE - HRAKEE ZEWFIE
MR P EMREZ D BN TREE&T
¥ HASBEYESAKEFEER
B o

AEERZHRIBITHEBORE - HRA

SEZBITEARBOFAREER
PEZEBIRTT  BIRE RIBITHER
ZEERBER -

AEERBEN2HEBEEERN
THETEE S MEMBEFKANER

B BHRURENEREREER
ERBBERMG  X2EEBAN

BEENRLE BRESEHARREN
BTmR - BHMEEBEBETESER
%%%FﬁAﬁ1meﬁ ENRE
BEBLBEARN - MARBIEER -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 35. AR EE (&)

(c) Credit risk (Cont’d) (c) EEREFE (&)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
recognised lifetime ECLs for its trade receivables
based on individually significant customer or the ageing
of customers collectively that are not individually
significant as follows:

RZEZ—FR=ZZE=_TF+= A
=+—H ' AEEEREENEZEER
FERNATEANEEBEFRiRTE
REEZZRINFENEPEHEEE
B FBOT

2021 2020
—E--F “E-TF
Weighted
average Gross Gross
lifetime carrying Loss carrying Loss
ECLs amount  allowance amount allowance
¥
R
FEER IREAE EREE REAH EiEE R
% HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
% TR TEx TAT THT
1-90 days 1290H 1 208 - 80 -
91-365 days 912365H 10 - - - -
More than 365 days 38365 H 100 - - 74,106 (74,1006)
208 - 74,186 (74,106)
For other receivables, management makes periodic MEMERZEmMS r BEE@ER

collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past
experience. Save as those disclosed in the financial
statements, the directors believe that there is no other
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables and deposits.

BEERELCEMBEERE LR
ARSI B WE BF R B E R
ERIFEG - BRI TSR PABEE SN
EERR - AEEHEMERFIER
BReMARBLRERTELMERNE
REERR -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(d) Fair value

()

The directors of the Company consider the fair values
of the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities
are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because of the immediate or short-term maturity of
these financial instruments. The fair value of non-
current financial assets was not disclosed because the
carrying amount is not materially different from its fair
value.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term. The Group monitors its
risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both
its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
and other receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank overdrafts, bank loans, lease liabilities and
shareholder’s loans.

The Group has net current assets of HK$111,075,000
(2020: net current liabilities of HK$57,481,000) and
net assets of HK$111,728,000 (2019: net liabilitiess of
HK$155,150,000) as at 31 December 2021.

35. B & P B IR (48 )

(@)

(e)

2021 £ HEBLEB2EBRERLA

AFE

ARFBEERRERAKEZZES
BTABAKINEHRBE - 8UR
BeMEENRABZAFERARE
BZERITEKN - ARIERBD TR
BENAVTEEEFEAEZEEYTE
K BRI KRIEHIE -

BN E T /E

AEEZBRRDERERERDES
FTE HREFTHRCHE B
RHEREMZRBEEHER - AKHE
ERERADESHE TAEREE
TRERNER ZTAFGFRES®RT
AENeREE(JIME S EEFIAR
RUWEE) NI MBEUREARER

AEENERRBBERRITES
RITER HEREBRERER &
HESHBEMRBEELEZHEAMNT
fiy o

N-ZTE=-_—F+=-_A=+—H8 " K
SEMREEEFEA111,075,000
BIL(ZZE_ZF : n®PHAEBEF
¥ 57,481,000 70 ) K # & &
111,728,000 L(ZZF—ILF : i
E) A& 1&55,150,000/87T) °

189



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TR B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 iz T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

35.

190

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

B ERERE(E)

(e) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (e) MEELEPFE (&)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRAVWAREFBITESHEBERS
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group’s WERBRRHRENE - ZRDIRE
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based FHRBEBESRE (BEIETOF
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including R HAEZE - WhREREB B2
interest payment computed using contractual rates or, EHARFE 2 E T H) RAE
if floating, based on current rates at the reporting date) AIREZAN R 2 & F HERE «
and the earliest date the Group may be required to pay:
Repayable in
Total more than
contractual Repayable 1 year
Carrying undiscounted within 1 year but less than
amount cash flow or on demand 5 years
HEES: 3] MER BB1E
REE ZRERELE JEZREE BIRSFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THT THT
As at 31 December 2021 RZE--%
+=ZA=t-H
Trade payables Y 89 89 89 -
Accrued charges and other payables [Ezt2 i & H fth JE {208 10,540 10,540 10,540 -
Shareholder’s loans REER 29,954 29,954 29,954 -
Lease liabilities HERE 5,870 5,931 5,931 -
46,453 46,514 46,514 -
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZZEH§
+=ZA=t-H
Trade payables B S ENTUA 7,996 7,996 7,996 -
Accrued charges and other payables [E&t2 F I E b {5 708 134,050 134,050 134,050 -
Shareholder’s loans BERER 20,295 20,295 20,295 -
Lease liabilities HERE 22,898 25,812 18,827 6,985
185,239 188,153 181,168 6,985
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36. DISPOSAL OF DISPOSAL GROUP 36. HEHEEHE

On 2 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with DS Premium Healthcare Limited
(“DS”), an independent third party, to dispose its entire
equity interests in and sale loan due by Biocell Technology
Limited to DS for a total consideration of HK$101 in cash.

On 30 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with DS to dispose its entire equity
interests in and sale loan due by Passion Strean Limited
and Frame Sharp Limited to DS for a total consideration of
HK$11,000,000 in cash.

On 30 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Nopo International Group Limited
(“Nopo”), an independent third party, to dispose its entire
equity interests in and sale loan due by Obagi Medical
Products Group Limited to Nopo for a total consideration of
HK$1,000,000 in cash.

On 29 June 2021, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements with China e-Media Group Limited (“e-Media”),
an independent third party, to dispose the entire equity
interests in and sale loans due by subsidiaries of the Group
namely CRMI Medical Bio-Tech Limited, China Regenerative
Medicine Limited, Sino Stem Cell Clinical Application
Company Limited and China Stem Cell Therapy and
Technology Limited to e-Media for considerations of HK$404
in cash.

The above-mentioned disposed subsidiaries are collectively
“Disposal Group”.

NZEBEZ—F=A=-H AEFEFIF
=rEfrmEeRR AR ([EEF)EILE
B AIEHHEERBRAEYRES
RARMEEREURARERNEEE
o BRERRES101ETT °

M-ZEZ—F=H=+H KAEHEHEEH
IV B B - M2 & B R Passion
Strean Limited }2Frame Sharp Limited#y
EHEREARMELRNEEER - AR
B8 A3£11,000,000% 7T °

RZBE-_—F=A=+H AEEEBL
E=FHEREREEBRAR([FE])
RIS EE W 0 M S H S ERObagif)
% #B i # LA & Obagi Medical Products
Group Limited& RMHEER - BRER
I8 41,000,000 7T ©

NRZEZ—FEXAZ+NB  AEFHEF
VYE=ZFTPHETFEHEBEERAF([E
HEDAVEEH:  RAEEHERAEER
BETIHWEBARTRHBEELEESEYEMER
RNE - FRBAEBEEERAA - PEHHA
MERKERABR AT LT E®HMEMAER
KT AR AR A2 BRE A RZE QR
REEEER  REARES404BTT ©

EXFAAMEHERBARSGEATHES
] e
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36. DISPOSAL OF DISPOSAL GROUP (CONT'D) 36. HELHEER (&)

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the Disposal REEHHNEESRE EERBERE

Group as of the date of disposal were as follows: (ER N
HK$’000
FHET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ER S 1,855
Current assets REEE
Inventories EE 979
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b fE W GRIE 13,658
Cash and bank balances R RIRITAE R 1,932
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payable B 5 REAM IR (118,008)
Contract liabilities BHBE (3,695)
Lease liabilities HEBE (3,066)
Non-current liabilities FnBAE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBE E (674)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEEETFE (102,019)
Release of translation reserves upon HELSEEZ
disposal of Disposal Group RIR B #E 39,231
Derecognition of non-controlling interest HUHR MR FE R AR #E 21 113,278
Loss on disposal of the Disposal Group HEHESRE 2 EiE 38,489
Total consideration by cash BIE e RE 12,001
Satisfied by: B TABEXN
Cash RE 12,001
Total consideration by cash LIRS R(E 12,001
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZHRSMAFE
Cash consideration received BWHE S RE 12,001
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BHERTEREIRS (1,932)
10,069

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R It

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i —_F =

—FTA=1+—HIFE

36. DISPOSAL OF DISPOSAL GROUP (CONT'D) 36. HELHEER (&)

On 11 August 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Osibao to dispose its entire
equity interests in CRMT and CRHI for a total consideration
of HK$35,000,000 in cash (of which HK$23,492,000 and
HK$11,508,000 were attributed to sale of CRMT and CRHI
respectively (altogether known as “Disposal Group”)). On
30 September 2020, the Group completed the disposal of
100% equity interest in CRMT and CRHI.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the Disposal

RZZEZZTFNAT—H  ANEEEEH
B VEEWS  AHEERTPBEAELE
AR BAEBENEERE  BRERRE
35,000,000/ 7T + HH123,492,000/%8 7T &
11,508,000 TH Al BN L E+FR HEHE
BETBAEBR(—RABAILESRE]) -
R-ZZE-_ZTFEANA=+H AEEZTKLE

ERFHEAB N T BEBIR 2 2 ARAE -

REERMNHEREZEENRABRE

Group as of the date of disposal were as follows: (ER N
HK$’000
FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Intangible assets mEE 11,972
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 4,816
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A fE W IR 43,035
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTA 84 18,770
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payable B 5 R E A FER IR (7,265)
Lease liabilities HEBE (656)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred taxation IEIEF I8 (1,456)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 69,216
Expenses in relation to the disposal HERS 1,070
Release of translation reserves upon HEWRB AR E
disposal of subsidiaries R BRI 5 1,280
Loss on disposal of the subsidiaries HEWB AR EiE (36,566)
Total consideration by cash IR R(E 35,000
Satisfied by: =TSR N
Cash HE 35,000
Total consideration by cash wIRSNRE 35,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELZIRESRAFE :
Cash consideration received EWIRSKE 35,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BHERITESREE® (18,770)
16,230
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37.

38.

39.

194

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group has not
adopted any formal dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the PRC and Hong
Kong. There are temporary suspension on part of the
operation of subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong from
January to February 2021, which will affect the financial
performance of the Group for the year ending 31 December
2021. The Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 outbreak and further evaluate its impact on
the financial position and operating results of the Group in
the future.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been re-
presented as if the operation discontinued during the
current year had been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period.

37.

38.

39.

EXAEEBRRER

AEEEEEACZBER:
s REAKERBELLEZRS) BER
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A7 = TR
MR E
RESULTS =
Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“E-tf I3 E-0E i 3 “EC-F
+-F=+-B +-A=t-B +-F=t-B +-A=t-8B +=A=t-A
LHHER BBEE LHBER LHBEE LHHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TiEn
(Note (a)) (Note (a)(b)) (Note (a)(b))
(Firzk(e) (FirzE@)b)  (MrE(a)(b)
(restated) (restated)
(#=3]) (E7)
Revenue W 860,667 72,952 47,971 182,136 282,897
Cost of services provided/Cost of sales BRI 2R/ HEREK (575,846) (45,946) (19,052) (140,328) (215,170)
Gross profit E | 284,821 27,006 28,919 41,808 67,727
Other income 00N 95,053 23,857 18,111 16,032 6,082
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHRY (156,066) (134,695) (56,264) (6,747) (4,392)
Administrative and other expenses THRARR (661,448) (324,017) (201,055) (40,201) (43,054)
Fair value gain/(loss) on contingent YA B AT ENS/ (BR)
consideration receivables 4,21 (26,271) (4,587) - -
Expected credit loss on trade or other Boa RN ERREERR
receivables - (139,006) (1,149 (663) (2,688)
Reversal (provision) of expected credit loss on E U ZER L S5
other receivables BE (&) - 2,458 (19,636) (36,762) 41,353
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets far  RAFERNBHIIE 2 2R
value through profit or loss NFERE/ (BB) = (113,803) 1,224 2,340 -
Write off of deposits for acquisition of HEKERBLRRE
subsidiaries - - - (100,000) -
Impairment of goodwil HERE - (202,292) - - -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment %1% B KR ERE - (168,486) (94,118) - -
Impairment of other intangible assets At EVEERE - (275,896) (70,697) = -
Impairment of right-of-use assets RREEE RE - - (52,049) - -
Finance costs HBER (49,327) (21,654) (5,343) (17,906) (736)
Loss from discontinued operations BRIHEEEHER = = = (284,349) (38,479)
Profit/(loss) before income tax RSB AER/ (58) (382,746)  (1,352,799) (456,644) (462,448) 25,813
Income tax credit/(expense) FiBES/ (%) 17,338 68,884 8,901 (12,380) (12,465)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR/ (BR) (365,408) (1,283,915) (447,749) (438,828) 13,348
Attributable to: oI :
Owners of the Company ARARBA (342,994) (1,193,501) (396,006) (404,226) 13,348
Non-controlling interests Rk EER (22,414) (90,414) (52,737) (34,602) -
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR/ (BR) 365,408 (1,283,915) (447,749) (438,828) 13,348

(@) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial

statements.

(b) No separate disclosures of continuing operations and discontinued

operations were made on the financial summary.

(a) ABEYBRFHEZELEAMBRE

(o) MBRHBAESRARBERELEETRELLL

B -

2021 £ HEBLEB2EBRERLA

195



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

YA 1~z oh
& E
RESULTS (CONT’D) ¥E (&)
As at 31 December
RT=A=t-A
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“FtF “F-\& E-NE ZZC%F “BC-E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAr TAT T Tin TiEn
Total assets wEE 3,527,973 1,422,923 553,933 152,491 259,141
Total liabilities Bak (1,714,649) (855,660) (536,300) (207,641) (147,413)
Shareholders’ funds hEés 1,813,324 567,263 17,633 (55,150) 111,728
Note: The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements. Mizk : BARSIBEWIFARKBRE 2 — 1) o
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